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About the RepoRt

the Adapt It integrated annual report for the year 
ended 30 June 2013 covers information from all the  
group operations and where additional information is 
available, this is clearly indicated. For a comprehensive 
overview it is recommended that this review is read 
together with the information available on the Adapt It 
website (www.adaptit.co.za).

Adapt It continues to progress on the journey 
outlined by the King Report on Governance for 
South Africa 2009 (King III) while ensuring increased 
integration of reported financial, social, governance 
and environmental information. the annual financial 
statements are prepared in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards, the 
Companies Act of South Africa (the Companies Act, 
No 71 of 2008, as amended) and the JSe Listings 
Requirements. Adapt It uses the discussion paper 
drafted by the Integrated Reporting Committee of 
South Africa as a platform for this integrated report, as 
well as the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) framework 
and guidelines for sustainability reporting.

ASSuRANCe

the integrated annual report has been compiled in 
accordance with the integrated reporting principles 
contained in the Code of Corporate practices and 
Conduct set out in the King III Report. this report covers 
all our operations across the various geographies in 
which we operate and has been structured to provide 
stakeholders with relevant financial and non-financial 
information to enable them to obtain a balanced view 
of our business.

external verification has been sought for the broad-
based black economic empowerment (b-bbee) 
accreditation level at the end of the 2013 financial 
year. Verification is being carried out by an organisation 
accredited by South African National Accreditation 
System (SANAS).

DIReCtoRS’ ReSpoNSIbILIty

the Adapt It board of Directors acknowledges 
its responsibility to ensure that the integrity of the 
integrated report is uncompromised. the board has 
applied all possible resources to fulfil the requirements 
of the integrated report and confirms that the report 
addresses all material issues and presents the 
integrated performance of Adapt It fairly and without 
prejudice. 

SCopE AND BouNDARY
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STRATEGIC FoCuS

who we ARe

Adapt It is an innovative information technology 
(It) services and specialised solutions provider, 
delivering It solutions to some of the most successful 
manufacturing, Financial Services and education 
organisations in over 20 countries worldwide.

Adapt It’s differentiated It product and service 
offerings set it apart in the marketplace and enable 
its customers to have uniquely tailored solutions 
powering the day-to-day efficiencies within their 
businesses. 

Adapt It is committed to fair and sustainable 
business practices and strict adherence to legislation 
and other applicable regulatory frameworks. Adapt 
It views empowerment as a strategic imperative and 
a vital component to the continued stability of the 
Company’s operations in South Africa, as well as a 
pragmatic economic growth strategy. by retaining 
our level 3 b-bbee status, Adapt It is in the top 30 most 
empowered companies on the JSe.

StRAteGIC FoCuS

Adapt It has over the last five years delivered 
profitable revenue growth and return on investment 
through the implementation of its sustainable growth 
strategy enabling it to deliver growth and returns 
above the ICt sector average.

the strategy focuses primarily on pursuing organic 
growth through It Service and product, Customer 
and Sector diversification. It complements this growth 
by acquiring strategic, synergistic and earnings-
enhancing software businesses.

the organic growth strategy will be further enhanced 
by the recent amalgamation of the Company’s 
subsidiaries into the main operating subsidiary under 
one Adapt It brand. the amalgamation rationalises 
the number of Adapt It’s operating businesses in order 
to achieve efficiencies and savings whilst simplifying 
the Group structure. Adapt It customers, from  
1 July 2013, receive services from three divisions 
located in Johannesburg, pretoria and Durban.

the strategy remains underpinned by our values 
which encourage and drive a high performance 
culture, strong corporate governance, a client- centric 
approach, focus on agility, diversity and innovation 
and align with the vision and mission to accelerate 
Adapt It’s success.  
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Four strategic drivers

•	 Revenue	growth

•	 Operating	margin

•	 	Process	and	resource	
efficiency

•	 Stakeholder	expectations

to be the leading innovative 
It services and specialised 
solutions provider to some 
of the world’s most effective 
organisations

by passionately striving to

•	 	Provide	innovative	
technology solutions

•	 	Delivering	positive	results	to	
stakeholders

•	 	Ensuring	good	corporate	
governance

•	 Build	a	culture	of	excellence
  A key to the Company’s success is that it demands 

and rewards excellence in leadership, teamwork 
and delivery of results – for all our people. this 
includes defining and embedding a high-
performance leadership model against which  
we can assess, develop and remunerate our  
entire workforce

•	 Deliver	high	performance	in	all	business	units
  to ensure that we provide value to shareholders 

and customers, we need to drive high performance 
in our businesses by driving operational efficiency 
and delivering profitable growth

•	 	Develop	a	unified	customer	proposition	 
and experience

  we are passionate about developing the best value 
proposition for our customers, by building on our 
history of innovation and resolute customer focus

•	 Share	skills	and	experience	across	Adapt	IT
  we will utilise our capabilities across the regions 

to drive revenue and cost improvements and 
enhance value propositions

•	 Simplify	operating	structure	to	unlock	value
  to unlock the full value of the Company for 

shareholders we will continue to optimise our 
operating structure

underpinning our strategy and aligning 
with the vision and mission to accelerate 
Adapt It’s success

•	 	Integrity	
  professionalism and accountability in  

all our business interactions

•	 	Passion	
  Resilience in the quest to service  

our customers

•	 	Transparency	
  Communicating honestly with  

our stakeholders

•	 	Mutual	respect	 
treating our stakeholders as we  
would like to be treated

•	 	Solution	focus	 
understanding of our customers’ 
environments and technology

•	 	People	focus	 
Recognition of the individuals that  
make up Adapt It and their  
unique contributions

•	 	Good	corporate	citizenship	 
putting sustainability at the core of  
our business ethos

STRATEGIC FRAMEWoRK

VISIoN how
LoNG-teRm 
CoRpoRAte 

StRAteGy

StRAteGIC 
GoALS  

FoR 2014

ouR  
VALueS
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teChNoLoGy pARtNeRShIpS

ouR BuSINESS

SpeCIALISeD SeRVICeS

Adapt It provides high-performance solutions that add business value

DeLIVeRy pLAtFoRmS

mICRoSoFt

Adapt It’s microsoft 
partnership equips us 
with certification in 
leading technologies. 
our trusted microsoft 
experts who have 
proven their 
expertise through 
rigorous exams and 
successful customer 
implementations 
can help deliver 
solutions to meet our 
customers’ technology 
challenges. 

oRACLe

As a valued oracle 
Independent Software 
Vendor (ISV) we are 
equipped with the 
latest technology to 
exceed customer needs 
while remaining on 
the leading edge of 
innovation. our alliance 
with oracle combines 
our deep industry 
knowledge, useful 
tools, powerful research 
expertise and innovative 
thinking to ignite growth 
for our customers.

Ibm

Adapt It’s Ibm 
partnership enables 
us to develop next 
generation applications 
for big data and 
analytics and cognitive 
computing provides 
unprecedented insights 
into opportunities, threats 
and efficiencies for an 
organisation. we harness 
data and provide 
customers with a unified 
view of their business 
information from 
disparate data sources.

SAp®

Adapt It’s SAp® 
partnership enables 
us to offer complete 
Cloud-based Solutions, 
powered by SAp®, 
in a cost-effective 
model to manage 
all SAp® applications 
and technology 
and enables the 
optimisation of 
application support 
services.

on premise –  
Services and Solutions

web-based Solutions – 
on premise and hosted

Cloud Solutions –  
Software as a Service, 
platform as a Service

mobile Solutions

pRoFeSSIoNAL SeRVICeS

•	Business	Intelligence	(BI)	Services
•	Human	Capital	Management	Services
•	Development	and	Integration	Services
•	Technology	Services
•		Enterprise	Resource	Planning	(ERP)	

Services
•	Training	and	Development	Services

SoLutIoNS

•	HCM	Spectrum	–	SAP® hCm and payroll on the Cloud

•	CaneLab	–	Weighbridge	and	Cane	Testing	Solution

•	ITS	Integrator	–	Higher	Education	ERP

•	OpSUITE	–	SHEQ	Solution

•	Tranquillity	–	Process	Manufacturing	ERP
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tARGet SeCtoRS

education manufacturing Financial Services

ReVeNue by SeCtoR – 2013

44% manufacturing

40% education

16% Financial Services

GeoGRAphIC ReVeNue – 2013

77% South Africa

19% other African countries

2% Australasia

1% europe

1% uSA

1%

1%

19%

77% 2%
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NoN-FINANCIAl HIGHlIGHTS

SoCIAL 
ReSpoNSIbILIty

1400
learners

Adapt It opened 
its first Knowledge 
Centre for school 
children to gain 
access to learning 
in a digital 
environment

oNe ADApt It

7    1

Seven operating 
entities were 
merged into one

StRAteGIC AChIeVemeNtS

Increasing the education 
sector market penetration in 

the African market

 enhancing operational 
efficiencies through the one 

Adapt It amalgamation 
project; maintaining a  

level 3 b-bbee rating

 Improving the manufacturing 
segment’s operational 

efficiency

Improving customer service

 Introducing SAp® and Cloud 
Services (powered by SAp®) 
through the Swicon360 (pty) 

Ltd (Swicon) acquisition

SKILLS 
DeVeLopmeNt

   209%
Investment in skills 
development 
increased more 
than three-fold to 
over R2 million
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36%
ReVeNue

32%
opeRAtING pRoFIt

28%
heADLINe eARNINGS  

peR ShARe

GROUP HIGHLIGHTS 2013 2012 %

basic and diluted earnings per share (cents)  22,25  17,46 27,4

headline and diluted earnings per share (cents)  22,27  17,45 27,6

Dividends per share (cents)  4,84  2,84 70,4

earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation 
(ebItDA) margin (%)  11,35  11,64 (2,4)

operating profit margin (%)  9,69  10,11 (4,2)

Return on net assets (%)  14,80  14,37 3,0

Net asset value (R’000)  92 234  70 161 31,5

Current ratio (ratio)  1,11  1,20 (7,5)

Revenue (R’000) 306 035  224 769 36,2

ebItDA (R’000) 34 445  25 556 34,8

operating profit (R’000) 29 400  22 207 32,4

profit for the year (R’000) 24 091  18 143 32,8

FINANCIAl HIGHlIGHTS

ReVeNue 
(Rm)

ebItDA 
(Rm)

opeRAtING pRoFIt
(Rm)

bASIC eARNINGS peR 
ShARe (cents)

306

225

181173

78

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

34

26

1817

13

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

29

22

1516

11

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

22,3

17,5

11,410,9
9,4

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
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STAKEHolDER ENGAGEMENT

INtRoDuCtIoN
Adapt It’s operations and activities have an impact on stakeholders ranging from communities to investors. 
Adapt It is therefore committed to building and maintaining open, sustainable relationships with a range of 
stakeholder groups, particularly in relation to long-term strategic direction and focus on sustainable practices.  
therefore, Adapt It’s stakeholder engagement can be summarised as follows:

STakeHOLdeR enGaGemenT mOdeL

StAKehoLDeR AND  
why we eNGAGe

NAtuRe oF eNGAGemeNt mAteRIAL ISSueS ACtIoNS AND  
AReAS oF FoCuS

SHaReHOLdeRS and InveSTmenT cOmmUnITy 

Provides financial 
capital to finance further 
growth

•		Interim	and	annual	
reports

•		Results	
announcements

•		Regular	investor	
presentations

•	Corporate	website

•		Annual	general	
meeting

•		Sustainable	revenue	
and profit growth

•	Dividends

•	Return	on	investment	

•		Shareholder	value	
creation

•	Share	liquidity

•		Share	price	
performance

•	Increasing	dividends

•		Sustainability,	social	
investment and 
corporate governance

emPLOyeeS 

Develop high 
performance culture

•		Monthly	
communication 
sessions 

•	Quarterly	newsletters

•	CEO	roadshow

•		Interim	and	full	year	
performance reviews

•		Interim	and	full	year	
results presentations

•		Provision	of	gainful	
employment

•	Fair	labour	practices

•	Career	development

•		Competitive	
remuneration and 
benefits packages 

•		Equitable	remuneration	
and recognition

•		Continuous	personal	
development

•		Employment	security,	
participation and 
empowerment

•		Workforce	
transformation

cUSTOmeRS

Sustain revenue 
generation and growth

•		Account	management	
meetings and visits

•		Service	management	
reports

•		Solution	and	service	
updates and launches

•	Contract	negotiations

•		Corporate	website	and	
brochures

•	Media	press	releases

•		Tradeshows,	exhibitions	
and conferences

•		High	quality	service	
and solutions

•	Competitive	pricing

•		Consistent	quality	of	
service and delivery

•		Integrated	service	
offering
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STAKEHolDER ENGAGEMENT CoNTINuED
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STakeHOLdeR enGaGemenT mOdeL continued

StAKehoLDeR AND  
why we eNGAGe

NAtuRe oF eNGAGemeNt mAteRIAL ISSueS ACtIoNS AND  
AReAS oF FoCuS

GOveRnmenT and ReGULaTORy aUTHORITIeS

Licences to operate and 
provide a clear and 
supportive regulatory 
environment

•		Written	
correspondence

•	Engagement	forums

•	Personal	meetings	

•		Compliance	with	
industry regulations

•		Contribution	to	
shaping industry policy

•		Job	creation	and	
retention

•		Fair	and	sustainable		
business practices

•		Providing	regular	and	
transparent information

•		Proactive	consulting	as	
required

•		Full	contribution	to	the	
fiscus through taxation 
and levies

cOmmUnITIeS

Contributing to 
upliftment of 
communities around  
our business

•		Corporate	social	
investment initiatives

•	Media	releases

•		Good	corporate	
citizenship

•		Sustainable	business	
practices

•		Employment	
opportunities

•		Sponsorships	and	
donations

•		Support	for	key	
community 
developments 

•		Donation	to	local	
schools project

•		Responsive	
contribution to 
community interests 
and needs

•	Focused	CSI	strategy

SUPPLIeRS and PaRTneRS

Good value, reliable 
and superior quality 
technology that 
supports our products

•		Relationship	
management 
meetings and visits

•		Technology	
conferences

•		Performance	audits	
and reports

•	Supplier	days

•	Contract	negotiations

•		Continued	growth	
and meaningful 
relationships

•		Efficient	payment	
cycles

•	Long-term	relationships

IN CoNCLuSIoN
Adapt It is committed to building and maintaining open and sustainable relationships with all stakeholders 
and will continue to put in place systems to facilitate this dialogue and ensure that Adapt It is responsive to the 
views and interests of its stakeholders.
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DIRECToRATE

cRaIG cHambeRS 41
CFA, pDm, bCom
Independent non-executive 
Chairman
Appointed 3 may 2011

Craig is certified as a 
Chartered Financial Analyst, 
having obtained a bCom degree 
majoring in accounting from the 
university of the witwatersrand 
and a postgraduate business 
Administration Certificate (pDm) 
from wits business School. Craig 
has been an asset manager for  
15 years, with five years at Standard 
Corporate and merchant bank 
(SCmb) Asset management as 
a unit trust manager. Craig is a 
certified director via the Institute of 
Directors (IoDSA) and is currently 
the managing Director of old 
mutual Global Index trackers, 
a fund management business 
managing assets in excess of  
R48 billion internationally and 
in South Africa. In october 2012, 
Craig was appointed as the 
independent non-executive 
Chairman of Adapt It holdings 
Limited.

Chairman of the Nominations 
Committee
Member of the Remuneration 
Committee

bOnGIwe nTULI 35
CA (SA)
Independent non-executive 
director
Appointed 27 may 2008

bongiwe is a Chartered 
Accountant with international 
commercial experience and has 
attended various management 
programmes in the united 
Kingdom and Canada. bongiwe 
has previously held various 
finance, treasury and risk 
management positions within 
Anglo American at their head 
office and in their subsidiaries 
in South Africa, europe, Canada 
and the united Kingdom. 
bongiwe joined Grindrod on her 
return to South Africa in 2008 
as the Chief Financial officer 
of Grindrod Freight Services. In  
November 2012, bongiwe was 
appointed by Grindrod as a 
member of the group executive 
committee in the position of 
executive: Corporate Services.

Chairperson of the Audit and 
Risk Committee
Member of the Nominations 
Committee
Member of the Remuneration 
Committee

THembISa dInGaan 40
bproc, LLb, LLm, h Dip tax
Independent non-executive 
director
Appointed 3 may 2011

thembisa is a qualified attorney, 
having obtained her bproc and 
LLb from the university of Natal, 
an LLm degree from harvard 
university and a higher Diploma 
in taxation from the university of 
the witwatersrand. thembisa is 
currently a member of the board 
of Directors of the Development 
bank of South Africa (DbSA) where 
she has the responsibility of sitting 
as a member of various board 
committees and is chairperson 
of the Credit and Investment 
Committee. thembisa also holds 
directorships on the boards 
of mustek Limited, JSe Limited, 
Imperial holdings Limited and is 
chairperson of ukhamba holdings 
(pty) Ltd. thembisa is a former 
member of the trade and Industry 
Standing Advisory Committee on 
Company Law. 

Chairperson of the Remuneration 
Committee
Member of the Audit and Risk 
Committee
Member of the Nominations 
Committee
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OLIveR FORTUIn 47 
mbA
Independent non-executive 
director
Appointed 8 February 2013

oliver has more than 23 years’ 
experience in the technology 
industry, having held various 
leadership positions in the ICt 
sector. he held various executive 
positions with the Ibm  Corporation 
for over 15 years including 
General manager of the Ibm 
pC business for Africa as well as 
General manager of Ibm South 
Africa and sub-Saharan Africa. 
oliver was hewlett packard South 
Africa director for hp Services, 
and headed hp’s technology 
Services Group (tSG) and also 
served as managing Director of 
hewlett packard South Africa. 
oliver is currently the managing 
Director of i1 Solutions (a privately 
owned technology company) 
and has been director and  
lead independent non-executive 
director for the ellies holdings 
Group since April 2011.

Chairman of the Social and 
Ethics Committee
Member of the Audit and Risk 
Committee

SIbUSISO (SbU) SHabaLaLa 41
bCom 
Chief Executive Officer
 
Appointed 5 December 2007

Sbu has a bachelor’s degree in 
Commerce and a postgraduate 
diploma in Financial Information 
Systems. with more than 18 years 
of It experience, Sbu joined 
Adapt It as a software developer, 
managing the implementation of 
oracle applications throughout 
the Illovo Group, with operations 
in various African countries. he 
founded Adapt It (pty) Ltd nine 
years ago as a black-owned 
Sme in the It sector. As managing 
Director, Sbu grew Adapt It (pty) 
Ltd into a successful ICt business. 
through a merger with Infowave 
holdings in 2007, Sbu effected the 
listing of Adapt It on the JSe and 
has been Chief executive officer 
and director of Adapt It holdings 
Limited since December 2007. 

TIFFany dUnSdOn 42  
CA (SA)
Financial Director
 
Appointed 18 April 2002

tiffany is a qualified Chartered 
Accountant and served her 
traineeship with Deloitte and 
touche. tiffany joined british 
Airways in the united Kingdom 
where she was involved with several 
major business re-engineering 
and It outsourcing projects. on 
her return to South Africa, tiffany 
was contracted by Computer 
Sciences Corporation on the 
due diligence of outsourcing old 
mutual’s It infrastructure services. 
tiffany joined Adapt It in 2000 in 
a consulting capacity and was 
appointed as Financial Director 
in April 2002 and Chief executive 
officer in December 2003. tiffany 
became the Commercial Director 
of Adapt It holdings Limited after 
the merger of Infowave holdings 
and Adapt It (pty) Ltd. tiffany is 
currently Financial Director of 
Adapt It holdings Limited after 
being appointed in April 2013.



ADAPT IT INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

12

CHAIRMAN’S REpoRT

Adapt IT has again maintained its record for 
consistent growth in the year under review.  

Basic earnings per share grew 27%, well above  
the average for the ICT sector and the  

share price gained 93% year-on-year. 

Craig Chambers

Accepting this new role as Chairman of the board of 
Adapt It is a privilege and an exciting opportunity.  
I have observed the Adapt It management team 
do a sterling job in implementing the Company’s 
sustainable growth strategy over the past 18 months 
by ensuring solid organic growth and acquiring well-
suited, complementary businesses. I look forward 
to the board’s continued contribution to Adapt It’s 
plans of growing into a significant player within the It 
industry in South Africa.

peRFoRmANCe oVeRVIew
Adapt It has again maintained its record for consistent 
growth in the year under review. basic earnings per 
share grew 27%, well above the average for the ICt 
sector and the share price gained 93% year-on-year. 
It is pleasing to see the results of the sustained pursuit 
of the Adapt It strategy to increase shareholder value.  
this is good news for all stakeholders as continued 
profit expansion ensures more skilled employment 
opportunities, stronger dividend flows, a more 
significant budget for our social responsibility projects 
and better long-term sustainability. 

Despite the challenging economic environment 
in every market Adapt It serves, the Company has 
continued to grow turnover in the last five financial 
years. this performance has proven the ability of 
Adapt It leadership to build a sustainable and high 
performance business.

Foreign markets represent 23% of Adapt It revenue, 
with a specific focus on the rest of Africa. we now 
provide long-term services in 13 African countries. this 
organic growth into countries outside South Africa 
is a key factor in diversifying risk, growing our dollar-
based revenues and enhancing sustainability. 

During the year, we acquired Swicon360 (pty) Ltd 
(Swicon), effective 1 october 2012, which has 
provided a strategic entry into SAp® and cloud 
services, which further enhances our technology 
service offering. 

we have acted decisively in the past year to realign 
our business and strengthen our competitive 
positions in key market sectors and beyond. Adapt It 
is now better structured, more diversified and solidly 
positioned to unlock the growth in business value that 
we have identified as part of our long-term strategy 
of pursuing steady organic growth combined with 
strategic acquisitions.

GoVeRNANCe AND SuStAINAbILIty
Adapt It complies fully with the letter and spirit 
of good corporate governance. the board and 
individual directors of Adapt It strive to ensure that the 
Company is managed in an efficient, accountable, 
responsible and ethical manner and to this end, 
endorse its compliance with King III.  

the summary report of compliance with the King 
III Code is on pages 28 and 29 and corporate 
governance matters are covered in depth on pages 
22 to 27 of this report.  

Adapt It remains committed to the pillars of 
sustainability, encompassing economic, employment, 
social and environmental practices. Adapt It believes 
that commitment to all our stakeholders is fulfilled 
by intentionally strengthening our reputation as a 
trusted company in touch with the evolving needs 
and aspirations of our society. As a consequence, 
time, effort and money are invested in responding to 
the needs of all current and prospective stakeholders. 
this integrated annual report reflects the progress 
made this year towards integrated sustainability 
reporting.
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DIReCtoRAte
I would like to welcome respected ICt professional, 
oliver Fortuin, as an independent non-executive 
board member of Adapt It. oliver brings a wealth 
of ICt experience and we look forward to him 
contributing to Adapt It’s stated growth strategy. 
oliver will serve as an independent non-executive 
member of the board of Directors, Chairman of the 
Social and ethics Committee and a member of the 
Audit and Risk Committee.

Further changes to the board include the 
appointment of thembisa Dingaan as the 
Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee. 
thembisa was first appointed to the board in may 
2011 as an independent non-executive director.

DIVIDeNDS
the board declared ordinary dividend number 11 of  
5,56 cents per share payable in September as 
further detailed on page 44. this represents a four 
times dividend cover. the Company has a policy of 
declaring a dividend at the end of the financial year 
and not at the interim reporting date.

ANNuAL GeNeRAL meetING
our annual general meeting will be held on  
8 November 2013. Notice of the meeting appears on 
page 97.

outLooK
In the face of challenging market conditions, we will 
continue to pursue our strategy of realigning the 
business model to strengthen our competitive position 
whilst delivering real growth – via organic expansion 
and value accretive acquisitions. we have the right 
people, skills and technologies to take advantage 
of opportunities in our identified competencies, 
expanding into new markets and servicing existing 
customers in the best possible way.

our outlook for the year ahead is positive and our 
longer-term outlook is certainly optimistic as we 
continue to build upon the strong foundation we 
have established to create a sizeable, leading ICt 
business.

AppReCIAtIoN
Adapt It is in the hands of a high quality board of 
Directors. I wish to thank my fellow board members 
for their support and expert contributions during 
the period under review. the skills and diversity of 
the board are well matched to Adapt It’s current 
requirements and are appropriately reflected in 
the allocation of responsibilities to members of the 
various sub-committees.  

I wish to thank the Chief executive officer,  
Sbu Shabalala, and his executive team for a job well 
done. the board and I are extremely confident in their 
ability to execute Adapt It’s approved strategy and to 
continue to ensure the success of the Company in 
years to come.

I would like to thank the management team and 
employees for their role in Adapt It’s excellent set of 
results and look forward to this performance being 
consistently maintained.

Finally, my sincere thanks go to our customers, 
shareholders, partners and service providers for their 
on-going support of Adapt It.

mr craig chambers
Independent non-executive Chairman
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INtRoDuCtIoN
under challenging market conditions, Adapt It 
delivered another strong financial performance in 
the 2013 financial year, through the implementation 
of the sustainable growth and diversification strategy 
adopted by the board of Directors.

Adapt It’s strategy aims to deliver profitable growth at 
a higher than average rate of return than the South 
African ICt market.

Strategic achievements in the review period included:

•	 	Increasing	 the	 Education	 sector	 market	
penetration into the African market;

•	 	Improving	the	Manufacturing	sector’s	operational	
efficiency;

•	 	Introducing	SAP® and Cloud Services (powered by 
SAp®) through the Swicon360 (pty) Ltd (Swicon) 
acquisition;

•	 	Enhancing	 operational	 efficiencies	 through	 the	
one Adapt It amalgamation project;

•	 Maintaining	a	level	3	B-BBEE	rating;	and

•	 Improving	customer	service.

GRoup FINANCIAL peRFoRmANCe
Revenue for the year increased by 36% to R306 million, 
with annuity revenue representing a healthy 40% of 
total turnover.

operating profit grew by 32% to R29,4 million, 
maintaining the operating margin at 10%. basic 
earnings per share grew by 27%, while headline 
earnings per share grew by 28% on the prior year, 
substantially above the average of the ICt sector.

ReVIew oF opeRAtING DIVISIoNS
Adapt It operates as specialised business divisions, 
led strategically by a core team of executives under 
a single Adapt It brand. these divisions are run as 
regional and sector-focused It solutions businesses for 
enhanced operational and financial performance, 
segmented in the following manner:

CHIEF EXECuTIVE oFFICER’S REpoRT

Adapt IT offers shareholders an opportunity to 
invest in a leading South African based solutions 

provider which is positioned to take advantage of 
specialised technology platforms across  

the fastest growing market sectors. 

Sbu Shabalala

THe edUcaTIOn SeGmenT
the education division provides turnkey enterprise 
Resource planning (eRp) solution, ItS Integrator, and 
services to the higher education sector worldwide.

the division increased market penetration in the 
education sector and continued to outperform 
turnover growth expectations, delivering an improved 
profit before tax of R16,0 million for the year from  
R14,5 million.

THe manUFacTURInG SeGmenT
the manufacturing division provides tranquillity eRp; 
oracle JDedwards eRp; Safety, health, environment 
and	Quality	(SHE-Q)	solutions;	and	SAP® hCm Cloud 
Services.

the division increased customer penetration through 
increased offerings and extracted operational 
efficiencies, delivering an increased profit before tax 
of R15,8 million for the year, up from R10,9 million.

the acquired SAp® hCm Cloud Service, now forming 
part of the manufacturing segment, contributed 
profit before tax of R4,1 million for the nine months it 
formed part of Adapt It.

THe FInancIaL SeRvIceS SeGmenT
the Financial Services division provides business 
Intelligence (bI) solutions and services to the Financial 
Services sector in South Africa.

the market conditions within the Financial Services 
sector were challenging in the year under review, 
due to Financial Services customers reviewing their 
operating costs and implementing cost-cutting 
measures which included delaying and downsizing 
various It projects. the division was resilient and 
contributed a profit before tax of R3,2 million for the 
year (R3,5 million for the six months to the previous 
year-end).
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poSItIoNeD FoR FuRtheR GRowth
Adapt It is progressing the initiative of attracting new 
customers, led by operational management which is 
implementing an organic growth strategy that aims 
to achieve the following key objectives:

•	 	To	 consolidate	 the	 sector	 focus	 in	 Education,	
manufacturing and Financial Services; 

•	 	To	 improve	 our	 South	African	 regional	 presence	
and grow in the local market;

•	 	To	extend	our	presence	 in	 the	 rest	of	 the	African	
markets; and

•	 	To	 leverage	 our	 technology	 vendor	 partnerships	
and extend our It service offering.

Further, Adapt It continues to seek earnings 
enhancing acquisitions, led by the executive board 
members, who pursue an acquisitive growth strategy 
that aims to achieve the following objectives:

•	 	To	 acquire	 profitable	 businesses	with	“blue	 chip”	
customers to improve market presence;

•	 	To	remove	barriers	to	entry	into	new	markets	and	
geographies;

•	 	To	 acquire	 intellectual	 property	 and	 accelerate	
our technology penetration; and

•	 	To	 complete	 our	 offering	 of	 IT	 products	 and	
services provided to our customers.

Adapt It continues to enjoy the benefits of a strong 
financial position, a recurring revenue model and low 
capital expenditure, all of which position Adapt It for 
long-term success. we are continuously committing 
ourselves to enhancing stakeholder value through 
growing the business and profit sustainably.

FutuRe pRoSpeCtS
Generally market prospects in developing markets 
are improving for all sectors and with that, the 
expectation is that more companies will reinvest in 
Information technology. 

having significantly improved our service and product 
portfolio and now being strategically positioned 
to grow business in differentiated sectors, markets 
and geographies, Adapt It expects to significantly  
improve solution and services revenue, whilst 
prudently exploring diversification opportunities 
into identified growth sectors through an acquisitive 
growth strategy.

we believe that Adapt It is well-placed to continue 
improving its performance and that it continues to be 
a compelling investment case for shareholders.

ADApt It StRAteGIC poSItIoNING
Adapt It has sector-focused lines of business, which 
can bring the full reach of our services to customers, 
under a single brand. 

we have adopted a shared services model in order 
to meet internal customer satisfaction expectations, 
to reduce administration costs through simplification 
and standardisation of best practices and to align 
the organisation on common objectives. we believe 
that this will facilitate mergers and acquisitions 
integration, rationalise the Company’s operating 
model, whilst securing the return on investment 
(RoI) in the deployment of technology and thereby 
positioning Adapt It for further success.

the Shared Services team supports each division’s 
growth strategy to align with the corporate strategy, 
in addition to the administration tasks and allocation 
of capital and financing resources, to facilitate co-
operative selling and drive market, geographic and 
sector intelligence.

Key eLemeNtS oF the GRoup’S StRAteGy
the Adapt It strategy remains to increase revenue 
and profitability, at a much higher rate than the South 
African ICt market, by being a high growth entity, in 
order to exceed stakeholder expectations.

the Adapt It board has the appropriate organisational 
profile and skill set to deliver on the growth strategy, 
supported by each of the operating divisions: 
education, manufacturing and Financial Services, 
which have operational executives responsible for 
the organic growth and technology strategies.

ImPROved SecTOR FOcUS dRIvInG ORGanIc GROwTH
Adapt It focuses on improving the ability of the 
existing businesses to increase revenue and to 
develop new capabilities in key markets: education, 
manufacturing and Financial Services, in order 
to secure more customers, diversify products and 
services and to move up the services value chain.

each of the businesses in Adapt It has shown the 
capability to innovate and grow organically in the 
past and it is necessary to nurture this capability and 
provide the ideal environment for these businesses 
to continue to prosper. Adapt It therefore views each 
of	 the	 existing	 businesses	 as	“growth	 engines”	 and	
encourages this with the proven entrepreneurship 
that exists within Adapt It.
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CHIEF EXECuTIVE oFFICER’S REpoRT CoNTINuED

STRUcTURed TecHnOLOGy dIveRSIFIcaTIOn
we seek to leverage our partnerships with major 
multinational Information technology (It) vendors, 
namely: Ibm, microsoft, oracle and SAp®, in order to 
improve our outsourcing capabilities and to offer 
customers better performance, lower costs, faster 
services, application variety, improved quality and 
reliable technology solutions.

this focus has enabled Adapt It to reduce the cost of 
new technology development and adoption, thereby 
ensuring technology diversification success.

eaRnInGS enHancInG acqUISITIOnS
the Commercial Department manages an 
established acquisition process across all of the 
Company’s operating divisions, working with the 
operational and service management on due 
diligence and integration implementation plans, 
in order to integrate all acquisitions swiftly and 
successfully. 

the acquisition strategy has proven successful in 
supplementing organic growth efforts and continues 
to be a key focus area, allowing Adapt It to quickly 
build new technology capabilities into existing 
established operations, remove barriers to entry into 
adjacent markets, and increase customer reach.

our approach is to seek high quality and profitable 
technology companies in targeted sectors and 
geographies to improve Adapt It’s geographic 
presence in South Africa and gain exposure in higher 
margin and growth markets. 

the criteria we look for in businesses that join  
Adapt It include having sound management 
capabilities and successful underlying business 
models, which can benefit from the platform created 
by being part of a well-managed, larger and 
entrepreneurial It company.

STRaTeGIc key PeRFORmance IndIcaTORS (kPIs)
the Adapt It board of Directors monitors the strategy 
implementation and reviews the following measures 
when monitoring the successes of the Company’s 
growth strategy:

non-financial metrics – the board of Directors and 
divisional executive teams monitor the environmental, 
employee and social aspects of the Company’s 
operations, and have adopted the most appropriate 
aspects of the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) 
framework and report on these.

In addition, the board and executive teams monitor 
other performance metrics for the divisions, including 
gross margins, operating margins, working capital 
metrics and cash generation, to monitor financial 
performance.

Growth in Revenue – the increase in Company 
revenue is a measure of the growth achieved year-
on-year and this is measured against annual growth 
targets set by the board in the medium term.

Operating Profit (ebITda) – the earnings before 
interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation reflect the 
true operating performance of the Company based 
on an absolute value.

ReVeNue (Rm)
306

225
181173

78

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

earnings per Share – the earnings per share metric 
is the ultimate measure of the business’s profitability. 
monitoring the earnings on a per share basis ensures 
that any capital increases are aligned with the overall 
Company strategy and improve shareholder value.

eARNINGS peR ShARe (cents)
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INVeStmeNt CASe
Adapt It offers shareholders an opportunity to invest 
in a leading South African based solutions provider 
which is positioned to take advantage of specialised 
technology platforms across the fastest growing 
market sectors. our software focus provides investors 
with a unique quality of earnings that can only be 
derived in high-annuity based businesses, like Adapt 
It, diversified across the education, manufacturing 
and Financial Services sectors, providing investors 
a defensive hedge against a decline from any one 
sector. 

Adapt It has strong operational and dynamic 
strategic management teams with extensive 
experience in the ICt solutions industry and with a 
successful track record in delivering organic and 
acquisition-led growth.

AppReCIAtIoN
on behalf of Adapt It, I take this opportunity to thank 
members of the board of Directors for their leadership 
and the divisional executives for their dedication.

Share Price – the Company’s share price is an independent measure of the value of the business set by trading 
on the JSe. Although the share price is affected by market trends over which the Company has no control, 
the board considers the share price to be the key external metric reflecting investors’ view of the Company’s 
performance and compares it against the Software and Services Sector, as well as the general market trends.

I extend my most grateful thanks to the Adapt It staff, 
both long serving and new, without whose hard work, 
team spirit, skills, as well as appetite for growth and 
change, our Company would not be the industry 
leader it is. my sincere thanks go to the families of all 
Adapt It staff for their support.

most importantly, sincere thanks to our customers 
for entrusting us with key aspects of their businesses, 
where we strive to add sustainable business value for 
the long term. thanks also to our partners and service 
providers for their continued support in achieving this 
goal.

Sbu Shabalala
Chief executive officer
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FINANCIAl DIRECToR’S REpoRT

Adapt IT is strategically well-positioned in all 
of its operations and continues to grow from 

strength to strength. Adapt IT’s diversification and 
geographic reach provides resilience  

and synergistic opportunities. 

tiffany Dunsdon

INtRoDuCtIoN
Adapt It had a good financial year from both a 
revenue growth and profitability perspective due to 
the consistent pursuit of its strategy. the acquisition of 
100% of Swicon360 (pty) Ltd (Swicon) from 1 october 
2012, for a consideration of R11,7 million, provided 
a strategic entry into the SAp® and cloud services 
markets.

FINANCIAL peRFoRmANCe
Revenue increased by 36% to R306,0 million from 
R224,8 million,12% being due to organic growth 
and 24% being from acquisitions. the compound 
annual growth rate for revenue over five years is 39%. 
the segmental analysis of revenue is provided on  
page 94, and shown graphically below, demonstrating 
a good balance and spread of risk. Adapt It has 
a high annuity income ratio of 40% (2012: 46%), 
providing sustainability through economic cycles.

Foreign revenue comprises 23% of total revenue. the 
majority of this is from other African countries and 
is Rand denominated. Foreign currency gains in 
the period totalled R1,0 million. the foreign currency 
exposure at year-end totals R7,2 million and is set out 
on page 91.

profit from operations improved by 32% to R29,4 million 
(2012: R22,2 million) and the operating profit margin 
remained at 10%.  

Finance costs increased marginally to R0,8 million 
(2012: R0,7 million). the effective tax rate decreased 
to 22% (2012: 29,5%), primarily due to retrospective 
research and development allowances and an 
over-provision for foreign tax in 2012. R8,9 million  
(2012: R3,9 million) of assessed losses were utilised 
in the current year to offset taxable profits (assessed 
losses relate to historic and acquired assessed losses, 
not current operations). total estimated tax losses of 
R9,7 million (2012: R7,0 million) are carried forward 
for offset against future taxable profits. most of these 
are expected to be utilised in the forthcoming year 
and accordingly they have been recognised in the 
deferred tax asset.

profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of  
R24,1 million was 33% up on the prior year  
(2012: R18,1 million), while earnings per share (epS) 
increased by 27%.

StAtemeNt oF FINANCIAL poSItIoN
Shareholders’ equity increased from R70,2 million 
to R92,2 million. this was a result of the total 
comprehensive income of R26,3 million  
(2012: R18,5 million) which includes a revaluation 
of R1,6 million on the land and building owned 
in pretoria. the 10th dividend of 4,84 cents per 
share, covered four times by earnings, was paid to 
shareholders in September 2012. the 11th dividend of 
5,56 cents per share, on a four times dividend cover 
ratio, will be paid to shareholders in September 2013.

the net debt:equity ratio is currently negligible at 
0,7% (2012: 2,6%). Adapt It has borrowing capacity 
(limited to a gearing ratio of 50%) to fund further 
growth, however, it is envisaged that additional equity 
will be raised, based on the growth plans.

Adapt It repurchased 214 000 (0,1%) of its issued 
ordinary shares in the open market in october 2012 

Revenue by segment

2013

R306,0
million

R224,8
million

2012

 2013  2012
manufacturing  44%  43%
education  40%  46%
Financial Services  16%   11%
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under the general authority granted by shareholders 
for R0,3 million at an average price of 137,5 cents per 
share (2012: 2 136 687 shares (1,9%) for R2,4 million). 
the shares are held as treasury shares.

Deferred income increased from R42,5 million to  
R48,0 million. Deferred income is mainly in the 
education sector where revenue in respect of annual 
licence fees for product development and support 
is received annually in advance at the beginning 
of each calendar year and the service obligation 
extends six months beyond the financial year-end. 
Furthermore, there is certain project revenue received 
in advance.

the business is not capital intensive. the property 
and equipment policy is consistent with the prior 
year and there have been no material changes 
to the useful life of any property and equipment.  
R7,9 million (2012: R1,2 million) of property and 
equipment was acquired during the year. R1,7 million 
(2012: R0,8 million) related to computer hardware.  
R4,3 million (2012: R0,3 million) related to 
improvements to the owner-occupied property 
located in pretoria. Authorised but not contracted 
capital commitments of R5,2 million, disclosed on 
page 86, relates mainly to computer hardware and 
building improvements and will be financed through 
internal cash resources.

Goodwill increased from R25,6 million to R38,0 million 
due to the Swicon acquisition. the consideration paid 
for Swicon effectively included amounts in relation 
to the benefit of the expected synergies, revenue 
growth, new market penetration and future market 
development.

trade and other receivables increased from  
R61,4 million to R64,0 million. the average debtors’ 
days outstanding at the end of the year deteriorated 
slightly to 78 days (2012: 75,9 days). the ageing of 
the debtors is provided on page 89 and compared 
to the prior year. 

Intensive debt collection action has been taken in 
respect of specific debtors.

BORROWInGS,	CASH	FLOW	AnD	LIQUIDITy
Cash generated from operations before working 
capital changes increased to R34,6 million from  
R28,9 million in 2012.

Net cash and cash equivalents decreased from  
R24,7 million to R22,7 million. Interest-bearing 
borrowings decreased by R1,2 million to R0,6 million.

Adapt It has adequate funding for all capital 
commitments through its cash resources and bank 
facilities.

FINANCIAL CoNtRoLS AND RISK mANAGemeNt
the internal control framework, which includes 
financial controls, has been approved by the Audit 
and Risk Committee and the control environment 
will be further evaluated in 2014 by the internal audit 
function to improve the identification of risks and 
improvement of controls.

the internal audit approach has been dealt with 
under the Audit and Risk Committee report. the 
financial risk management is covered on page 89 of 
the annual financial statements.

ACCouNtING poLICIeS
the accounting policies adopted and methods 
of computation used in the preparation of the 
annual financial statements are in terms of IFRS and 
consistent with those used in the previous financial 
year. the adoption of new or revised accounting 
standards, interpretations and circulars has been 
described on pages 61 to 65.

GoING-CoNCeRN ASSeRtIoN
the board has formally considered the going-
concern assertion for Adapt It and is of the opinion 
that it is appropriate.

poSt bALANCe Sheet eVeNt
the Group undertook a restructure, which became 
effective on 1 July 2013. this will achieve greater 
operational and governance efficiencies and 
strengthen internal controls. the restructure was 
undertaken by amalgamating seven subsidiaries 
into one main operating company, Adapt It (pty) 
Ltd, structured as three geographic divisions. this 
improves the go-to-market position of the business, 
as well as internal communication and collaboration.

CoNCLuSIoN
Adapt It is strategically well-positioned in all of its 
operations and continues to grow from strength to 
strength. Adapt It’s diversification and geographic 
reach provides resilience and synergistic opportunities. 
the board expects revenue and profitability across all 
segments to continue to improve.

Tiffany dunsdon
Financial Director

Revenue by geography

2012

 2013  2012
South Africa  77%  57%
other African Countries  19%  36%
Australasia  2%   5%
europe  1%  1%
North America  1%  1%

2013
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FIVE-YEAR REVIEW

Ann- 
ualised 16 months

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 28 February
2013 2012 2011 2010 2010 2009

OPeRaTInG ReSULTS
Revenue (R’000)  306 035  224 769  180 907  173 364  208 452  77 497 
turnover (R’000)  303 402  219 614  173 533  168 669  198 986  74 865 
earnings before interest, 
    tax, depreciation and 

amortisation (ebItDA) (R’000)  34 445  25 556  18 041  17 385  21 943  12 871 
operating profit (R’000)  29 400  22 207  15 048  15 677  18 930  11 072 
profit for the year/period (R’000)  24 091  18 143  13 246  14 469  16 836  9 829 
profit attributable to equity
   holders of the parent (R’000)  24 091  18 143  11 045  10 500  13 100  9 077 
headline profit (R’000)  24 112  18 126  11 146  9 079  11 678  9 098 
Cash generated from
   operations (R’000)  36 662  29 237  17 653  17 363  21 334  14 570 

FInancIaL POSITIOn
total equity (R’000)  92 234  70 161  48 152  50 504  50 504  32 759 
total assets (R’000)  178 723  146 878  105 614  124 741  124 741  42 117 
total current assets (R’000)  92 038  86 828  61 746  84 975  84 975  28 591 
total liabilities (R’000)  86 489  76 717  57 462  74 237  74 237  9 358 
total current liabilities (R’000)  82 742  72 334  51 715  69 320  69 320  9 358 

FInancIaL RaTIOS
ebItDA margin (%)  11,35  11,64  10,40  10,31  11,03  17,19 
operating profit margin (%)  9,69  10,11  8,67  9,29  9,51  14,79 
Return on equity (%)  29,67  30,67  22,39 32,05 40,44 32,33
Return on assets (%)  14,80  14,37  9,59 17,05 20,21 25,33
Interest-bearing liabilities
   to equity (%)  0,70  2,59  5,83  8,40  8,40 –
Average debtors days (days)  78,54  75,91 61,84 54,92 54,92 69,96
Solvency ratio (times)  2,07  1,91  1,84  1,68  1,68  4,50 
Current ratio (ratio)  1,11  1,20  1,19  1,23  1,23  3,06 
Number of employees (number) 313 277 250 261 261 123

SHaRe PeRFORmance
Number of shares in issue
   at year-end (’000)  108 226  108 440  98 353  95 670  95 670  95 650 
basic and diluted
   earnings per share (cents)  22,25  17,46  11,36  10,93  13,64  9,44 
headline and diluted
    headline earnings  

per share (cents)  22,27  17,45  11,46  12,15  9,46  8,17 
Net asset value per share (cents)  85,18  67,52  49,52  52,77  52,77  34,25 
tangible net asset value
   per share (cents)  36,64  30,70  28,04  35,21  35,21  22,17 
Closing share price 
   at year-end (cents)  235  122  70  49  49  47 
Dividend per share (cents)  4,84  2,84  3,41  1,86  1,86  4,43 
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VAluE ADDED STATEMENT

GROUP GRoup
2013 2012

R’000 % R’000 %

turnover  303 402  219 614 
Less:
Net cost of products and services  95 513  66 394 

Value added  207 889  153 220 

wealth created  207 889  153 220 

Applied to:
employees
Salaries, wages and other benefits  174 688  84,0  125 341  81,8 
providers of capital  6 035  2,9  3 501  2,3 

Interest on borrowings  786  0,4  707  0,5 

Dividends to shareholders  5 249  2,5  2 794  1,8 

Government
taxation  8 324  4,0  9 029  5,9 

Income taxation: normal and deferred  6 642  3,2  7 324  4,8 
Income taxation: secondary taxation on companies  – –  281  0,2 
Regional services council and skills development levies  1 682  0,8  1 424  0,9 

Retained in the Group  18 842  9,1  15 349  10,0 

wealth distributed  207 889  100,0  153 220  100,0

2013

2012

84%  Salaries, wages and 
other benefits

82%  Salaries, wages and 
other benefits

9% Retained in the Group

10% Retained in the Group

3% providers of capital

2% providers of capital

4% taxation

6% taxation
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CoRpoRATE GoVERNANCE 

INtRoDuCtIoN
the board of Directors takes ultimate responsibility 
for the Group’s adherence to sound corporate 
governance standards and ensures that all business 
judgements are made with reasonable care, skill and 
diligence. the board is also committed to and fully 
endorses the principles of the Code of Corporate 
practices and Conduct as set out in the King Report 
on Corporate Governance for South Africa. Sound 
corporate governance structures and processes 
are applied and are considered by the board to be 
pivotal in delivering sustainable growth to the Group.

the King Committee released King III on  
1 September 2009. the JSe mandated that listed 
companies comply with the changes introduced by 
King III in respect of financial years commencing on 
or after march 2010.

For this reason, the board has since made significant 
strides in ensuring compliance with King III, which it 
has adopted and endorsed as a strategic business 
imperative, in order to continue to conduct the 
business with openness, integrity and accountability. 
For the 2013 financial year, with the exception of 
those items outlined below, the board confirms that 
the Group has complied with King III. In addition, a 
King III reference table is included on pages 28 and 
29 of the integrated annual report.

•	 	Elements	of	a	combined	assurance	model	have	
been developed, but require further maturation in 
2014. 

•	 	The	 internal	 audit	 function	 was	 implemented	 at	
the end of 2012 on a risk-based approach and 
outsourced to KpmG. A written assessment of the 
effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal 
controls and risk management has not yet been 
formally implemented. this will be addressed 
during 2014.

•	 	The	 reporting	on	and	 the	provision	of	assurance	
over non-financial sustainability issues other than 
b-bbee are currently the responsibility of the Audit 
and Risk Committee. An independent assurance 
service provider in respect of sustainability 
reporting and respective disclosures will be 
sourced, should the need arise.

•	 	The	Board	has	not	 formalised	a	climate	change	
strategy. other than locating our head office 
and operations in a green building in La Lucia, 
Durban. the businesses by their nature are not 
natural resource intensive nor do they create any 
significant pollution.

the Group’s corporate governance structure is 
represented in the following diagram:

GOveRnance FRamewORk

bOaRd OF dIRecTORS

non-executive  
independent directors executive directors

C Chambers (Chairman) Sbu Shabalala (Ceo)

b Ntuli t Dunsdon (Finance)

t Dingaan

o Fortuin

bOaRd cOmmITTeeS

audit and Risk committee

b Ntuli (Chairperson)

t Dingaan

o Fortuin

Remuneration committee

t Dingaan (Chairman)

b Ntuli 

C Chambers

nominations committee

C Chambers (Chairman)

b Ntuli

t Dingaan

Social and ethics committee

o Fortuin (Chairman)

t Dunsdon

JF Jordaan

boARD oF DIReCtoRS
cOmPOSITIOn
the board comprises four independent non-executive 
directors and two executive directors. the Chairman of 
the board is an independent non-executive director. 
the roles of the Chairman and the Chief executive 
officer are separated and a clear division of authority 
exists between these roles. the non-executive directors 
represent a wide range of skills and experience 
including Information technology, financial, legal and 
commercial. the Directors are aware of their duties to 
ensure that the Group maintains a very high standard 
of corporate governance.

there are no service contracts between the non-
executive directors and the Company. In accordance 
with the memorandum of incorporation, non-
executive directors are required to retire after three 
years in office, or, if appointed by the board between 
shareholders’ meetings, at the next shareholders’ 
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meeting and, if eligible, may offer themselves for re-
election by shareholders. Appointment to the board 
is made in accordance with the Nominations policy 
and procedures, as managed by the Nominations 
Committee on behalf of the board.

mandaTe
the board is responsible for approving the strategic 
direction of the Group and is governed by a Charter 
that sets out the framework of its accountability, 
responsibility and duty to the Company. the board 
conducts its business in the best interest of the 
Company and ensures that the Group performs 
in the interests of its broader stakeholder group, 
including present and future investors in the Group, 
its customers and clients, its business partners, 
employees and the societies in which it operates. 

bOaRd cHaRTeR and ReSPOnSIbILITIeS
the general powers of the board and the directors 
are conferred in the Company’s memorandum of 
incorporation. the terms of reference for the board 
are set out in the board Charter which is reviewed on 
a regular basis. the board Charter includes principles 
recommended by King III and sets out the powers 
and authority of the board. It also provides a clear 
and concise overview of the roles and responsibilities 
of the board members.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SHAREHOLDERS

d
eL
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a

TI
O

n
a

c
c

O
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n
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bILITySTRATEGY – BUDGET – RISK MANAGEMENT

AUDIT AND RISK 
COMMITTEE

REMUNERATION 
COMMITTEE

NOMINATIONS 
COMMITTEE

SOCIAL AND ETHICS 
COMMITTEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:  
CEO, FINANCIAL DIRECTOR

IT STEERING 
COMMITTEE

DIVISIONAL BOARDS  
(KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT)

FINANCIAL REPORTING

the board has a fiduciary duty to act in good faith, 
with due care and diligence, and in the best interest 
of all stakeholders.

the powers and responsibilities of the board include 
the following:

•	 	Giving	 direction	 to	 the	 Company	 through	
management and approving the strategic plan of 
the Group;

•	 	Determining	 policy	 and	 processes	 to	 ensure	 the	
integrity of aspects such as director selection, 
orientation, evaluation and remuneration;

•	 	Considering	 its	 composition,	 including	 its	 size,	
diversity and demographic make-up;

•	 	Assessing	the	key	risk	areas	and	key	performance	
areas of the Group;

•	 	Reviewing	 the	 implementation	 of	 the	 strategic	
plan by management;

•	 	Reserving	specific	powers	 to	 itself	and	delegates	
other matters to key senior management;

•	 	Monitoring	 performance	 through	 various	 Board	
committees; and

•	 	Monitoring	 compliance	 with	 all	 relevant laws, 
regulations and code of business practice and 
ensuring that the Group communicates effectively 
with its stakeholders.

ASSURANCE 
PROVIDED BY:
•	 EXTERNAL	AUDIT
•	 INTERNAL	AUDIT
•	 MANAGEMENT

ADApt It CoRpoRAte GoVeRNANCe StRuCtuRe
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bOaRd and cOmmITTee meeTInGS
the board meets formally four times per year and 
reviews strategy, operational performance, capital 
expenditure, risk management, internal controls, 
communications and other material aspects 
pertaining to the Group’s business. the Audit and 
Risk Committee met four times; the Social and ethics 
Committee, Remuneration Committee and the 
Nominations Committee held one meeting each  
during the year.

bOaRd meeTInG aTTendance

dIRecTOR aTTended HeLd

C Chambers 4 4

b Ntuli 4 4

t Dingaan 4 4

o Fortuin* 2 4

Sbu Shabalala (Ceo) 4 4

t Dunsdon (FD) 4 4

Dr Ab Ravnö** 2 4

m Nhlapo*** 3 4

S Shabalala**** 3 4

*   Appointed 8 February 2013
**  Resigned 26 october 2012
*** Resigned 8 February 2013
**** Resigned 31 march 2013

bOaRd and cOmmITTee evaLUaTIOn
During the year the board and individual directors’ 
performance was assessed in terms of the board 
Charter. the board recognises the importance of 
board evaluation and development, not only as 
it constitutes good governance but also as it is a 
valuable process in improving board performance.

ReGULaTORy cOmPLIance
board members are kept appraised of changes 
to all relevant legislation, including the JSe Listings 
Requirements. these updates are provided by the 
Company’s sponsor and the Company Secretary. 
During the year under review, the board received 
regular updates regarding the developments of the 
Companies Act, the Consumer protection Act, JSe 
Listings Requirements, King III and other governance 
codes.

deLeGaTIOn OF aUTHORITy
the board has delegated authority for specific 
matters to a number of committees which have 
formal terms of reference and report to the board on 
a regular basis.

cOmmITTeeS
the Audit and Risk Committee was formally appointed 
in terms of the Companies Act at the annual general 
meeting held on 26 october 2012.

Furthermore, the board has powers to establish 
committees as it deems appropriate. the board 
therefore has constituted the following committees, 
which is in accordance with the recommendation of 
the King III guidelines:

•	 Remuneration	Committee

•	 nominations	Committee

•	 Social	and	Ethics	Committee

these committees of the board are chaired by an 
independent non-executive director. the executive 
directors attend committee meetings by invitation. 
the board acknowledges its accountability to 
the Group’s stakeholders for the actions of these 
committees and is satisfied that they have met their 
respective responsibilities for the year under review.

AuDIt AND RISK CommIttee
the Audit and Risk Committee operates under an 
approved charter, assisting the board to fulfil its 
oversight responsibility on corporate governance. 
Its specific responsibility is on accurate financial 
reporting and the existence of adequate financial 
systems and controls. It discharges its responsibility 
by evaluating the operations and findings of both 
internal and external audits and assessing the 
appropriateness and adequacy of the accounting 
procedures and the systems of internal financial and 
operational controls. the committee is accountable 
for the process of risk management and internal 
control systems and for reviewing the effectiveness 
thereof. It is also responsible for establishing risk 
and control policies and ensuring these are 
communicated throughout the Group.

During the year under review, the committee held 
four meetings. In accordance with the committee’s 
charter, the committee consists of no less than three 
independent non-executive directors, one of whom is 
the Chairman of the committee. the Chairman of the 
committee is not the Chairman of the board.

the Chief executive officer, Financial Director, internal 
auditors and external auditors are required to attend 
the Audit and Risk Committee meetings but do not 
vote at meetings of the committee. other board 
members also have the right of attendance only. the 
Group’s internal auditors and external auditors have 
unfettered access to members of the committee 
and the Chief executive officer. the internal auditors 
and external auditors attend all formal Audit and 
Risk Committee meetings. the Company Secretary is 
secretary to the committee. the committee reports on 
its findings to the board after each formal committee 
meeting.

the report of the Audit and Risk Committee is set out 
on pages 39 to 41.
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aUdIT and RISk cOmmITTee aTTendance

dIRecTOR aTTended HeLd

b Ntuli (Chairperson) 4 4

t Dingaan 4 4

o Fortuin* 1 4

m Nhlapo** 3 4

* Appointed 8 February 2013
** Resigned 8 February 2013

RemuNeRAtIoN CommIttee
the Remuneration Committee is responsible for 
establishing a formal and transparent procedure 
for developing a policy for executive directors’ 
remuneration and performance appraisals and for 
establishing remuneration packages for key senior 
management. 

In addition to the above, the committee is responsible 
for making recommendations to the board on all 
fees payable to non-executive directors, subject to 
shareholder approval and considers the performance 
and independence of all non-executive directors.

the committee, consisting of three independent non-
executive directors and the Chief executive officer 
(by invitation), is responsible for recommending to 
the board, on an annual basis, the remuneration 
packages of the executive directors.

RemUneRaTIOn cOmmITTee aTTendance

dIRecTOR aTTended HeLd

t Dingaan 
(Chairperson) 1 1

C Chambers 1 1

b Ntuli 1 1

NomINAtIoNS CommIttee
the Nominations Committee is accountable for the 
thorough and objective nomination and appointment 
of members to the board and committees of the 
board. In so doing, the committee regularly reviews 
the structure, size and composition of the board 
and evaluates the balance of race, gender, skills, 
knowledge and experience of members.

the committee assists in the preparation of 
descriptions of roles and capabilities required 
for appointments, satisfies itself with regard to 
succession planning and that processes are in 
place with regard to both board and senior group 
appointments, monitors the leadership needs of 
the board and recommends procedures for annual 
director performance evaluations. It ensures that 
board candidates have sufficient time to devote 

to board duties; appointees receive formal letters 
of appointment and additional communications 
detailing duties and time commitments, together with 
induction plans.

the Nominations Committee makes recom-
mendations to the board regarding the re-
appointment of non-executive directors, the 
continuation in service of directors and the 
appointment of directors to executive or other offices 
and appointments to the committees of the board.

the Nominations Committee meets at least once 
a year and is chaired by an independent non-
executive director. 

nOmInaTIOnS cOmmITTee aTTendence

dIRecTOR aTTended HeLd

C Chambers 
(Chairman)

1 1

b Ntuli 1 1

t Dingaan 1 1

SoCIAL AND ethICS CommIttee
the Social and ethics Committee is accountable for 
ensuring the existence of an ethical and responsible 
relationship between the Group and the society in 
which it operates, through a code of ethics.

Compliance by all employees to the high moral, 
ethical and legal standards of the code is mandatory, 
and appropriate action will be taken in respect of any 
and all instances of non-compliance.

In addition, it establishes formal and transparent 
arrangements to achieve equity in the workplace 
through the promotion of equal opportunity and fair 
treatment via the elimination of unfair discrimination. 
It further implements affirmative action measures 
to redress the disadvantages in employment 
experience by designated groups, so ensuring their 
equitable representation at all levels in the workplace. 
It addresses training and development, a safe and 
healthy workplace and support to those affected by 
hIV/AIDS.

the committee oversees the broad-based black 
economic empowerment (b-bbee) of the Group, 
its corporate social investment and enterprise 
development activities as well as its environmental 
progress and broader stakeholder relations.

the committee meets at least once a year and is 
chaired by an independent non-executive director.
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SOcIaL and eTHIcS cOmmITTee aTTendance

dIRecTOR aTTended HeLd

o Fortuin (Chairman) 1 1

t Dunsdon 1 1

JF Jordaan 1 1

eXeCutIVe CommIttee
the executive Committee meets regularly to deliberate 
on matters of strategy, budget, business planning and 
the effective operation of the business and monitors 
the performance of the divisions. the committee 
provides leadership on key issues to divisions. the 
committee comprises the Chief executive officer and 
Finance Director.

CompANy SeCRetARy
All directors have access to the advice and services 
of the Company Secretary who is responsible for 
ensuring proper administration and sound corporate 
governance procedures. All directors are provided 
with access to information that may be relevant to 
the proper discharge of their duties. the Company 
Secretary provides guidance to the directors on their 
responsibilities within the prevailing regulatory and 
statutory environment and the manner in which such 
responsibilities should be discharged.

the Company Secretary function is outsourced to 
Statucor (pty) Ltd (Statucor). Statucor’s client base 
includes listed and non-listed entities whom they 
advise in accordance with the Companies Act as 
well as the provisions of the South African Corporate 
business Administration as defined by the Southern 
African Institute of Chartered Secretaries and 
Administrators. their approach delivers an informed 
interpretation of the Combined Code (set of principles 
of good corporate governance), with specific 
attention being paid to King III. they use a structured 
approach to implementing and maintaining a sound 
system of corporate governance, which allows the 
board to highlight the actions needed by the business 
to comply with the requirements of King III. Statucor is 
considered by the board to be suitably qualified to 
carry out the function of Company Secretary.

In accordance with the JSe Listings Requirements, 
the board has carried out a formal evaluation 
of the Company Secretary’s performance and 
competence and has concluded that Statucor is 
both competent to perform its duties and is fit and 
proper for the position. the board has also evaluated 
and concluded that the Company Secretary retains 
an arm’s-length relationship with the board. It is  not 
a director of the Company, nor related to, or in any 
other manner connected with, any of the Directors in 
any manner which could cause there to be a conflict 
of interest.

mANAGemeNt RepoRtING
Comprehensive management reporting disciplines 
are in place and include the preparation of annual 
budgets by all divisions and quarterly operational 
management reports. 

the Group’s budget is reviewed by the executive 
Committee and approved by the board. monthly 
results are reported against approved budgets and 
compared to the prior year. profit projections and 
cash flow forecasts are updated regularly, while 
working capital and cash levels are monitored on an 
ongoing basis. the operational reports are reviewed, 
in line with the Company’s sustainable growth 
strategy, on a quarterly basis. 

DeALING IN CompANy ShAReS
In terms of the JSe Limited’s rules, no director, officer or 
employee of the Company may deal either directly 
or indirectly in the Group’s shares at any time on the 
basis of having access to price-sensitive information, 
nor may a director or officer of the Company deal 
in the Group’s shares during closed periods. Closed 
periods extend from the end of the Group’s financial 
half-year and year-end until the publication of 
the relevant results. Closed periods also include 
cautionary closed periods, being the period during 
which Adapt It holdings Limited is trading under a 
cautionary announcement.

All dealings in shares of Adapt It holdings Limited by 
Company directors and the Company Secretary are 
reported on the JSe Stock exchange News Service 
(SeNS) within 48 hours of the trade. All trades must 
be pre-approved by a duly authorised director of the 
Company.

INVeStoR ReLAtIoNS
the board requires objective and honest 
communication with investors in a timely, relevant 
and balanced manner. It is practice to engage with 
shareholders on a frequent basis. the Group’s investor 
information is posted timeously on the website (www. 
adaptit.co.za).

INteRNAL AuDIt
the Group acknowledges the importance of an 
independent strategically aligned internal audit 
function to assist the Audit and Risk Committee in 
discharging its responsibilities. Adapt It holdings 
Limited has outsourced the provision of internal audit 
services to an appropriately qualified external service 
provider, being KpmG Services (pty) Ltd, for the 2014 
financial year. 

Internal audit is mandated by and functions in terms 
of an approved charter which describes its purpose, 
authority and responsibilities.

the internal audit function is independent of all other 
organisational functions, reports directly to the Audit 
and Risk Committee and has free and unrestricted 
access to all areas within the Group, including 
management, employees, activities, locations and 
information.

Internal audit activities are performed in compliance 
with International Internal Audit practice and the 
methodology and standards required by the South 
African Institute of Internal Auditors. professional 
standards operating within the internal audit 
function will, once in five years, be evaluated by an 
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independent party to continuously improve the 
quality of the internal audit staff and the quality of 
completed internal audit assignments.

the primary responsibility of the internal audit function 
is to the board and its committees in discharging its 
governance responsibilities and, as a minimum, to 
perform the following functions:

•	 	Evaluating	the	Company’s	governance	processes;

•	 	Assessing	 	 the	effectiveness	of	 risk	management	
and the internal control framework;

•	 	Systematically	analysing	and	evaluating	business	
processes and associated controls; and

•	 	Providing	a	source	of	information,	as	appropriate,	
regarding instances of fraud, corruption, unethical 
behaviour and irregularities.

the Internal Control Framework at Adapt It holdings 
Limited is based on the report of the Committee 
of Sponsoring organisations (CoSo) Integrated 
Framework, which has emerged as the leading 
framework that management and auditors use to 
evaluate controls. the King III practice Note relevant 
to this area recommends the application of CoSo.

the focus in the 2014 financial year will be to improve 
collaboration with management, other internal 
assurance providers and the Company’s external 
auditor to ensure optimal coverage of the key risks 
and minimal duplication of effort. the purpose of this 
collaboration is also aimed at the development of a 
meaningful combined assurance model and plan.

INFoRmAtIoN teChNoLoGy (It) GoVeRNANCe
the board recognises that It is an integral part of 
conducting business at Adapt It holdings Limited, 
as It is fundamental to the support, sustainability 
and growth of the organisation. It serves all aspects, 
components and processes in the organisation and 
is therefore not only an operational enabler for the 
Group, but a strategic business imperative which can 

be leveraged to create opportunities and to gain a 
competitive advantage. 

the board is cognisant of the fact that as much as It is 
a strategic asset within the Group, it also presents the 
organisation with significant risk. the latter, together 
with its related costs and constraints, should be well 
governed and controlled to ensure that it supports the 
Group’s strategic objectives. It is for this reason that 
the board has deemed it appropriate to delegate this 
function to the Audit and Risk Committee. however, 
the responsibility of It governance ultimately resides 
with the board.

It is implemented, based on the following model:

•	 	The	business	applications	and	IT	infrastructure	are	
being centralised;

•	 	An	IT	steering	committee,	represented	by	the	Chief	
executive officer, key senior management and 
technical specialists, oversees the It strategy and 
its implementation; and

•	 	The	IT	steering	committee	reports	to	the	Audit	and	
Risk Committee.

the It steering committee is responsible for ensuring 
that It is managed within a defined framework that 
takes into account, inter alia:

•	 IT	standards;

•	 	Legal	 requirements	 such	 as	 the	 Electronic	
Communications and transactions Act, the 
promotion of Access to Information Act, the 
Regulation of Interception of Communications Act 
and the soon to be enacted protection of personal 
Information Act;

•	 	Internal	policies defining application and use of It 
resources;

•	 	Overall	IT	spend	and	allocation	of	investment;	and

•	 IT	risk.
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kInG III ReFeRence TabLe

Key Compliant ✔

partially compliant #
In process ^
Non-compliant ✗

cHaPTeR 1 – eTHIcaL LeadeRSHIP and cORPORaTe cITIzenSHIP

1. effective leadership based on ethical foundation ✔

2. Responsible corporate citizenship ✔

3. effective management of Group’s ethics ✔

cHaPTeR 2 – bOaRdS and dIRecTORS

1. the board comprises a balance of power, with a majority of non-executive directors ✔

2. majority of non-executive directors to be independent ✔

3. Are the position of Chairman and Ceo held by different persons ✔

4. Is the Chairman of the board an independent non-executive director ✔

5. was the Ceo appointed by the board ✔

6. Are directors appointed through a formal process ✔

7. Is a succession plan in place for both the Ceo and executives ✔

8. Formal induction and ongoing training of directors is conducted ✔

9. Is the board assisted by a competent, qualified and experienced Company Secretary ✔

10. the Company Secretary is not a director and maintains an arms-length relationship with the board of 
directors ✔

11. Appointment of well-structured committees and oversight of key functions ✔

12. the board is the focal point of governance and the board and committees have formal charters ✔

13. Formal delegation of authority setting out powers and authority ✔

14. Does the board take responsibility for risk and It governance ✔

15. Compliance with relevant laws, rules, codes and standards ✔

16. Is there an effective risk-based internal audit function ✔

17. Is a formal evaluation of the board and directors done annually ✔

18. Remuneration policy for remuneration of directors and executives ✔

19. Is the remuneration policy approved by the shareholders ✔

20. Disclosure of individual director remuneration ✔

21. board responsible for effective stakeholder management ✔

22. A governance framework is agreed between the Group and its subsidiary boards ✔

cHaPTeR 3 – aUdIT cOmmITTee

1. Audit Committee chair is an independent non-executive director ✔

2. Audit Committee members are skilled, effective  and independent ✔

3. Committee consists of three independent non-executive directors ✔

4. Chairman appointed by the board, sets the agenda and present at the annual general meeting ✔

5. Does the committee oversee the internal audit function ✔

6. Committee an integral component of the risk management process ✔

7. Satisfies itself of the expertise, resources and experience of the Group’s finance function ✔

8. Committee recommends appointment of the external auditor and oversees the external audit process ✔

9. Committee reports to the board and shareholders on discharge of its duties ✔

10. Committee oversight of integrated reporting ✔

11. A combined assurance model is applied to improve efficiency in assurance activities #
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cHaPTeR 4 – THe GOveRnance OF RISk
1. Does the board take overall responsibility for the governance of risk ✔

2. Does the board determine the levels of risk tolerance ✔

3. board assisted by committees in carrying out its risk responsibilities ✔

4. the board delegates to management the responsibility for its risk management plan ✔

5. Does the board ensure that risk assessments are performed on a regular basis ✔

6. board ensures implementation of an appropriate framework and methodologies to increase the 
probability of anticipating unpredictable risks ✔

7. board ensures implementation of appropriate risk responses ✔

8. board receives assurance regarding effectiveness of risk management process ✔

9. board ensures risk disclosure to stakeholders ✔

10. board ensures continual risk monitoring by management ✔

cHaPTeR 5 – THe GOveRnance OF InFORmaTIOn TecHnOLOGy (IT)
1. board ensures proper It governance ✔

2. It is aligned with the performance and sustainability objectives of the Group ✔

3. board delegates to management the responsibility for the implementation of an It governance framework ✔

4. board monitors and evaluates significant It investments and expenditure ✔

5. It forms an integral part of the Group’s risk management ✔

6. board ensures the effective management of the Group’s information assets ✔

7. Does the Audit and Risk Committee assist the board in carrying out its It responsibilities ✔

cHaPTeR 6 – cOmPLIance wITH LawS, cOdeS, RULeS and STandaRdS
1. board ensures compliance with applicable laws and considers adherence to non-binding rules, codes 

and standards
✔

2. board and directors have working understanding of the effect of applicable laws, rules, codes and 
standards on the Group and its business

✔

3. Compliance risk forms an integral part of the Group’s risk management process ✔

4. board delegates to management the responsibility for the implementation of an effective compliance 
framework and processes ✔

cHaPTeR 7 – InTeRnaL aUdIT
1. board ensures an effective risk-based internal audit ✔

2. Internal audit to provide written assessment of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal 
controls and risk management #

3. Internal audit positioned to understand the strategy of the Group, and that it can achieve its objectives ✔

cHaPTeR 8 – GOveRnInG STakeHOLdeR ReLaTIOnSHIPS
1. board appreciates that stakeholder perceptions affect the Group’s reputation ✔

2. board delegates to management the responsibility to proactively deal with stakeholder relationships ✔

3. board strives to achieve an appropriate balance between its various stakeholder groupings ✔

4. board ensures equitable treatment of stakeholders ✔

5. board ensures transparent and effective communication with stakeholders ✔

6. board ensures effective, efficient and expeditious resolution of disputes with stakeholders ✔

cHaPTeR 9 – InTeGRaTed RePORTInG and dIScLOSURe
1. board ensures integrity of integrated reporting ✔

2. board sets the tone/culture with respect to sustainability ✔

3. board ensures the integration of strategy and sustainability ✔

4. board to have a formal mandate/stated objective to ensure sustainability ✔

5. Group to have mechanisms in place to measure sustainability #
6. Sustainability reporting and disclosure integrated with the Group’s financial reporting ✔

7. Are sustainability reporting and disclosure independently assured #
8. Does the board have a formal climate change strategy ✗
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SuSTAINABIlITY REpoRT

StRAteGy AND ANALySIS
while Adapt It serves customers across 20 countries 
world-wide, our business is located predominantly in 
South Africa. All reporting takes place within the South 
African regulatory and socio-economic context, with 
consideration for international standards.

Adapt It’s goal is to deliver long-term value to 
shareholders and employees and maintain a positive 
association with all stakeholders.  

the board has considered the nature of operations in 
the context of the pillars of sustainability: economic 
value, human capital, social responsibility and 
environmental sustainability. this report concentrates 
on the human and social elements that the board 
regards as most relevant to our stakeholders, whilst 
maintaining a balanced and holistic view.

GLobAL RepoRtING INItIAtIVe
Adapt It has adopted the GRI framework 
and guidelines for sustainability reporting. this  
sustainability report provides a balanced and 
reasonable representation of the areas that the board 
regards as most critical to Adapt It and its stakeholders 
for the financial year ended 30 June 2013.

As the Company progresses, this report will adjust 
accordingly into the relevant areas while we strive 
to align our processes with evolving international 
standards.

eCoNomIC VALue
vaLUe added anaLySIS
Adapt It generated headline earnings of  
R24,1 million for the year ended 30 June 2013, from 
which major stakeholders benefited in varying 
proportions as indicated in the table on page 21.

InveSTmenT
the strong track record in financial performance has 
enabled Adapt It to continue investment in product 
development, infrastructure, people and operational 
systems that support the organic and acquisitive 
growth initiatives. 

ReSeaRcH and deveLOPmenT
the lifecycle of the solutions Adapt It develops 
extends over many years and over time they become 
integral to our customers. this requires customers 
to form a strategic relationship with Adapt It as a 
supplier. In today’s environment of rapid technological 
advancement and changes, customers rely on 
Adapt It to have a sustainable product development 
approach where products are enhanced and 
maintained in line with business requirements.

humAN CApItAL
Adapt It recognises that people are a key success 
factor in today’s globally integrated and increasingly 
competitive business environment. people represent 
one of Adapt It’s most significant investments and 
provide the Company with opportunities to gain a 
competitive advantage. of the value created in 2013, 
84% was distributed to our employees in the form 
of salaries, wages and benefits (see value added 
statement on page 21).

Chairman of the Social and ethics Committee 
oliver Fortuin



ADAPT IT INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 

31    

representation of all stakeholder groups. we intend to 
maintain our focus on this transformation programme 
as we constantly grow and integrate new companies 
as a result of our acquisitive growth strategy.

the b-bbee verification is performed annually by an 
independent SANAS accredited assurance provider.

LeveL 3 b-bbee STaTUS

ScORecaRd InFORmaTIOn 2013 2012

ownership 17,18 17,20

management 11,00 11,00

employment equity 5,00 6,98

Skills development 6,72 4,90

preferential procurement 19,57 18,03

enterprise development 11,00 15,00

Socio-economic development 12,00 5,00

Total score 82,47 78,11

emPLOymenT eqUITy
All the divisions within Adapt It are involved in 
and committed to promoting the employment 
equity policy. Adapt It’s approach to addressing 
its employment equity and management control 
imperatives is to focus on skills and leadership 
development, with particular emphasis on the 
identification of talented historically disadvantaged 
individuals for development and fast-tracking into 
leadership roles.

this business imperative is monitored by the 
employment equity Committee, which reports the 
progress and results of specific initiatives to the Social 
and ethics Committee. Adapt It will continue to 
attract, retain and develop talent from the designated 
groups with available employment opportunities.

on 30 June 2013 18% of management positions were 
filled by black people (2012: 17%). black women form 
21% of management. the overall employment equity 
statistic is 50% black staff. our target for the period 
was 60%.

the main role of the employment equity Committee is 
to set targets and review progress on all employment 
equity-related matters and make recommendations 
to the Social and ethics Committee. these targets 
are set and implemented within the framework of all 
employment practices.

PROmOTInG eqUITy and dIveRSITy In THe wORkPLace
Adapt It aims to attract, develop and retain the best 
people within a diverse multicultural workplace. 
our promotion of equal opportunity and workplace 
diversity is not merely a social responsibility, but a 
means of ensuring that we foster a culture of diversity 
in the belief that this brings business advantage.  

In order to leverage our significant people investment, 
Adapt It promotes employee growth through career 
path development and supporting work-life balance. 
this approach enables a self-motivated and 
productive environment within which Adapt It and its 
people add significant and mutual value.

Adapt It’s success is directly impacted by the skills, 
motivation and commitment of its people. one of the 
key factors contributing to the achievement of Adapt 
It’s objectives is having the right highly skilled people 
in place.

the development of a high performance culture 
within Adapt It is a key performance imperative of 
all employees, particularly those in leadership and 
management roles.

In line with our continued commitment to diversity, 
the report on the demographic profile of Adapt It at 
the end of the reporting period is published below:

bROad-baSed bLack ecOnOmIc emPOweRmenT
Adapt It has since its inception focused on b-bbee 
as a strategic imperative to ensure continued 
sustainability, rather than as a matter of compliance.  
the goal of Adapt It’s b-bbee strategy is to ensure the 
Company is fully representative of the combined skills 
and talents of the communities in which we operate 
and that we constructively contribute towards the 
broader society.

South Africa’s policy of b-bbee is not only a special 
intervention required to address the situation resulting 
from the previously disadvantaged communities 
in South Africa, but is a pragmatic economic 
growth strategy. Adapt It aims to ensure that the 
Government’s vision for b-bbee is realised, in addition 
to leveraging all opportunities presented by our 
transformation status to develop the sustainability of 
the business.

our cultural diversity is a distinct competitive 
advantage and therefore we aim to further improve 
our transformation programme to ensure equitable 

 2013  2012
white  50%  51%
African  26%  29%
Indian  21%   18%
Coloured  3%   2%
* Number of employees

313*

2013

277*

2012
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Adapt It’s remuneration practices comply with 
regulations, while continuing to reward people 
meaningfully for performance and contribution. our 
remuneration strategy is based on the principle that 
remuneration remains in line with market practices, 
is performance-based and is fair and equitable. 
All employees are remunerated according to their 
roles and skills levels and there are no systematic 
disparities between the remuneration of male and 
female employees.

the employment of disabled individuals remains 
a challenge and requires further focus in the 
forthcoming year.  

HeadcOUnT and aTTRITIOn
the total headcount (excluding contractors) as 
at 30 June 2013 was 313 compared to 277 in the 
prior period. this increase is mainly as a result of the 
acquisition of Swicon in october 2012.  

Adapt It measures the employee attrition rate and 
constantly evaluates the impact of loss of key skills on 
the business. During the period the attrition rate was 
14%, which is in line with the industry norm of 15% and 
up on the prior year (14%). 

As a responsible employer, Adapt It aims to offer staff 
a stimulating and progressive working environment in 
which they can flourish and realise their true potential. 
programmes to improve employee retention include 
career development, market-related remuneration 
and ensuring a productive and rewarding working 
environment.

In assuming responsibility for our human capital 
Adapt It has taken the following measures to promote 
sustainability and mitigate natural attrition: 

•	 	Remuneration	 benchmarking	 in	 2012	 and	 a	
market alignment exercise in the 2012 and 2013 
financial years were applied to ensure competitive 
remuneration and reward where required;

•	 	Training	 programmes	 to	 support	 employee	
development;

•	 	Managing	performance	 through	 regular	 reviews,	
learning and development aligned to Adapt It 
performance metrics;

•	 	Succession	 planning	 and	 talent	 management	
to identify key employees in critical positions and 
ensure business continuity; and

•	 	Measures	 to	ensure	 the	health	and	well-being	of	
employees.

emPLOyee PeRFORmance
measurement of employee performance is based on 
key performance indicators and business strategic 
objectives. the results of performance reviews inform 
Individual Development programmes (IDp) and are 
applied in the process of developing the training 
budget. IDps are compiled for all employees and 
are continuously monitored to ensure technical and 
management skills are nurtured and developed.

managers are required to facilitate access and 
encourage employees to develop their careers 
through various opportunities available to them and 
these opportunities are discussed individually with 
line management during the IDp process.

TRaInInG and deveLOPmenT
Adapt It believes that it is imperative that employees 
attend training and development courses that are 
in line with their functional job requirements and 
enhance their skills. this includes participation in 
a wide range of training programmes (on-the-job 
training, classroom and professional development 
at training centres and through external service 
providers), which are tailored to meet their individual 
career development goals. In a number of instances, 
employees are given financial assistance to pursue 
studies in their chosen career paths, provided these 
are aligned to Adapt It’s objectives.

Adapt It works closely with mICt SetA to achieve 
the objectives of improving the ICt skills in South 
Africa and adheres to the requirements of the Skills 
Development Act. 

A priority for Adapt It is skills development at all levels 
and this continues to be strengthened. this includes 
management and leadership development, and 
learnerships with targeted coaching and mentoring 
processes. particular emphasis is placed on skills 
development of black employees in line with Adapt 
It’s empowerment initiatives. Significant progress was 
made in the year under review. the total investment 
in training increased from R655 270 to R2 026 370, 
broken down in the pie chart below:

 2013  2012

Female bee employees  R447 854  R92 271

male bee employees  R762 823  R165 580

other employees  R815 693  R397 419

2013

R2,0
million

2012

R0,7
million
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InTeRnSHIP PROGRamme
Adapt It participates in an internship programme 
and has employed 73% of the students admitted 
into the programme to date. Currently there are 10 
students and interns in work experience programmes 
in Adapt It.

It is our intention to consider these learners for 
employment at the end of their training period, for 
both temporary and permanent positions within the 
Company.

Adapt It and mICt SetA jointly fund a number of 
the learners’ internship training, with the remainder 
of learners being funded in full by Adapt It. All 
employees have performance development plans, 
which highlight their training needs in order of priority. 
training is monitored on a monthly basis. Adapt It 
ensures that employees are performance-managed 
in order to promote employee growth and upliftment 
through development.

FamILy ReSPOnSIbILITy
Adapt It supports employee work-life balance 
through relevant policies and practices, in particular 
the need to uphold family responsibilities and all 
employees are required to take regular leave.

LabOUR ReLaTIOnS
employees are engaged through regular work forums 
with management to discuss business issues and all 
employees are encouraged to openly share their 
views.

Leadership supports the implementation of a 
collaborative and consultative approach in 
guiding employees to achieve both corporate and 
personal objectives during the year. employees are 
encouraged to discuss with executive management 
any areas of concern or possible opportunities to 
improve working conditions.

we fully support employees’ right to freedom of 
association. Although we are not aware of any Adapt 
It employees that are members of a trade union, 
employees are free to associate with any labour 
organisation of their choice in line with the basic 
Conditions of employment Act.

OccUPaTIOnaL HeaLTH and SaFeTy
the health and safety of our people is a priority and 
Adapt It complies with the occupational health and 
Safety Act. employees are encouraged to take medical 
aid cover and a medical aid scheme is available 
for all permanent employees. occupational and 
healthcare programmes include risk assessments, 
hygiene surveys, risk control measures and wellness 
days.

Adapt It recognises that employee well-being is 
critical to the continued delivery of high quality 

services and to the achievement of the Company 
objectives. An employee wellness programme, 
covering all aspects of physical and mental wellness, 
including confidential counseling services, is currently 
in place and will be rolled out across all divisions. 

management is obliged to ensure that all safety and 
other legal requirements are complied with, and that 
leading practices are identified and implemented.  

eTHIcS
Adapt It subscribes to the highest standards of good 
governance and ethical business practice and is 
guided by the Adapt It Code of ethics. the role of the 
Social and ethics Committee is to ensure that there 
is an ethical and responsible relationship between 
Adapt It and the society in which it operates.  

In November 2012, Adapt It launched the ethics 
hotline, an anonymous corruption and unethical 
business hotline and email address, which allows 
staff and external stakeholders to report ethically 
questionable business practices. All reports are 
investigated to the satisfaction of the committee.

No credible incidents of corruption have been 
identified during the reporting period.

PUbLIc POLIcy
Adapt It is not involved in any initiatives regarding 
public policy positions, policy development or 
lobbying. Adapt It maintains an independent 
stance with political parties, politicians and related 
institutions.

anTI-cOmPeTITIve beHavIOUR
Adapt It does not condone anti-competitive 
behaviour. there have been no incidents or legal 
actions for anti-competitive behaviour, antitrust and 
monopolistic practices during the review period.
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SoCIAL ReSpoNSIbILIty
Adapt It has a long history of investing in the upliftment 
of disadvantaged South African communities and 
remains committed to continuing this investment.  
our focus is on sustainable investment and extending 
the impact of our projects to more beneficiaries. 
Adapt It has increasingly shifted the approach to 
Corporate Social Investment (CSI) from smaller, once-
off investments to large, longer-term investments in 
major projects.

adaPT IT knOwLedGe cenTRe
Adapt It launched its first Knowledge Centre in may 
2013. the centre serves as a computer facility for 
the more than 1 400 learners and 45 educators of 
the Zwakele primary School, in Amaoti, the largest 
informal settlement in KwaZulu-Natal. the initiative is 
a joint venture between Adapt It, Angel projects (a 
social investment agency), Africa Learn (a training 
company) and the Department of education.

the computer facility forms an integral part of Adapt 
It’s social investment strategy and will support long-
term community development by encouraging the 
youth to embrace technology and give them the 
necessary skills to contribute to the ICt sector.

the state-of-the-art computer and Internet training 
facility is funded by Adapt It and comprises 50 
computers, all installed with the necessary software 
and Internet connections. the facility includes an 
interactive whiteboard, printer and air-conditioning. 

to guarantee the sustainability of the project, Adapt It 
is supporting the implementation of a comprehensive 
and sustainable training programme for both the 
teachers and the learners. Africa Learn is contracted 
to oversee all training and will retain an onsite 
facilitator for a period of six months. All courses are 
personalised to meet the needs of the school and will 
allow for maximum flexibility. In addition, the teachers’ 
course runs for a period of six months, empowering 
teachers to provide the learners with the necessary 
It training.

Adapt It is planning to install more computer facilities, 
and will be using Zwakele primary as a blueprint for 
future initiatives.

IncUbaTIOn and enTeRPRISe deveLOPmenT
Adapt It believes in facilitating the development of 
sustainable businesses that will create jobs. Adapt 
It has demonstrated its commitment to this process 
by providing opportunities to small businesses and 
new enterprises as well as assistance to small and 
medium enterprises.

PReFeRenTIaL PROcURemenT
For over two years, Adapt It has assisted emerging 
entrepreneurs through preferential procurement 
and training opportunities. we have engaged these 
small businesses in various projects. In agreement 
with our clients, they receive project management 
skills, preferential payment terms and business 
management.
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eNVIRoNmeNtAL SuStAINAbILIty
As an It services organisation, the environmental 
impact of Adapt It’s daily operations is limited. 
however, Adapt It is evaluating formal measurement 
and reporting of the relevant indicators in line with 
the requirements of the Global Reporting Initiative.  

Adapt It promotes consciousness of environmental 
issues, choosing to manage natural resources 
responsibly and seeking to reduce carbon emissions 
and waste generation wherever possible. the 
relocation	 of	 the	 Durban	 office	 to	“green”	 premises	
in 2010 was a major step towards change and 
reducing our environmental impact. Future decisions 
regarding changes or upgrades to premises in South 
Africa will follow the same approach. 

maTeRIaLS
Adapt It does not manufacture tangible products 
and therefore does not use any significant raw 
material in its business. paper is the primary 
consumable resource utilised. Adapt It uses paper 
from the supplier’s green range, meaning that the 
paper is produced from sustainable forests or is 100% 
recycled. we encourage paperless working where 
possible. 

All It hardware waste is recycled through a certified 
third party. 

eneRGy
Adapt It continues to pursue initiatives that can 
assist in the conservation of energy. Furthermore, 
Adapt It targets new business from clients where 
new technologies are being introduced to produce 
cleaner energy (e.g. biofuel). our solutions in the 
chemicals and power generation industries lead 
to more efficient operation of plants and power 
stations in South Africa, reducing utilisation of scarce 
resources and waste products. 

waTeR
Adapt It is considered to be a nominal user of water.  
however, minimum usage of water is encouraged 
throughout the Company. All storm-water at the 
Durban premises is attenuated and used for irrigation 
on site.

bIOdIveRSITy
the Durban premises include a portion of land left for 
natural vegetation to provide habitat for wildlife.

emISSIOnS, eFFLUenT and waSTe 
Due to the relatively clean nature of our operations, 
we do not currently measure carbon emissions, 
choosing to focus on the social impact of creating 
sustainable employment as a key priority. 

PROdUcTS and SeRvIceS
Adapt It has continuous software development 
processes which meet the customer, environmental 
and legislative requirements. the product 
development processes are mainly driven by the 
customer and industry needs and the safety of 
the products and services is ensured by a quality 
management system. 

TRanSPORT
In order to reduce our carbon footprint and the 
impact of national travel by our people, where 
possible any discretionary travel has been reduced 
by using alternative communication such as video 
conferencing and e-mail. 

the impact of transport on the environment from 
our direct operations is not significant as we operate 
predominantly using a remote support model. 
employee transportation is limited to infrequent 
deployment via air and road to client sites on initial 
system implementations, on-site training and periodic 
account management visits.
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RemuNeRAtIoN phILoSophy AND poLICy
the Group’s remuneration policy complements its 
business strategy. the board continues to embrace 
the importance of people for the continued 
sustainability and growth of the Group. It is the 
Group’s objective to attract, retain and motivate 
excellent talent. oversight of the remuneration 
policy and implementation thereof is maintained to 
ensure rewards are competitive, taking cognisance 
of the appropriate remuneration benchmarks, 
and proportionate with contribution to the Group’s 
performance. Remuneration is one of the largest 
components of the Group’s costs and optimising the 
remuneration expense remains a core focus area.

Remuneration levels are set with reference to 
independent salary surveys on a regular basis, 
taking cognisance of specific skills requirements, ICt 
industry statistics and benchmarks of other similar 
sized companies listed on the JSe. the Remuneration 
Committee reviews the remuneration paid to the 
Group executive and senior management.

RemuNeRAtIoN GoVeRNANCe
cOmPOSITIOn OF THe RemUneRaTIOn cOmmITTee
the Remuneration Committee comprises exclusively 
non-executive directors and is chaired by an 
independent non-executive director. the committee 
meets at least once a year.

the composition of the committee is:

t Dingaan Chairperson
b Ntuli  member
C Chambers member

Sbu Shabalala (Chief executive officer) and  
t Dunsdon (Finance Director) attend part of the 
meeting by invitation.

ROLe OF THe RemUneRaTIOn cOmmITTee
the Remuneration Committee is tasked on behalf of 
the board to ensure the alignment of remuneration 
with the interests of shareholders. the committee 
operates under terms of reference that are reviewed 
annually, approved by the board and encompass 
the provisions of the new Companies Act and the 
requirements of King III.

the committee’s key objectives include:

•	 	Establishing	 and	 agreeing	 on	 the	 total	
remuneration package for executive and non-
executive directors;

•	 	Reviewing	and	approving	the	remuneration	of	the	
Company Secretary;

•	 	Determining	 the	 performance	 measurement	
and assessment criteria for both the executive 
and non-executive directors in carrying out their 
responsibilities;

•	 	Drafting	of	 the	 remuneration	policy	 for	 executive	
directors which is approved by the shareholders at 
the annual general meeting; and

•	 Adhering	to	applicable	legislation.

the Remuneration Committee Chairperson attends 
the annual general meeting and is available to 
address any queries, if necessary, from shareholders.

emPLOymenT cOnTRacTS
Sbu Shabalala, Chief executive officer of Adapt 
It holdings Limited, was appointed with effect 
from 5 December 2007 and has a written letter 
of appointment which endures indefinitely and 
is subject to termination on three (3) months’ 
notice. tiffany Dunsdon was appointed Financial 
Director of Adapt It holdings Limited with effect from  
1 April 2013 and is on an annual fixed-term contract 
subject to termination on three (3) months’ notice. 
She was previously Commercial Director and 
originally joined the Group on 18 April 2002. Siboniso 
Shabalala resigned as the Finance Director on  
31 march 2013. the contractual relationship between 
the Company and its executive directors is governed 
through the Remuneration Committee.

these contracts are formulated in a manner which is 
consistent with the provision of the basic Conditions 
of employment Act.

StRuCtuRe oF RemuNeRAtIoN pACKAGeS
the structure of remuneration packages supports 
business needs, is market-related and competitive. 
to this end market surveys are conducted annually 
and appropriate action is taken to ensure that pay 
levels, structures, composition and mix are in line 
with market trends where relevant. the appropriate 
mix between guaranteed and variable pay as 

thembisa Dingaan
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well as short-, medium- and long-term elements of 
compensation are reviewed from time to time, taking 
market trends into consideration. 

GUaRanTeed Pay
employees’ guaranteed pay generally consists of total 
cost-to-company which comprises salary, retirement 
funding and health benefits. the targeted cost-to-
company remuneration is based on the median of 
the market, with discretion to pay a premium to the 
median for attraction and retention. employees who 
are clear outperformers may be remunerated above 
the median, while employees who are regarded as 
underperformers may be paid below the median 
and are actively managed. this approach recognises 
both the market forces in play and the heightened 
requirement to attract and retain talented employees.

vaRIabLe Pay
Short-term annual bonus incentives are based on the 
overall financial performance of the Group, financial 
achievement of the division and business unit to 
which an employee is accountable and on individual 
performance, measured against the achievement of 
key performance indicators. 

Short-term bonus incentives payable to executive 
management, for targeted levels of performance, 
range between 10% and 30% of the cost-to-company, 
as deemed appropriate by the Remuneration 
Committee and determined with reference to market 
norms. 

the primary purpose of the bonus scheme is to serve 
as a short-term incentive to motivate a common drive 
towards high performance. 

Salary Retirement
medical 

aid

Total 
guaran-

teed pay bonus
Retention
 payment Total

R R R R R R R

JUne 2013
Sbu Shabalala 1 030 896 83 188 21 259 1 135 343 380 000 324 000 1 839 343
S Shabalala* 718 306 58 940 15 915 793 161 91 239 – 884 400
t Dunsdon 946 979 12 900 – 959 879 260 000 312 000 1 531 879

total 2 696 181 155 028 37 174 2 888 383 731 239 636 000 4 255 622

JUne 2012
Sbu Shabalala 769 994 65 252 19 977 855 223 200 351 380 000 1 435 574
S Shabalala 846 702 71 588 19 977 938 267 100 000 179 000 1 217 267
t Dunsdon 846 147 10 708 - 856 855 139 414 271 000 1 267 269

total 2 462 843 147 548 39 954 2 650 345 439 765 830 000 3 920 110

* Resigned effective 31 march 2013

As required by King III the remuneration paid to the next three highest paid employees of the Group for the 
respective years ended is as follows:

Total
 guaranteed pay bonus Other Total

R R R R

JUne 2013
employee 1 1 463 479 75 000 239 852* 1 778 331
employee 2 1 253 676 115 000 17 169 1 385 845
employee 3 1 219 800 76 200 16 584 1 312 584

total 3 936 955 266 200 273 605 4 476 760

JUne 2012
employee 1 1 129 440 177 580 21 755 1 328 775
employee 2 1 129 440 155 380 15 153 1 299 973
employee 3 1 118 640 133 190 16 574 1 268 404

total 3 377 520 466 150 53 482 3 897 152

* Commission



ADAPT IT INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

38

REMuNERATIoN REpoRT CoNTINuED

Another key aspect of variable pay which has been 
extended in the past year to certain subsidiary 
company executives who are involved in sales is 
the sales commission scheme. the purpose of this 
is to drive improvement in organic growth and 
cross-selling. the commission scheme is currently 
being aligned across the Group and enhanced to 
maximise effectiveness.

LOnG-TeRm IncenTIveS
the long-term executive share incentive plan, set 
out on pages 104 to 107, will be put to shareholders 
for approval at the forthcoming annual general 
meeting. It is designed to ensure that key executives 
are motivated and retained over a medium- to long-
term period and to align their interests with those of 
shareholders.

eXeCutIVe DIReCtoRS’ RemuNeRAtIoN
the tables show a breakdown of the annual 
remuneration of the executive directors for the 
respective years.

None of these employees are considered to be 
prescribed officers of Adapt It holdings Limited as 
defined by the Companies Act of South Africa.

NoN-eXeCutIVe DIReCtoRS’ FeeS
the level of fees paid to non-executive directors is 
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee on an 
annual basis. the recommendations are submitted 
to the board for consideration and the fees are 
approved in advance by the shareholders at the 
annual general meeting. A market survey, referencing 
fees paid by comparable listed companies, is utilised 
to determine the remuneration levels.

Non-executive directors receive fixed fees for service 
on the board and board committees. Non-executive 
directors do not receive short-term incentives nor do 
they participate in any share incentive scheme. Non-

executive directors are not appointed under service 
contracts and their remuneration is not linked to the 
Group’s financial performance.

the following table shows the directors’ fees paid to 
non-executive directors for the year ended:

2013 2012
R R

C Chambers* 184 500 70 000
b Ntuli 92 000 70 000
t Dingaan 92 000 70 000
Ab Ravnö** 67 667 150 000
m Nhlapo*** 55 857 70 000
o Fortuin**** 36 143 –

total 528 167 430 000

*  Chairman with effect from 26 october 2012, 
and previously lead independent non-
executive director

** Resigned 26 october 2012
*** Resigned 8 February 2013
**** Appointed 8 February 2013

Refer to the Directors’ Statutory Report on page 45 for 
directors’ interests in the Company and interests’ of 
directors in contracts.

on behalf of the Remuneration Committee.

Thembisa dingaan 
Chairperson

Durban
16 August 2013
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INtRoDuCtIoN
The	 Audit	 and	 Risk	 Committee	 (“committee”)	 is	
constituted as a statutory committee in terms of the 
Companies Act, 2008, and as a committee of the 
board in respect of all additional duties assigned 
to it by the board. the committee operates under 
approved terms of reference.  

FuNCtIoNS oF the AuDIt AND RISK CommIttee
In line with its terms of reference, approved by the 
board and required by the Companies Act and 
principles of the King III Code, the functions of the 
committee include:

•	 	Review	of	 risk	management	 reports	and	making	
recommendations to the board;

•	 	Oversight	of	 integrated	 reporting	and	 the	 interim	
report; 

•	 Oversight	of	internal	audit;

•	 	Being	 responsible	 for	 recommending	 the	
appointment of the external auditor and 
overseeing the external audit process;

•	 	Determining	the	fees	to	be	paid	to	the	auditor	and	
the auditor’s terms of engagement;

•	 	Determining	 the	 nature	 and	 extent	 of	 non-audit	
services provided to the Group; and

•	 	Reporting	to	the	Board	and	shareholders	on	how	it	
has discharged its duties.

membeRS oF the AuDIt AND RISK CommIttee
the committee was appointed by the shareholders 
and comprises three independent non-executive 
directors, all of whom possess the necessary skills, 
knowledge and expertise to direct the committee 
constructively in the execution of its responsibilities.

In terms of Section 94 of the Companies Act, a public 
company must elect an audit committee at each 
annual general meeting. It is proposed in the notice of 
meeting for the forthcoming annual general meeting 
of the Company, that ms b Ntuli, ms t Dingaan and 
mr o Fortuin be re-appointed as members of the 
committee, until the next annual general meeting.

the committee is chaired by ms b Ntuli and she will 
be available for re-appointment at the next annual 
general meeting.

FREQUEnCy	OF	MEETInGS
In the past year, four meetings were held; attendance 
of the meetings is reflected on page 25. 

the meetings are also attended by appropriate 
members of executive management, and external 
and internal auditors. the committee reports on its 
findings to the board after each formal meeting. 

Key DutIeS DISChARGeD DuRING the yeAR
exTeRnaL aUdITOR aPPOInTmenT and IndePendence
the committee satisfied itself that the external auditor 
was independent of the Group, as set out in Section 
94(8) of the Companies Act, and ensured that the 
appointment of the auditors complied with all 
legislation relating to the appointment of auditors.

the committee, in consultation with executive 
management, agreed to the engagement letter 
terms, audit plan and budgeted audit fees in respect 
of the 2013 financial year.

prior to the annual general meeting, in line with the 
procurement policy of the Group, the committee will 
consider proposals for the provision of external audit 
assurance in respect of the 2014 financial year and 
thereafter. the committee will nominate, for election 
at the annual general meeting, an independent 
external audit firm and the designated auditor 
responsible for performing the functions of auditor, for 
the 2014 financial year. the audit firm and designated 
auditor will be on the JSe list of accredited auditors 
and advisors.

FInancIaL STaTemenTS and accOUnTInG PROceSSeS
the committee has reviewed the accounting 
policies and financial statements of the Group and 
is satisfied that they are appropriate and comply with 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the 
requirements of the Companies Act.

InTeRnaL FInancIaL cOnTROLS
the committee is responsible for overseeing the 
process of assessment of effectiveness of internal 
controls. 

based on the results of the system of internal financial 
controls conducted by the internal audit function 
during the 2013 financial year and considering 
information and explanations given by management 
together with a discussion held with the external 
auditors on the results of their audit, the committee 
is of the opinion that the Group’s system of internal 
financial controls is effective and forms a basis for the 

bongiwe Ntuli
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AuDIT AND RISK CoMMITTEE REpoRT CoNTINuED

preparation of reliable financial statements. Certain 
matters were identified during the year under review 
though the internal audit function, which matters were 
substantially resolved before the commencement of 
the external audit.

GOInG cOnceRn 
the committee has reviewed a documented 
assessment, prepared by management, which 
includes key assumptions, of the going concern 
status of the Group. the board’s statement on the 
going concern status of the Group, as supported by 
the committee, is disclosed in the directors’ approval 
of the annual financial statements. 

InTeRnaL aUdIT 
the committee is responsible for ensuring that the 
internal audit function is independent and has the 
necessary resources and authority within the Group 
to enable it to discharge its duties. the committee 
is also responsible for overseeing the co-operation 
between the internal and external auditors and is the 
link between the board and these functions.

the internal audit charter and framework were 
approved by the committee. the chief internal 
auditor has direct access to the committee through 
the chairman. the committee is responsible for the 
assessment of the performance of the internal audit 
function.

exPeRTISe and exPeRIence OF THe FInancIaL 
dIRecTOR and FInance FUncTIOn

the committee has satisfied itself that the Financial 
Director has the appropriate expertise and 
experience.

the committee has considered and satisfied itself of 
the appropriateness of the expertise and adequacy 
of resources of the finance function and experience 
of the senior members of management responsible 
for the financial function. 

GoVeRNANCe oF RISK
Adapt It adopts a risk management approach to the 
implementation of strategy.

the Adapt It Group faces many risks in the 
implementation of its business growth strategy and 
has integrated risk management as a central part of 
its business management.

we adopted a risk management approach to 
strategy implementation and focused on identifying 
what could go wrong, evaluated which risks were to 
be dealt with and implemented strategies to deal 
with those risks.

the risk management process helped Adapt It 
identify and address the risks facing the business 
and in doing so has increased the likelihood of 
successfully achieving the business objectives. we 
believe that having identified the risks involved we are 
better prepared in our approach and have a cost-
effective way of dealing with the risks identified.

the risk management process adopted involved:

•	 	Methodically	 identifying	the	risks	surrounding	our	
business activities;

•	 Assessing	the	likelihood	of	the	events	occurring;

•	 	Understanding	 how	 to	 respond	 to	 the	 identified	
events;

•	 	Putting	 systems	 in	 place	 to	 deal	 with	 the	
consequences; and

•	 	Monitoring	 the	 effectiveness	 of	 the	 risk	
management approaches and controls.

As a result of the process of risk management, we 
have improved decision-making, planning and 
prioritisation, have allocated capital and resources 
more efficiently, can anticipate what may go 
wrong, have minimised the number of unforeseen 
circumstances we may have to contend with, 
and have significantly improved the probability of 
delivering on the Group’s business growth strategy.

the top eight (8) strategic, operational, human 
capital, compliance and environmental risks were 
identified, prioritised and mitigating interventions 
developed.

the StRAteGIC RISKS weRe IDeNtIFIeD AS FoLLowS:

THe ORGanIc GROwTH RISkS aRe:

1. opeRAtIoNAL buSINeSS mANAGemeNt CApACIty 
  we identified the need to continuously evaluate 

and supplement operational management as 
the Group continues to grow. we have improved 
the management capacity in the current financial 
period and continue to evaluate and secure the 
requisite management capacity when required.

2. oRGANIC ReVeNue GRowth AbILIty 
  organic growth was identified as the inevitable 

result of a successful business model for Adapt 
It. to this end, we have employed strategies to 
develop all our divisions to become more skilled 
at growing organically, through leveraging the 
existing business models.

THe acqUISITIve GROwTH RISkS aRe:

3.	 ACQUISITIVE	GROWTH	ABILITy	
  we identified the ability to identify and select 

the correct targets as the key enabler in the 
acquisitive growth strategy. we have a dedicated 
team focused on the acquisitive growth strategy 
that has the requisite skills and experience in 
the successful conclusion of acquisitive growth 
initiatives.

4. CoRpoRAte FINANCe FuNCtIoN eFFeCtIVeNeSS 
  the risk of overpaying for acquired assets has 

been identified as the key acquisitive growth risk. 
we have ensured that the board has enough 
checks and balances in the process to ensure the 
continued success of our acquisitions.
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THe OPeRaTIOnaL RISk IS:

5. pRoJeCt DeLIVeRy CApACIty mANAGemeNt 
  Customer service is at the core of our success as 

a business and capacity management is key to 
ensuring the successful delivery to our customers. 
we have successfully implemented project 
management practices and a process of ensuring 
the capacity and project matrix management 
framework covers all operational units.

THe HUman caPITaL RISk IS:

6. the NeeD FoR A hIGh peRFoRmANCe CuLtuRe 
  A high performance culture is a pre-requisite to 

achieving the ambitious targets that we seek to 
continuously achieve through our people. we have 
made strides in developing the building blocks 
of a high-performance organisation by focusing 
on setting a clear strategic vision, developing 
a shared value system, linking remuneration to 
performance, configuring organisational agility 
and seeking to continuously improve performance 
measurement and recognition.

THe cOmPLIance RISk IS:

7. GoVeRNANCe AND CompLIANCe
  Governance and compliance with the regulatory 

environment and legislation underpin our strategy. 
the board reviewed and evaluated the corporate 
governance within the Group and continues 
to implement the principles as recommended 
by the King Report on Governance of 2009  
(King III). we developed and implemented a 
legislative compliance framework to ensure 
compliance with the legislative environment. we 
use the services of our JSe sponsor and legal 
advisors on all JSe regulations and contractual 
matters, respectively. we continue to establish 
systems to apply best practice governance 
principles where the board deems it applicable. 

THe envIROnmenTaL RISk IS:

8. buSINeSS INteRRuptIoN 
  Although the operations of the Group are now well 

diversified across several separate geographies 
and physical infrastructures and adequate 
data security and backup as well as business 
interruption insurance are in place, it is desirable to 
develop more detailed formal business continuity 
plans for low likelihood but high-impact risks such 
as total site destruction. these plans are in the final 
stages of development.

the board and the committee have considered the 
aforementioned risks and have satisfied themselves 
of the appropriateness of the risk management 
processes, the adequacy of interventions, the 
appropriateness of the allocated resources and the 
pervasiveness of the risk management processes 
within the Adapt It Group.

INteGRAteD RepoRtING AND CombINeD ASSuRANCe 
the committee fulfils an oversight role regarding the 
Group integrated report and the reporting process.

the combined assurance model which is being 
enhanced year on year, aims to optimise the 
assurance coverage obtained from management, 
internal assurance providers and external assurance 
providers on the risk areas affecting the Group.

the committee is responsible for monitoring the 
appropriateness of the Company’s combined 
assurance model and ensuring that significant risks 
facing the Company are adequately addressed.

the combined assurance provided by internal and 
external assurance providers as well as management 
should be sufficient to satisfy the committee that 
significant risk areas within the Group have been 
adequately addressed and suitable controls exist to 
mitigate and reduce those risks.

the committee is satisfied that the assurance given 
by management and other existing internal and 
external assurance providers is appropriate to 
address significant risks facing the business. 

the committee has recommended the integrated 
report for approval by the board of Directors. 

bongiwe ntuli
Chairperson, Audit and Risk Committee

16 August 2013
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the directors are required by the South African 
Companies Act, No 71 of 2008, as amended, to 
maintain adequate accounting records and are 
responsible for the content and integrity of the annual 
financial statements of Adapt It holdings Limited 
and its subsidiaries and related financial information 
included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure 
that the annual financial statements fairly present 
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group 
as at the end of the financial year and the results 
of their operations and cash flows for the year then 
ended, in conformity with International Financial 
Reporting Standards, the JSe Listings Requirements 
and the Companies Act, No 71 of 2008, as amended. 
the external auditors are engaged to express an 
independent opinion on the annual financial 
statements.

the annual financial statements are prepared in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards and are based upon appropriate 
accounting policies consistently applied and 
supported by reasonable and prudent judgements 
and estimates.

the directors are also responsible for the system 
of internal control. these controls are designed to 
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance 
as to the reliability of the financial statements, 

and to adequately safeguard, verify and maintain 
accountability of the assets, to record all liabilities, 
and to prevent and detect material misstatement and 
loss. the systems are implemented and monitored 
by suitably trained personnel with appropriate 
segregation of authority and duties. Nothing has 
come to the attention of the directors to indicate 
that any material breakdown in the functioning of 
these controls, procedures and systems has occurred 
during the year under review.

the annual financial statements are prepared on 
the going concern basis. Nothing has come to the 
attention of the directors to indicate that the Group 
will not remain a going concern for the foreseeable 
future.

the annual financial statements of the Group and 
Company, set out on pages 46 to 95, were approved 
by the board of Directors on 16 August 2013 and were 
signed on its behalf by:

craig chambers Sbu Shabalala
Independent  Chief executive officer
non-executive Chairman

Durban
16 August 2013

DIRECToRS’ RESpoNSIBIlITIES AND AppRoVAl
FoR the yeAR eNDeD 30 JuNe 2013

pREpARER oF  
FINANCIAl STATEMENTS
FoR the yeAR eNDeD 30 JuNe 2013

CERTIFICATE oF THE 
CoMpANY SECRETARY
FoR the yeAR eNDeD 30 JuNe 2013

these annual financial statements have been 
prepared under the supervision of tiffany Dunsdon, 
CA(SA).

Tiffany dunsdon
Financial Director 

Durban
16 August 2013

During the year under review, Statucor (pty) Ltd 
conducted the duties of Company Secretary for Adapt 
It holdings Limited and its subsidiaries. the secretarial 
matters are the responsibility of the Company’s 
directors. Statucor (pty) Ltd is providing the directors 
collectively and individually with guidance as to their 
duties, responsibilities and powers.

we hereby certify that, to the best of our knowledge 
and belief, the Company has lodged with the Registrar 
of Companies all such returns as are required by the 
Companies Act, No 71 of 2008, as amended, and that 
all such returns are true, correct and up to date.

Statucor (Pty) Ltd
Company Secretary

Durban
16 August 2013
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INDEpENDENT AuDIToR’S REpoRT
AS At 30 JuNe 2013

to the ShARehoLDeRS oF ADApt It hoLDINGS LImIteD
we have audited the consolidated and separate 
financial statements of Adapt It holdings Limited, set 
out on pages 44 to 95, which comprise the statements 
of financial position as at 30 June 2013, and the 
statements of comprehensive income, statements 
of changes in equity and statements of cash flows 
for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising 
a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information and the Directors’ 
Statutory Report. 

DIReCtoRS’ ReSpoNSIbILIty  
FoR the FINANCIAL StAtemeNtS 
the Company’s Directors are responsible for 
the preparation and fair presentation of these 
consolidated and separate financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the requirements of the Companies 
Act of South Africa, and for such internal control as 
the Directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of consolidated and separate financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

AuDItoR’S ReSpoNSIbILIty 
our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
consolidated and separate financial statements 
based on our audit. we conducted our audit 
in accordance with International Standards on 
Auditing. those standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the consolidated and separate financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. the procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.

we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

opINIoN 
In our opinion, the consolidated and separate 
financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated and separate financial 
position of Adapt It holdings Limited as at 30 June 
2013, and its consolidated and separate financial 
performance and consolidated and separate cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards, and the 
requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa. 

OTHER	REPORTS	REQUIRED	By	THE	COMPAnIES	ACT
As part of our audit of the consolidated and separate 
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2013, 
we have read the Audit Committee’s Report and the 
Company Secretary’s Certificate for the purpose of 
identifying whether there are material inconsistencies 
between these reports and the audited consolidated 
and separate financial statements. these reports are 
the responsibility of the respective preparers. based 
on reading these reports we have not identified 
material inconsistencies between these reports and 
the audited and consolidated separate financial 
statements. however, we have not audited these 
reports and accordingly do not express an opinion 
on these reports.

ernst & young Inc.
Director – kreesen venketas naidu
Registered Auditor 
Chartered Accountant (SA) 

1 pencarrow Crescent
La Lucia Ridge office estate
Durban 4000

16 August 2013
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DIRECToRS’ STATuToRY REpoRT

NAtuRe oF the buSINeSS
Adapt It holdings Limited is an information technology 
business which concentrates on software solutions 
and services.

FINANCIAL ReSuLtS
the net profit attributable to shareholders of the 
Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 amounted to  
R24 090 653 (2012: R18 143 152). this translates  
into headline earnings per share of 22,27 cents  
(2012: 17,45 cents) based on the weighted average 
number of shares in issue during the year.

ReVIew oF opeRAtIoNS
Commentary is given under the Ceo report 
commencing on page 14 and segment report on 
page 94.

ACQUISITIOnS
on 1 october 2012, the Company acquired 100% 
of the issued capital of Swicon360 (pty) Ltd for  
R11 700 000. Swicon360 (pty) Ltd is a SAp® service 
partner that specialises in providing business 
outsourcing (bpo) services for the SAp® eRp human 
Capital management (SAp® eRp hCm) solution to 
clients across diverse sectors, deployed in a cloud 
environment. the acquisition provides Adapt It 
additional depth and expertise in SAp® technology 
and solutions required to extend value-added services 
to existing customers in mining and manufacturing.

eVeNtS AFteR the RepoRtING peRIoD
on 1 July 2013, bI planning Services (pty) Ltd,  
ItS Abacus (pty) Ltd, ItS Africa technologies (pty) Ltd, 
ItS holdings (pty) Ltd, ItS tertiary Software (pty) Ltd 
and Synet (pty) Ltd were amalgamated into  
Adapt It (pty) Ltd in accordance with Section 113, 115 
and 116 of the Companies Act, 2008, as amended.

the reasons for the amalgamation are, inter alia:

•	 To	rationalise	the	Adapt	IT	Group;

•	 To	reduce	the	number	of	Adapt	IT	Group	entities;

•	 	To	 achieve	 efficiencies	 and	 savings	 in	
administrative and operational expenditure; and

•	 To	simplify	the	Adapt	IT	Group	structure.

DIVIDeNDS: oRDINARy DIVIDeND NumbeR 10
the Company declared a dividend of 4,84 cents 
per share, which was paid to shareholders on  
17 September 2012.

DIVIDeNDS: oRDINARy DIVIDeND NumbeR 11
the board has set a policy of considering a dividend 
once annually, after the year-end. the board has 
declared a dividend on a dividend cover ratio of 
four times as the Group wishes to retain a significant 
proportion of profits for future growth activities.

the Group will have sufficient working capital to meet 
its requirements after the dividend payment. Notice 
is hereby given that a cash dividend of 5,56 cents 
per share (the dividend) has been declared for the 
year ended 30 June 2013, payable to shareholders 
recorded in the books of the Company at close of 
business on 13 September 2013.

In terms of the Listings Requirements of the JSe Limited 
regarding the new Dividends tax effective 1 April 2012, 
the following additional information is disclosed:

•	 	This	is	a	dividend	as	defined	in	the	Income	Tax	Act,	
1962, and is payable from income reserves;

•	 The	South	African	dividend	tax	(DT)	rate	is	15%;

•	 	no	credits	in	terms	of	secondary	tax	on	companies	
have been utilised. Accordingly, the dividend to 
utilise in determining the Dt is 5,56 cents per share;

•	 	The	DT	to	be	withheld	by	the	company	amounts	to	
0,834 cents per share;

•	 	Therefore,	the	net	dividend	payable	to	shareholders	
who are not exempt from Dt is 4,726 cents per 
share, while the gross dividend of 5,56 cents per 
share is payable to those shareholders who are 
exempt from Dt;

•	 	The	 issued	 share	 capital	 of	 Adapt	 IT	 at	 the	
declaration date comprises 111 001 011 ordinary 
shares including 2 774 647 treasury shares held by 
the Company’s subsidiary, Adapt It (pty) Ltd. the 
issued share capital, excluding treasury shares, 
at the declaration date is 108 226 364 ordinary 
shares;

•	 	Adapt	IT’s	registration	number	is	1998/017276/06;	
and

•	 	Adapt	IT’s	income	tax	reference	number	is	
9410/002/71/2.

Shareholders are advised that the last day to trade 
cum-dividend will be Friday, 6 September 2013. 
Shares will trade ex-dividend as from monday, 
9 September 2013, and the record date will be 
Friday, 13 September 2013. payment will be made 
on monday, 16 September 2013. Share certificates 
may not be dematerialised or rematerialised 
during the period monday, 9 September 2013 to  
Friday, 13 September 2013, both days inclusive. this 
dividend, having been declared after 30 June 2013, 
has not been provided for in the financial statements.

ShARe CApItAL
2 774 647 treasury shares were held by the Group 
at 30 June 2013 (2012: 2 560 647), resulting in a 
reduction of issued share capital in the current year.

At 30 June 2013 the issued ordinary share capital of 
the Company was 111 001 011 (2012: 111 001 011) 
shares.
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tReASuRy ShAReS
During the year, the Company’s subsidiary, Adapt 
It (pty) Ltd, purchased 214 000 (2012: 2 136 687)  
shares in Adapt It holdings Limited for R294 250  
(2012: R2 377 619). the shares will be utilised in the 
ongoing acquisition programme. 

At the last annual general meeting (AGm), a general 
authority was granted by shareholders to allow the 
Company or its subsidiaries to purchase up to 10% of 
its own shares in terms of the Companies Act, 2008, 
as amended, and the Listings Requirements of the  
JSe Limited. the directors consider it will be 
advantageous to the Company for this general 
authority to continue and the authority will be used 
if the directors consider that it is in the best interest of 
the Company and shareholders. 

the share repurchase programme will be considered 
in light of the prevailing circumstances and the cash 
resources of the Group at the time. Shareholders will 
be asked to consider a similar special resolution to 
this effect at the forthcoming AGm.

INVeStmeNtS IN SubSIDIARIeS
Details of the subsidiaries appear in note 10 to 
the annual financial statements. Aggregate profit 
before taxation from subsidiaries for the year  
ended 30 June 2013 amounted to R35 019 232  
(2012: R28 892 092).

DIReCtoRAte 
Full details of the current board of directors appear 
on pages 10 and 11. In terms of the Company’s 
memorandum of incorporation, one third of the 
directors retire annually by rotation at the AGm. 
provided that if a director is appointed as an 
employee of the Company, he or she shall not, 
while continuing to be employed by the Company, 
be subject to retirement by rotation and shall not 
be taken into account in determining the rotation 
or retirement of directors. A retiring director shall be 
eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, mr C Chambers and mrs t Dingaan retire 
at the AGm to be held on 8 November 2013 and offer 
themselves for re-election.

At 30 June 2013, the directors held interests in the 
Company as follows:

2013 2012
direct

 beneficial %
Direct

 beneficial %

executive directors
Sbu Shabalala 16 531 057 15 16 531 057 15
t Dunsdon 4 548 974 4 4 548 974 4
Siboniso Shabalala – – 709 665 1

total 21 080 031 19 21 789 696 20

there were no indirect beneficial shareholdings at 
30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012 in respect of shares 
held by the directors. there were no non-beneficial 
interests held by the directors at the year-end.

there have been no changes in the directors’ 
shareholdings since the year-end.

INteReSt oF DIReCtoRS IN CoNtRACtS
the Directors have certified that they were not 
materially interested in any transaction of material 
significance, which significantly affected the business 
of the Group, with the Company or any of its 
subsidiaries. Accordingly, no conflict of interest, with 
regard to directors’ interest in contracts exist. there 
have been no material changes to the above since 
30 June 2013 and up to the date of this integrated 
annual report.

FINANCIAL ASSIStANCe to ReLAteD CompANIeS
At the forthcoming AGm, pursuant to the requirements 
of Section 45 of the Companies Act, 2008, as 
amended, shareholders will be requested to pass a 
special resolution authorising the directors, by way of 
general authority, to allow the Company to provide 
direct or indirect financial assistance to any company 
which is related or interrelated to the Company, 
subject to the relevant provisions of Section 45.

SpeCIAL ReSoLutIoNS pASSeD by the CompANy
the following special resolutions were passed at the 
previous AGm; the members approved the:

•	 Memorandum	of	Incorporation;

•	 Increase	in	the	directors’	fees,	as	tabled;

And granted directors authority to:

•	 	Repurchase	a	maximum	of	10%	of	the	Company’s	
shares, valid until the next AGm; and

•	 	Provide	financial	assistance	 to	subsidiaries	 in	 the	
form of inter-company loans and guarantees of 
their debts as and when appropriate in the course 
of business.

Tiffany dunsdon Durban
Financial Director 16 August 2013
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STATEMENTS oF CoMpREHENSIVE INCoME
FoR the yeAR eNDeD 30 JuNe 2013

GROUP GRoup cOmPany CompANy
2013 2012 2013 2012

Notes R R R R

Revenue 2 306 035 046 224 768 928 12 437 997 9 990 213

Turnover 2 303 401 597 219 613 534 – –
Cost of sales (171 782 171) (115 707 737) – –

Gross profit 131 619 426 103 905 797 – –
Administrative, selling and other costs (102 734 945) (82 606 979) (931 743) (2 071 795)
Sundry revenue 2 515 031 908 304  8 652 –
Dividend income – – – 3 075 051

profit/(loss) from operations 29 399 512 22 207 122 (923 091) 1 003 256
Finance income 2 118 418 4 247 090 14 672 22
Finance costs (785 526) (706 836) – (43 666)

Profit/(loss) before taxation 3 30 732 404 25 747 376 (908 419) 959 612
Income tax (expense)/credit 5 (6 641 751) (7 604 224) 401 847 (282 873)

profit/(loss) for the year 24 090 653 18 143 152 (506 572) 676 739
Attributable to:
equity holders of the parent 24 090 653 18 143 152 (506 572) 676 739

other comprehensive income 2 224 730 389 143 – –

Revaluation of land and building 2 224 914 – – –
Income tax effect (622 976) – – –
exchange differences arising from translation
   of foreign operations 622 792 389 143 – –

Total comprehensive income/(loss) 26 315 383 18 532 295 (506 572) 676 739

Attributable to:

equity holders of the parent 26 315 383 18 532 295 (506 572) 676 739

basic earnings per share (cents) 6.1  22,25  17,46 
basic diluted earnings per share (cents) 6.1  22,25  17,46 
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STATEMENTS oF FINANCIAl poSITIoN
AS At 30 JuNe 2013

 GROUP GRoup  cOmPany CompANy
 2013 2012 2013 2012

Notes  R  R  R  R 

aSSeTS
non-current assets  86 684 069  60 049 877  54 235 229  58 625 104 

property and equipment 7  28 351 209  20 475 190 – –
Intangible assets 8  5 772 000  1 307 944 – –
Goodwill 9  38 010 030  25 657 554 – –
Interest in subsidiaries and share trust 10 – –  48 115 401  48 115 401 
Loans to subsidiary 10 – –  5 641 125  10 461 125 
Deferred taxation asset 11  14 550 830  12 609 189  478 703  48 578 

current assets  92 038 482  86 828 424  2 483 204  1 063 848 

trade and other receivables 12  64 038 739  61 412 034  101 270  499 915 
Current tax receivable  5 307 082  21 184  114 515  461 730 
Cash and cash equivalents 13  22 692 661  25 395 206  2 267 419  102 203 

Total assets  178 722 551  146 878 301  56 718 433  59 688 952 

eqUITy and LIabILITIeS
equity  92 233 683  70 161 063  15 244 386  19 823 407 

Share capital 14  11 100  11 100  11 100  11 100 
treasury shares 14  (277) (256)  –    –   
Share premium 15  14 625 917  14 920 145  17 457 386  17 457 386 
other capital reserves 20.1  1 300 000  –    1 300 000  –   
Foreign currency translation reserve  1 127 967  505 175  –    –   
Revaluation reserve  1 601 938  –    –    –   
Retained earnings  73 567 038  54 724 899  (3 524 100)  2 354 921 

non-current liabilities  3 746 839  4 383 546  25 518  7 284 

Interest-bearing borrowings 16  –    642 519  –    –   
Deferred taxation liability 11  3 746 839  3 741 027  25 518  7 284 

current liabilities  82 742 029  72 333 692  41 448 529  39 858 261 

trade and other payables 17  18 549 873  15 225 905  449 751  673 405 
provisions 18  14 200 079  12 730 286  1 709 655  1 443 258 
Deferred income  47 979 558  42 461 565  –    –   
Amounts owing to subsidiaries 10  –    –    39 289 123  37 741 598 
Current portion of interest-bearing borrowings 16  642 519  1 171 156  –    –   
Current portion of non-interest-bearing
   borrowings 20.1  1 370 000  –    –    –   
bank overdraft 13  –  744 780  –    –   

Total equity and liabilities  178 722 551  146 878 301  56 718 433  59 688 952
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STATEMENTS oF CASH FloWS
FoR the yeAR eNDeD 30 JuNe 2013

 GROUP GRoup  cOmPany CompANy
2013 2012 2013 2012

Notes  R  R  R  R 

OPeRaTInG acTIvITIeS
Cash generated from/(utilised in) operations 19.1 36 662 063 29 237 346 (481 703) (591 725)
Finance income 2 118 418 4 247 090 14 672 22
Finance costs (785 526) (706 836) – (43 666)
Dividends received – – – 3 075 051
Dividends paid (5 248 514) (2 794 406) (5 372 449) (2 794 406)
taxation (paid)/refunded 19.2 (11 481 189) (12 485 448) 337 171 (439 036)

net cash flow from/(utilised in) 
   operating activities 21 265 252 17 497 746 (5 502 309) (793 760)

InveSTInG acTIvITIeS
property and equipment acquired 7 (7 902 169) (1 167 561) – –
Intangible assets acquired and developed 8 (6 578 478) (841 158) – –
proceeds on disposal of property and 
   equipment 58 723 24 343 – –
Net cash (outflow)/inflow on acquisition 
   of subsidiary 20 (7 164 718)  4 199 307 – –
Increase in investments on acquisition of bIpS – – – (17 250 200)

net cash (utilised in)/flows from 
   investment activities (21 586 642) 2 214 931  - (17 250 200)

FInancInG acTIvITIeS
proceeds from borrowings 28 916 920 9 046 – –
Repayment of borrowings (30 878 076) (1 004 081) – –
Share repurchases (294 249) (2 377 619) – –
Net cash flow on disposal of 
   investment properties 20.2 –  152 525 – –
Issue of Company’s shares – – – 8 625 600
Increase in amounts owing to subsidiaries – – 7 667 525 9 152 805
Repayment of vendor loans 20.2 – (10 909 091) – –

net cash (utilised in)/flows from 
   financing activities (2 255 405) (14 129 220) 7 667 525 17 778 405

Net (decrease)/increase in cash resources (2 576 795) 5 583 457 2 165 216 (265 555)
exchange differences on translation 619 030 389 143 – –
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning 
   of year 24 650 426 18 677 826 102 203 367 758

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 13 22 692 661 24 650 426 2 267 419 102 203
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STATEMENTS oF CHANGES IN EquITY
FoR the yeAR eNDeD 30 JuNe 2013

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Share 
capital

treasury
 shares

Share 
premium

other 
capital

 reserves

Asset 
revaluation

 reserve

Foreign
 currency

 translation
 reserve

Retained
 earnings

total
 equity

GROUP R R R R R R R R

balance at 30 June 2011 9 881 (46) 8 650 098 – – 116 032 39 376 153 48 152 118
total comprehensive 
   income for the year – – – – –  389 143  18 143 152 18 532 295

profit for the year – – – – – –  18 143 152 18 143 152
other comprehensive 
   income for the year – – – – –  389 143 – 389 143

Shares issued during the year 1 219 – 8 624 381 – – – – 8 625 600
Net repurchase of shares –  (210)  (2 354 334) – – – – (2 354 544)
Dividend paid – – – – – – (2 794 406) (2 794 406)

balance at 30 June 2012 11 100 (256) 14 920 145 – – 505 175 54 724 899 70 161 063

total comprehensive 
   income for the year – – – – 1 601 938 622 792 24 090 653 26 315 383

profit for the year
– – – – – – 24 090 653 24 090 653

other comprehensive 
   income for the year

– – – –  1 601 938 622 792 – 2 224 730

Shares to be issued – – –  1 300 000 – – –  1 300 000 
Net repurchase of shares –  (21)  (294 228) – – – –  (294 249)
Dividend paid – – – – – – (5 248 514) (5 248 514)

balance at 30 June 2013 11 100 (277) 14 625 917 1 300 000 1 601 938 1 127 967 73 567 038 92 233 683

Refer to note 14 for detail on share capital movement

Share
 capital

Share 
premium

other 
capital

 reserves

Retained
 earnings/

(loss)
total 

equity
cOmPany R R R R R

balance at 30 June 2011 9 881 8 833 005 – 4 472 588 13 315 474
total comprehensive income
   for the year – – –  676 739  676 739 
Shares issued during the year  1 219  8 624 381 – –  8 625 600 
Dividend paid – – – (2 794 406) (2 794 406)

balance at 30 June 2012  11 100  17 457 386 – 2 354 921 19 823 407

total comprehensive loss 
   for the year – – – (506 572) (506 572)
Issue of shares – – – – –
Shares to be issued – –  1 300 000 –  1 300 000 
Dividend paid – – – (5 372 449) (5 372 449)

balance at 30 June 2013 11 100 17 457 386  1 300 000 (3 524 100) 15 244 386

Refer to note 14 for detail on share capital movement
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1. ACCouNtING poLICIeS
 Adapt It holdings Limited is incorporated and domiciled in South Africa.

  the financial statements and consolidated annual financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International 
Accounting Standards board (IASb) and in the manner required by the Companies Act, 2008, as 
amended. the financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost method, except in the 
case of property measured at fair value. these accounting policies have been consistently applied to 
all the years presented, except for the Standards and Interpretations which became effective during the 
current financial year which are disclosed in note 1.24 to the financial statements.

 unless otherwise indicated, any references to the Group include the Company.

 1.1. baSIS OF cOnSOLIdaTIOn
   the consolidated annual financial statements incorporate the annual financial statements of the 

Company, its subsidiaries and the Adapt It holdings Limited Share Incentive trust. 

   Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group 
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases. the 
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent 
company, using consistent accounting policies. All intra-Group balances, transactions, unrealised 
gains and losses resulting from intra-Group transactions and dividends are eliminated in full. 

   Separate disclosure is made of non-controlling interests where the Group’s ownership is less than 
100%. Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the business 
combination and the non-controlling interest’s share of changes in equity since then. Losses within 
a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interest (where applicable) even if that results in 
a deficit balance. 

   where considered necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to 
bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

  the Company accounts for its investments in subsidiaries at cost.

 1.2 bUSIneSS cOmbInaTIOnS and GOOdwILL
   business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. the cost of an acquisition 

is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date 
fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. For each business 
combination, the Group elects whether it measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree 
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition 
costs incurred are expensed.

   when the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for 
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic 
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. this includes the separation of 
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

   If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the Group’s 
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date 
through profit or loss. Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group will be recognised 
at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent 
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability will be recognised in accordance with 
IAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent 
consideration is classified as equity, it will not be remeasured. Subsequent settlement is accounted 
for within equity. In instances where the contingent consideration does not fall within the scope of 
IAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate IFRS. 

NoTES To THE ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEMENTS
FoR the yeAR eNDeD 30 JuNe 2013
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   Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration 
transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets 
of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or loss.

   After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. 
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the 
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to 
benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are 
assigned to those units. 

   where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is 
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying 
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill 
disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed 
of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

 1.3  FOReIGn cURRency TRanSacTIOnS
   the Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in South African Rands, which is also 

the parent company’s functional currency. each entity in the Group determines its own functional 
currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that 
functional currency.

   transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group entities at their respective 
functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

   monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional 
currency spot rate of exchange at the reporting date. 

   Gains and losses arising on retranslation are included in profit or loss for the period and are 
classified as either operating or financing depending on the nature of the monetary items giving 
rise to them.

   Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated 
using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. 

   the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into South African Rands at the rate 
of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of comprehensive income are 
translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. the exchange differences 
arising on the translation are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in 
equity in the foreign currency translation reserve.

   on disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating to that 
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.
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NoTES To THE ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEMENTS

1. ACCouNtING poLICIeS continued
 1.4 RevenUe
   Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 

Group and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into 
account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes.

   Revenue comprises the invoiced value of information services provided and technology and 
product sales, including completed service provided not yet invoiced, but excluding value-added 
taxation. the various stages on invoicing are usually formalised in a service contract or brief, prior to 
commencement of any work. In terms of variable contracts, clients are invoiced according to the 
stage of completion and revenue is recognised accordingly. Stage of completion is measured as 
the amount of completed work, as a percentage of the agreed work to be done.

   where revenue is received in respect of product development on fixed price contracts and the work 
has not been performed, the revenue attributed thereto is not recognised and deferred income is 
shown as a liability in the statement of financial position. when the contract outcome cannot be 
measured reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent that the expenses incurred are eligible 
to be recovered.

  Sundry revenue consists of recoveries from clients and sales of consumables. 

   For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income or expense is recorded 
using the effective interest rate (eIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future 
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, 
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest income is 
included in finance income in profit or loss.

   Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment 
have been established.

 1.5 cOST OF SaLeS
   the related cost of providing services recognised as revenue in the current period is included in the 

cost of sales. Contract costs comprise:

	 	 •	 Costs	that	relate	directly	to	the	specific	contract;

	 	 •	 Costs	that	are	attributable	to	contract	activity	in	general;	and

	 	 •	 	Such	 other	 costs	 as	 are	 specifically	 chargeable	 to	 the	 customer	 under	 the	 terms	 of	 the	
contract.

 1.6 bORROwInG cOSTS
   borrowing costs are expensed as incurred, except where these are directly attributable to the 

acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset, in which case they are capitalised as 
part of the cost of the asset.

   borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the 
borrowing of funds.
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 1.7 TaxaTIOn
  current income taxation
   Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the 

amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. the tax rates and tax 
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the 
reporting date.

   Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not 
in the statement of comprehensive income. management periodically evaluates positions taken 
in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to 
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

  deferred taxation
   Deferred taxation is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting 

date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial 
reporting purposes. 

  Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

	 	 •	 	Where	the	deferred	income	tax	liability	arises	from	the	initial	recognition	of	goodwill	or	of	an	
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the 
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

	 	 •	 	In	respect	of	taxable	temporary	differences	associated	with	investments	in	subsidiaries,	where	
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable 
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

   Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward 
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will 
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused 
tax credits and unused tax losses, can be utilised except:

	 	 •	 	Where	the	deferred	income	tax	asset	relating	to	the	deductible	temporary	differences	arises	
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business 
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor 
taxable profit or loss; and

	 	 •	 	In	 respect	of	deductible	temporary	differences	associated	with	 investments	 in	subsidiaries,	
deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the 
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available 
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

   the carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profit will be available to allow 
all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

   unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are 
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient future taxable profit will allow 
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

   Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply 
in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

   Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable 
right exists to set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred income 
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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1. ACCouNtING poLICIeS continued
 1.7 TaxaTIOn continued
   Deferred income tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss is recognised outside profit 

and loss.

   Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

  value-added taxation
   Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value-added taxation, except 

receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of value-added taxation included.

   the net amount of value-added taxation recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is 
included as part of receivables or payables on the statement of financial position.

  Secondary taxation on companies (STc)
   For all dividends declared prior to 1 April 2012, the StC effect of dividends paid on equity instruments 

is recognised in the period in which the Company declares the dividend.

  dividend tax
   From 1 April 2012, dividends are taxed in the hands of the shareholder and not the company in 

South Africa. As a result, the amount of such dividend tax payable to the taxation authority on 
behalf of the shareholders is included as part of payables in the statement of financial position 
(where applicable). 

 1.8 emPLOyee beneFITS
  Short-term benefits
   All salaries and short-term employee benefits are expensed as incurred through profit or loss in the 

statement of comprehensive income.

  Post-retirement benefits
   All contributions to the defined contribution pension and provident funds are charged against 

profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income as they fall due.

 1.9 eaRnInGS PeR SHaRe (ePS)
  basic ePS
   basic epS is calculated by dividing profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders by the 

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the period.

  diluted ePS
   For diluted epS, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to assume 

conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, such as share awards granted to employees. 
potential or contingent share issuances are treated as dilutive when their conversion to shares 
would decrease net epS.

  Headline ePS
   the presentation of headline epS is mandatory under the JSe Listings Requirements and is not 

necessarily a measure of sustainable earnings. It is calculated in accordance with Circular 3/2009 
“Headline	Earnings”,	as	issued	by	the	South	African	Institute	of	Chartered	Accountants.

 1.10  PROPeRTy and eqUIPmenT
   property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property and equipment 
and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. when 
significant parts of property and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the parts are 
recognised as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciated accordingly. 

  All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

NoTES To THE ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEMENTS
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   the useful lives, residual values and methods of depreciation are reassessed annually and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate.

   owner-occupied property is classified as land and buildings and is carried under the revaluation 
model. Any revaluation surplus is recognised in other comprehensive income and credited to the 
asset’s revaluation reserve included in the equity section of the statement of financial position, 
except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised 
in the statements of comprehensive income, in which case the increase is recognised in profit or 
loss. A revaluation deficit is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it offsets an existing 
surplus on the same asset recognised in the asset revaluation reserve.

   Valuations are performed frequently to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not 
differ materially from its carrying amount. Accumulated depreciation at the revaluation date is 
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the 
revalued amount of the asset. upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset 
being sold is transferred to retained earnings. each part of an item of property and equipment 
with a cost significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately. where the 
recoverable amount of owner-occupied property is higher than cost, no depreciation is charged. 
the depreciation charge for each period is recognised in profit or loss.

   Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as 
follows:

  category  Useful life
  Computer hardware 3 to 5 years
  telephone equipment 5 to 7 years
  office equipment 6 to 8 years
  Furniture and fittings 6 to 10 years
  Leasehold improvements period of lease
  owner-occupied property 50 years
  motor vehicles 5 to 7 years

   An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

   Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss when the 
asset is derecognised.

 1.11  InTanGIbLe aSSeTS 
   Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. the cost of 

intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. 
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation 
and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised 
development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the year in 
which the expenditure is incurred.

  the useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

   Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for 
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. the 
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life 
is reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or 
the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are 
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as 
changes in accounting estimates. the amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is 
recognised in profit or loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible 
assets.
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1. ACCouNtING poLICIeS continued
 1.11  InTanGIbLe aSSeTS continued 
   Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference 

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in 
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

  Trademarks
   trademarks are recognised at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment 

losses, if any.

  Amortisation commences when the trademarks are available for use.

   the Group ensures that all its proprietary software is amortised over a 20-year period.

  category Useful life
  trademarks  20 years

  Inhouse developed software 
   Research costs pertaining to in-house developed software are expensed in the period in which 

they are incurred.

   Development costs that relate to an identifiable product or process that is demonstrated to be 
technically and commercially feasible which the Group has sufficient resources and the intention  
to complete and bring to market and which is expected to result in future economic benefits, are 
recognised as assets. the expenditure capitalised includes the cost of material, direct labour and 
an appropriate portion of overheads. Capitalised development expenditure is shown as cost less 
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. the amount of capitalised development cost 
recognised as an asset is amortised over the estimated useful life of the asset (but for no greater a 
period than five years).

  Other software
   All other software acquired separately is measured on initial recognition at cost.  the cost of software 

acquired in a business combination is its fair value at the date of the acquisition. Following initial 
recognition, software is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated 
impairment losses.

   the useful life of software is assessed as finite, as indicated in the table below and is reassessed, 
with the amortisation method, at least at each financial period-end. the amortisation of software is 
recognised in profit or loss in the period to which it relates. 

  category Useful life
  Inhouse developed software 3 to 5 years
  Computer software acquired 2 to 4 years

  Research expenditure
   Research costs incurred with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and 

understanding are charged as an expense in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

 1.12 ImPaIRmenT OF nOn-FInancIaL aSSeTS
   the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may 

be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is 
required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is 
the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use 
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are 
largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. where the carrying amount of 
the assets exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to 
its recoverable amount with the impairment recognised in profit and loss. In assessing value in use, 
the estimated cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In 
determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. these calculations 
are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or 
other available fair value indicators. 
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   the Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which 
are prepared separately for each of the Group’s cash-generating units to which the individual 
assets are allocated. these budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five 
years.

   For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there 
is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have 
decreased. If such indication exists, the Group makes an estimate of the recoverable amount. A 
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates 
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. 
If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. that 
increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal 
is recognised in profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the 
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

 1.13  LeaSeS
   the determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance 

of the arrangement at inception date: whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the 
use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

  Finance leases
    Finance leases which transfer to the group substantially all the risk and benefits incidental to 

ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value 
of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease 
payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to 
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are 
recognised in finance costs in the statements of comprehensive income.

   A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. however, if there is no reasonable 
certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated 
over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term. 

  Operating leases
   operating lease payments are recognised as an operating expense in the income statement on a 

straight-line basis over the lease term.

 1.14  FInancIaL InSTRUmenTS
   Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial position when 

the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

  Financial assets
  Initial recognition and measurement
  Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as loans and receivables.

   the Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. All financial 
assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through 
profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. 

  Subsequent measurement
  the subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

  Loans and receivables
   Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that 

are not quoted in an active market.

   After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest rate (eIR) method, less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
eIR. the eIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of comprehensive income. 
the Group’s loans and receivables include cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable.
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1. ACCouNtING poLICIeS continued
 1.14  FInancIaL InSTRUmenTS continued
  cash and cash equivalents 
  Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, current and call accounts.

   Cash and cash equivalents are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method less allowance for any impairment as appropriate.

  accounts receivables
   trade receivables and loan receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the 

effective interest rate method less allowance for any impairment as appropriate.

 1.15 ImPaIRmenT OF FInancIaL aSSeTS
   the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial 

asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is 
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one 
or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred loss event) 
and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the 
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

   For financial assets carried at amortised cost the Group first assesses individually whether objective 
evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or 
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant.

   If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed 
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with 
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.

   Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or 
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

   If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss 
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of 
the estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been 
incurred). the present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s 
original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring 
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

   the carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the 
amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

   Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the 
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment 
loss. the interest income is recorded as part of finance income in the statements of comprehensive 
income. Loans, together with the associated allowance, are written off when there is no realistic 
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the 
Group. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases 
because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised 
impairment loss is increased or decreased by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to finance costs in the statement of comprehensive 
income.

 1.16  FInancIaL LIabILITIeS
   Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as loans and borrowings as appropriate.

   the Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payable and loans and borrowings (which 
include interest and non-interest-bearing borrowings).

  the Group determines the classification of its liabilities at initial recognition.

   All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of loans and borrowings, 
directly attributable transaction costs.
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  the subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

  Loans and borrowings
   After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 

amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or 
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate (eIR) method 
amortisation process.

   Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 
fees or costs that are an integral part of the eIR. the eIR amortisation is included in finance costs in 
the statements of comprehensive income. 

 1.17  deRecOGnITIOn OF FInancIaL InSTRUmenTS
   A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 

financial assets) is derecognised when:

	 	 •	 The	rights	to	receive	cash	flows	from	the	assets	have	expired;	and

	 	 •	 	The	Group	has	 transferred	 its	 rights	 to	 receive	cash	flows	 from	the	assets	or	has	assumed	
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party 
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially 
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

   when the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a 
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards 
of ownership. when it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards 
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s 
continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. 
the transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights 
and obligations that the Group has retained.

   Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at 
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration 
that the Group could be required to repay. 

   A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled 
or expires.

   when an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange 
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new 
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

 1.18  OFFSeTTInG OF FInancIaL InSTRUmenTS
   Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of 

financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the 
liabilities simultaneously.

 1.19 SHaRe ISSUe cOSTS
   Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown as a deduction, net of 

applicable tax, from the proceeds. An incremental share issue cost is one which would not have 
arisen if shares had not been issued.

 1.20 TReaSURy SHaReS
   the purchase by any group entity of the Company’s equity instruments results in the recognition 

of treasury shares. the consideration paid is deducted from equity. where such treasury shares are 
subsequently sold, reissued or otherwise disposed of, any consideration received is included in 
equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company, net of any directly attributable incremental 
transaction costs and the related tax effects.
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1. ACCouNtING poLICIeS continued
 1.21 dIvIdendS
   Dividends to the Company’s ordinary equity holders are recognised as a liability in the period in 

which the dividends are declared and approved. Final dividends are accrued when approved by 
the board of Directors.

 1.22 PROvISIOnS
   A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 

result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimate.

 1.23 key SOURceS OF eSTImaTIOn UnceRTaInTy
   In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following 

judgements, estimates and assumptions that potentially have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognised in the financial statements.

  accrued revenue
   Revenue is accrued for projects in progress at year-end. Revenue is accrued based on the stage 

of completion of each project. the stage of completion is based on the estimated work required to 
complete the project.

  deferred taxation
   Deferred tax assets representing the carry forward of unused tax losses are only recognised to the 

extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available in future. In instances where there is 
no contracted income, the raising of the deferred taxation asset is limited to the next two years’ 
budgeted taxable profit due to uncertainty of estimating profits more than two years hence.

   Deferred tax liabilities are raised based on management’s best estimate as to the method of 
recovery of the underlying assets.

  Owner-occupied property
   the Group measures owner-occupied property at revalued amounts with changes in fair value 

being recognised in other comprehensive income.

  Useful lives and residual values
   property and equipment are depreciated over their useful lives taking into account residual values, 

where appropriate.

  Intangible assets are amortised over the useful lives considered appropriate by management.

   Assessments of useful lives and residual values are performed annually after considering factors 
such as technological innovation, maintenance programmes, relevant market information and 
management consideration.

  Impairment of goodwill
   the Group’s impairment test for goodwill is based on value in use calculations that use a discounted 

cash flow model.

   the cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring 
activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance 
the asset base of the cash-generating unit being tested. the recoverable amount is most sensitive 
to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as well as the expected future cash 
inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

   the key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the different cash-generating 
units are further explained in note 9.
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  contingent consideration
   the contingent consideration arising from the acquisition of bI planning Services (pty) Ltd has been 

estimated at a nil value. this is management’s best estimate based on the outcome in relation to 
the performance warranty clause.

 1.24  cHanGeS In accOUnTInG POLIcIeS and dIScLOSUReS
   the accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for 

the following new and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations effective as of 1 July 2012:

	 	 •	 	IAS	12	Deferred	taxes:	Recovery	of	underlying	assets	(amendment)	effective	1	January	2012;	
and

	 	 •	 	IAS	 1	 Presentation	 of	 items	 of	 other	 comprehensive	 income	 (amendment)	 effective	 
1 July 2012.

   these amended standards did not have any material effect on the financial performance or 
position of the Group. they did, however, give rise to additional disclosures in some occasions.

  the principal effects of these changes are as follows:

	 	 •	 	IAS	 12	 Deferred	 taxes:	 Recovery	 of	 underlying	 assets	 (amendment):	 The	 amendment	
introduces a rebuttable presumption that deferred tax on investment properties measured 
at fair value be recognised on a sale basis. the presumption can be rebutted if the entity 
applies a business model that would indicate that substantially all of the investment property 
will be consumed in the business, in which case an own-use basis must be adopted. the 
amendment also includes the requirement that deferred tax on non-depreciable assets that 
are measured using the revaluation model in IAS 16 should always be measured on a sale 
basis. the amendment does not have a significant impact on the Group’s financial position 
or performance as the Group does not hold investment property. Deferred tax on such assets 
is already measured on a sale basis.

	 	 •	 	IAS	1	Presentation	of	items	of	other	comprehensive	income	(amendment):	The	amendment	
to IAS 1 requires that items presented within other comprehensive income be grouped 
separately into those items that will be recycled into profit or loss at a future point in time 
(for example, net loss or gain on available-for-sale assets), and those items that will never be 
recycled (for example, actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans and revaluation 
of land and buildings). the amendment affects presentation and disclosure only and has no 
impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.

 1.25 new OR RevISed IFRS STandaRdS and InTeRPReTaTIOnS
   Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Group’s financial statements 

are listed below. these standards and interpretations issued are those that the Group reasonably 
expects to have an impact on disclosures, financial position or performance when applied at a 
future date. the Group intends to adopt these standards when they become effective.

  IaS 19 employee benefits (amendment)
   the IASb has issued numerous amendments to IAS 19. these range from fundamental changes, 

such as removing the corridor mechanism and the concept of expected returns on plan assets, to 
simple clarifications and re-wording. the more significant changes include the following:

	 	 •	 	For	defined	benefit	plans,	the	ability	to	defer	recognition	of	actuarial	gains	and	losses	(i.e.,	the	
corridor approach) has been removed. As revised, actuarial gains and losses are recognised 
in oCI when they occur. Amounts recorded in profit or loss are limited to current and past 
service costs, gains or losses on settlements, and net interest income (expense). All other 
changes in the net defined benefit asset (liability) are recognised in oCI with no subsequent 
recycling to profit or loss.

	 	 •	 	Objectives	for	disclosures	of	defined	benefit	plans	are	explicitly	stated	in	the	revised	standard,	
along with new or revised disclosure requirements. these new disclosures include quantitative 
information of the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to a reasonably possible change 
in each significant actuarial assumption.
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1. ACCouNtING poLICIeS continued
 1.25 new OR RevISed IFRS STandaRdS and InTeRPReTaTIOnS continued
	 	 •	 	Termination	benefits	will	be	recognised	at	the	earlier	of	when	the	offer	of	termination	cannot	

be withdrawn, or when the related restructuring costs are recognised under IAS 37 Liabilities.

	 	 •	 	The	distinction	between	short-term	and	other	long-term	employee	benefits	will	be	based	on	
expected timing of settlement rather than the employee’s entitlement to the benefits. 

   the Group does not have any defined benefit plans and will therefore not be impacted by a 
number of these amendments.  the Group is currently assessing the full impact of the remaining 
amendments (termination benefits and definitions of short-term and long-term employee benefits). 
the amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

  IaS 27 Separate Financial Statements (as revised in 2011)
   As a consequence of the new IFRS 10 and IFRS 12, what remains of IAS 27 is limited to accounting 

for subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities, and associates in separate financial statements. the 
amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

  IaS 28 Investments in associates and Joint ventures (as revised in 2011)
   As a consequence of the new IFRS 11 and IFRS 12, IAS 28 has been renamed IAS 28 Investments in 

Associates and Joint Ventures, and describes the application of the equity method to investments 
in joint ventures in addition to associates. the amendment becomes effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and will have no impact on the Group as the revised 
standard does not change the rules in applying equity accounting and the Group does not have 
any interests in joint arrangements.

   IaS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation (amendment) – Offsetting Financial assets and Financial 
Liabilities

	 	 	The	IASB	issued	an	amendment	to	clarify	the	meaning	of	“currently	has	a	legally	enforceable	right	
to	set	off	the	recognised	amounts”	(IAS	32.42(a)).	This	means	that	the	right	of	set-off:

	 	 •	 Must	not	be	contingent	on	a	future	event;	and

	 	 •	 Must	be	legally	enforceable	in	all	of	the	following	circumstances:
   – the normal course of business;
   – the event of default; and
   – the event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the entity and all of the counterparties.

   the amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 and the 
Group is still in the process of determining how it will impact the statement of financial position and 
statement of comprehensive income upon adoption.

  IFRS 1 First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (amendment)
   the amendments dealing with loans received from governments at a below market rate of interest, 

give first-time adopters of IFRSs relief from full retrospective application of IFRSs when accounting for 
these loans on transition. the amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2013 and will not impact the Group as the Group already reports in terms of IFRS.

    IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: disclosures (amendment) – disclosures – Offsetting Financial assets and 
Financial Liabilities

   the amendment amends the required disclosures to include information that will enable users of 
an entity’s financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements, 
including rights of set-off associated with the entity’s recognised financial assets and recognised 
financial liabilities, on the entity’s financial position.  the amendment is effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and the Group is still in the process of determining how it will 
impact the note disclosures upon adoption.
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  IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: classification and measurement
   IFRS 9 as issued reflects the first phase of the IASb’s work on the replacement of IAS 39 and applies 

to classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities as defined in IAS 32. 
the standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015. In subsequent 
phases, the IASb will address hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets. the completion 
of this project is expected in the second half of 2013. the adoption of the first phase of IFRS 9 
will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets, but will 
potentially have no impact on classification and measurement of financial liabilities. the Group will 
quantify the effect in conjunction with the other phases, when issued, to present a comprehensive 
picture.

  Financial assets
   All financial assets are measured at fair value at initial recognition. Debt instruments may, if the Fair 

Value option (FVo) is not invoked, be subsequently measured at amortised cost if:

	 	 •	 	The	asset	is	held	within	a	business	model	that	has	the	objective	to	hold	the	assets	to	collect	
the contractual cash flows; and

	 	 •	 	The	contractual	terms	of	the	financial	asset	give	rise,	on	specified	dates,	to	cash	flows	that	are	
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding.

  All other debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value.

   All equity investment financial assets are measured at fair value either through other comprehensive 
income (oCI) or profit or loss. equity instruments held for trading must be measured at fair value 
through profit or loss. however, entities have an irrevocable choice to recognise fair value changes 
in oCI by instrument for all other equity financial assets. 

  Financial liabilities
   For FVo liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable to 

changes in credit risk must be presented in oCI. the remainder of the change in fair value is 
presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value change in respect of the liability’s 
credit risk in oCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. All other  
IAS 39 classification and measurement requirements for financial liabilities have been carried 
forward into IFRS 9, including the embedded derivative separation rules and the criteria for using 
the FVo.

   IFRS 10 consolidated Financial Statements
   IFRS 10 replaces the portion of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that 

addresses the accounting for consolidated financial statements. It also includes the issues raised 
in SIC-12 Consolidation – Special purpose entities. IFRS 10 establishes a single control model that 
applies to all entities including special purpose entities. 

  Control exists when an investor has:

	 	 •	 	Power	over	the	investee	(defined	in	IFRS	10	as	when	the	investor	has	existing	rights	that	give	it	
the current ability to direct the relevant activities);

	 	 •	 Exposure,	or	rights,	to	variable	returns	from	its	involvement	with	the	investee;	and

	 	 •	 The	ability	to	use	its	power	over	the	investee	to	affect	the	amount	of	the	investor’s	returns.

   IFRS 10 also provides a number of clarifications on applying this new definition of control, including 
the following key points:

	 	 •	 	An	investor	 is	any	party	that	potentially	controls	an	investee;	such	party	need	not	hold	an	
equity investment to be considered an investor;

	 	 •	 	An	investor	may	have	control	over	an	investee	even	when	it	has	less	than	a	majority	of	the	
voting rights of that investee (sometimes referred to as de facto control);

	 	 •	 	Exposure	to	risks	and	rewards	is	an	indicator	of	control,	but	does	not	in	itself	constitute	control;
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 1.25 new OR RevISed IFRS STandaRdS and InTeRPReTaTIOnS continued
   IFRS 10 consolidated Financial Statements continued
	 	 •	 	When	decision-making	rights	have	been	delegated	or	are	being	held	for	the	benefit	of	others,	

it is necessary to assess whether a decision-maker is a principal or an agent to determine 
whether it has control; and

	 	 •	 Consolidation	is	required	until	such	time	as	control	ceases,	even	if	control	is	temporary.

   the changes introduced by IFRS 10 will require management to exercise significant judgement to 
determine which entities are controlled, and therefore, are required to be consolidated by a parent, 
compared with the requirements that were in IAS 27. this standard becomes effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and the Group will assess the impact upon adoption 
of this new standard.

   IFRS 11 Joint arrangements
   IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 and SIC-13. Joint control under IFRS 11 is defined as the contractually agreed 

sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when the decisions about the relevant 
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. the reference to ‘control’ in 
‘joint control’ refers to the definition of ‘control’ in IFRS 10.

   IFRS 11 also changes the accounting for joint arrangements by moving from three categories 
under IAS 31 to the following two categories:

   Joint operation: An arrangement in which the parties with joint control have rights to the assets and 
obligations for the liabilities relating to that arrangement. Joint operations are accounted for by 
showing the party’s interest in the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and/or its relative share 
of jointly controlled assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses, if any.

   Joint venture: An arrangement in which the parties with joint control have rights to the net assets of 
the arrangement. Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity accounting method.

   the option to account for joint ventures (as newly defined) using proportionate consolidation has 
been removed. under this new classification, the structure of the joint arrangement is not the only 
factor considered when classifying the joint arrangement as either a joint operation or a joint 
venture, which is a change from IAS 31. under IFRS 11, parties are required to consider whether a 
separate vehicle exists and, if so, the legal form of the separate vehicle, the contractual terms and 
conditions, and other facts and circumstances.

   this standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and will 
have no impact on the Group as it is not party to any joint arrangements.

  IFRS 12 disclosure of Involvement with Other entities
   IFRS 12 includes all of the disclosures that were previously in IAS 27 related to consolidated financial 

statements, as well as all of the disclosures that were previously included in IAS 31 and IAS 28. 
these disclosures relate to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and 
structured entities. A number of new disclosures are also required. this standard becomes effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and the impact of adopting this new 
standard is still being assessed.

  IFRS 13 Fair value measurement
   IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair value measurements. IFRS 13 

does not change when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on 
how to measure fair value under IFRS when fair value is required or permitted, as well as providing 
clarification on certain areas. the Group is currently assessing the impact that this standard will 
have on the financial position and performance. this standard becomes effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
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  IFRIc 21 Levies
   IFRIC 21 provides guidance on when to recognise a liability for a levy imposed by a government, 

both for levies that are accounted for in accordance with IAS 37 provisions, Contingent Liabilities 
and Contingent Assets and those where the timing and amount of the levy are certain. the 
interpretation clarifies that an entity recognises a liability for a levy when the activity that triggers 
payment, as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. It also clarifies that a levy liability is 
accrued progressively only if the activity that triggers payment occurs over a period of time, in 
accordance with the relevant legislation. For a levy that is triggered upon reaching a minimum 
threshold, the interpretation clarifies that no liability should be recognised before the specified 
minimum threshold is reached. 

   this IFRIC is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 and will have no 
impact on the Group as the Group does not pay government levies.

  IaS 36 disclosure Requirements for the Recoverable amount of Impaired assets
   the IASb has issued amendments to IAS 36 – Impairment of Assets, to clarify the disclosure 

requirements about the recoverable amount of impaired assets if that amount is based on fair 
value less costs of disposal. the amendments clarify the IASb’s original intention: that the scope 
of these disclosures is limited to the recoverable amount of impaired assets that is based on fair 
value less costs of disposal. this amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after  
1 January 2014 and will have no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance but may 
have an impact on disclosure.

  annual Improvements may 2012
  these improvements will not have an impact on the Group, but include:

  IFRS 1 First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
   this improvement clarifies that an entity that stopped applying IFRS in the past and chooses, or is 

required, to apply IFRS, has the option to re-apply IFRS 1. If IFRS 1 is not re-applied, an entity must 
retrospectively restate its financial statements as if it had never stopped applying IFRS.

  IaS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
   this improvement clarifies the difference between voluntary additional comparative information 

and the minimum required comparative information. Generally, the minimum required comparative 
information is the previous period.

  IaS 16 Property, Plant and equipment
   this improvement clarifies that major spare parts and servicing equipment that meet the definition 

of property, plant and equipment are not inventory.

  IaS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentation
   this improvement clarifies that income taxes arising from distributions to equity holders are 

accounted for in accordance with IAS 12 Income taxes.

  IaS 34 Interim Financial Reporting
   the amendment aligns the disclosure requirements for total segment assets with total segment 

liabilities in interim financial statements. this clarification also ensures that interim disclosures are 
aligned with annual disclosures.

  these improvements are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
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 GROUP GRoup  cOmPany CompANy
 2013  2012  2013  2012 

 R  R  R  R 

2. ReVeNue
Services rendered  260 612 168  173 186 880 – –
Sale of goods  42 789 429  46 426 654 – –

turnover  303 401 597  219 613 534 – –
Finance income  2 118 418  4 247 090  14 672  22 
management fees received – –  12 414 673  6 915 140 
Dividend income – – –  3 075 051 
Sundry revenue  515 031  908 304  8 652 –

 306 035 046  224 768 928  12 437 997  9 990 213 

3. pRoFIt/(LoSS) beFoRe tAXAtIoN
profit/(loss) before taxation is stated after:
Income
Foreign exchange profit  1 702 453  2 219 284 – –
bad debts recovered  34 726  184 560 – –
profit on sale of property and equipment –  16 655 – –
management fees received – –  12 414 673  6 915 140 
Finance income  2 118 418  4 247 090  14 672  22 

Imputed interest  1 237 846  3 093 312 – –
Interest received from SARS  31 898 –  14 660 –
Interest on cash and cash equivalents  848 674  1 153 778  12  22 

expenditure
Auditors’ remuneration  1 975 181  1 939 279  136 329  93 279 

– In respect of current year  1 560 059  1 402 214  95 153  43 279 
– underprovision of prior year  271 755  424 090  35 396 –
– In respect of other services  143 367  112 975  5 780  50 000 

Depreciation  2 902 874  2 363 137 – –
Finance costs
– borrowings  785 526  706 836 –  43 666 
Foreign exchange loss  686 514  186 856  30 462 –
Amortisation of intangible assets  2 143 063  985 713 – –
Staff costs  174 688 253  125 340 692  6 778 946 –

– Salaries and wages  171 085 060  122 773 207  6 507 035 –
– pension costs  3 603 193  2 567 485  271 911 –

operating lease charges
– property  7 366 058  5 980 535 – –
Loss on sale of property and equipment  20 852 – – –
provision for impairment of trade and 
   other receivables  3 212 109  2 653 026 – –
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 GROUP GRoup  cOmPany CompANy
 2013  2012  2013  2012 

 R  R  R  R 

4. DIReCtoRS’ emoLumeNtS
directors and past executive directors
In connection with the affairs of the Company  4 255 622  3 920 110  4 255 622  3 920 110 

Salary and medical aid
– Sbu Shabalala  1 052 155  789 971  1 052 155  789 971 
– Siboniso Shabalala*  734 221  866 679  734 221  866 679 
– t Dunsdon  946 979  846 147  946 979  846 147 
Retirement
– Sbu Shabalala  83 188  65 252  83 188  65 252 
– Siboniso Shabalala*  58 940  71 588  58 940  71 588 
– t Dunsdon  12 900  10 708  12 900  10 708 
bonus and performance-related payments
– Sbu Shabalala  380 000  200 351  380 000  200 351 
– Siboniso Shabalala*  91 239  100 000  91 239  100 000 
– t Dunsdon  260 000  139 414  260 000  139 414 
Retention payments
– Sbu Shabalala  324 000  380 000  324 000  380 000 
– Siboniso Shabalala* –  179 000 –  179 000 
– t Dunsdon  312 000  271 000  312 000  271 000 

directors and past non-executive directors
For attending meetings  528 167  430 000  528 167  430 000 

Ab Ravnö**  67 667  150 000  67 667  150 000 
C Chambers  184 500  70 000  184 500  70 000 
b Ntuli  92 000  70 000  92 000  70 000 
t Dingaan  92 000  70 000  92 000  70 000 
m Nhlapo***  55 857  70 000  55 857  70 000 
o Fortuin****  36 143 –  36 143 –

 4 783 789  4 350 110  4 783 789  4 350 110 

* S Sbalabala resigned on 31 march 2013
** Ab Ravnö resigned on 26 october 2012
*** m Nhlapo resigned on 8 February 2013
**** o Fortuin was appointed on 8 February 2013
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NoTES To THE ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEMENTS

GROUP GRoup cOmPany CompANy
2013 2012 2013 2012

R R R R

5. INCome tAX eXpeNSe/(CReDIt)
South african normal tax
Current tax
– Current year  5 082 792  9 295 905  14 968  –
– prior year (over)/under provision  (260 499) (22 051) (4 924) 394
Deferred tax
– Current year  1 436 857 (2 315 332) (184 625)  (41 294) 
– prior year (over)/under provision  (990 397) 186 832 (227 266)  –
– Change in tax rate*  –  34 331  –    –
Secondary tax on companies  – 280 645  –   280 645
Share transfer tax  – 43 128  –   43 128

 5 268 753 7 503 458  (401 847) 282 873

Foreign tax
– Current year  1 764 557  –  –    –   
– prior year (over)/under provision  (391 559) 100 766  –    –   

 1 372 998 100 766  –    –   

tax for the year  6 641 751 7 604 224  (401 847) 282 873

Reconciliation of rate of taxation  %  %  %  % 

South African normal tax rate  28,0  28,0  28,0  28,0 
Adjusted for:
– permanent differences  (2,0)  2,7  (9,3)  (56,2)
–  prior year (over)/under provision in current 

and foreign tax  (2,1)  0,3 0,5  –
–  prior year (over)/under provision in deferred 

tax  (3,2)  0,7  25,0  –
– withholding tax paid  5,8  –  –  –
– withholding tax credits  (5,0)  (4,5)  –  –
– unprovided tax losses utilised  0,1  –  –  – 
– Change in tax rate  –  0,1  –  –
– unprovided tax losses  –  0,9  –  23,9 
– Secondary tax on companies  –  1,1  –  29,2 
– Share transfer tax  –  0,2 –  4,5 

effective tax rate  21,6  29,5  44,2  29,4

*   the prior year change in tax rate related to New Zealand tax rate change from 30% in 2011 to 28% for the 
year ended 30 June 2012 and the increase in Capital Gains tax (CGt) inclusion rate in South Africa from 
50% in 2011 to 66,66% for the year ended 30 June 2012. R8 930 324 (2012: R3 939 953) of assessed losses 
brought forward was used in the current year to reduce taxable profits.
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6 eARNINGS AND DIVIDeNDS peR ShARe
6.1 earnings per share

 the calculation of earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to equity holders of R24 090 653 
(2012: R18 143 152) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year of  
108 286 526 (2012: 103 904 368). the calculation of fully diluted earnings per share is based on the profit 
of R24 090 653 (2012: R18 143 152) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during 
the year of 108 286 526 (2012: 103 904 368).

there is no effect of dilution in the current or prior year.
  GROUP  GRoup 

 2013  2012
R R

Reconciliation between earnings and headline earnings
earnings attributable to equity holders of the parent  24 090 653  18 143 152 
Adjusted for:
– Loss/(profit) on sale of property and equipment (refer note 3)  20 852 (16 655)

headline earnings   24 111 505  18 126 497 

basic earnings per share  (cents)  22,25  17,46 
headline earnings per share  (cents)  22,27  17,45 
Fully diluted basic earnings per share  (cents)  22,25  17,46 
Fully diluted headline earnings per share  (cents)  22,27  17,45 

6.2 Dividends per share
Dividends per share  (cents)  4,84  2,84 
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7. PROPERTy	AnD	EQUIPMEnT

Owner-
occupied 
property – 
land and 
building 

 computer
 hardware 

 Furniture
 and 

fittings 
Telephone 
equipment 

 R  R  R  R 

GROUP 2013
Carrying amount at beginning of year 

– Cost or valuation 13 658 711  7 802 237 3 726 186 2 333 896 
–  Accumulated depreciation (553 316) (5 413 046) (1 669 881) (1 115 032)

Carrying amount at beginning of year 13 105 395  2 389 191  2 056 305 1 218 864 

Current year movements
– Additions  4 263 497  1 673 599  1 277 857  29 522
– Revaluation  2 224 914  –  –  –
–  Acquisition of subsidiary  –  –  727 614  –
– Disposals  –  (15 969)  (50 772)  –

– Cost  –  (2 796 615)  (485 122)  –
–  Accumulated depreciation  –  2 780 646  434 350  –

– transfers:  –  (6 239)  6 239  –

– Cost
–  –  –  –

–  Accumulated depreciation –  (6 239)  6 239  –

– Depreciation  (293 806)  (1 407 644)  (457 781) (468 366)
–  Foreign exchange adjustments  –    3 764  (3)  –

– Cost –  (214 226)  (4 563) –
–  Accumulated depreciation  –    217 990  4 560  –

Carrying amount at end of year  19 300 000  2 636 702  3 559 459  780 020 

made up as follows:
– Cost or valuation 20 147 122  6 464 995  5 241 972  2 363 418 
–  Accumulated depreciation (847 122)  (3 828 293)  (1 682 513) (1 583 398)

Carrying amount at end of year 19 300 000 2 636 702 3 559 459  780 020 

NoTES To THE ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEMENTS
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7. PROPERTy	AnD	EQUIPMEnT	continued

Leasehold
improve-

ments
 Office

 equipment 
motor

vehicles  Total 
 R  R  R  R 

GROUP 2013
Carrying amount at beginning of year 

– Cost or valuation  1 938 278  385 254  119 306  29 963 868 
–  Accumulated depreciation (484 765) (133 332) (119 306)  (9 488 678)

Carrying amount at beginning of year 1 453 513  251 922 –  20 475 190 

Current year movements
– Additions  574 044  83 650 – 7 902 169 
– Revaluation  –  –    – 2 224 914 
–  Acquisition of subsidiary  –  –    –  727 614 
– Disposals  –  (12 824)  –  (79 565)

– Cost  –  (37 433)  (29 305) (3 348 475) 
–  Accumulated depreciation  –  24 609  29 305  3 268 910 

– transfers:  –  –    –  –

– Cost
 –  –    –  –

–  Accumulated depreciation  –  –    –  –

– Depreciation  (197 745)  (77 532)  – (2 902 874)
–  Foreign exchange adjustments  –    –    –    3 761 

– Cost  –    –    8 919 (209 870)
–  Accumulated depreciation  –    – (8 919)  213 631 

Carrying amount at end of year  1 829 812  245 216 – 28 351 209 

made up as follows:
– Cost or valuation  2 512 322  431 471  98 920 37 260 220 
–  Accumulated depreciation  (682 510)  (186 255)  (98 920) (8 909 011) 

Carrying amount at end of year  1 829 812  245 216  – 28 351 209
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7. PROPERTy	AnD	EQUIPMEnT	continued
owner-

occupied 
property – 
land and 
building

 Computer
 hardware 

 Furniture
 and 

fittings 
telephone 

equipment 
 R  R  R  R 

GROUP 2012
Carrying amount at beginning of year 
– Cost or valuation 13 363 596  7 866 479  3 968 647  2 333 896 
–  Accumulated depreciation (363 596) (5 249 747) (1 670 407) (648 253)

Carrying amount at beginning of year 13 000 000  2 616 732  2 298 240  1 685 643 

Current year movements
– Additions  295 115  839 172  26 736 –
–  Acquisition of subsidiary  –  52 897  65 020  –   
– Disposals –  5 333  (13 021) –

– Cost  – (974 978)  (334 476)  –   
–  Accumulated depreciation – 980 311  321 455  – 

– Depreciation (189 720) (1 132 099) (320 670) (466 779)
–  Foreign exchange adjustments  –  7 156  –    –   

– Cost –  18 667  259  –   
–  Accumulated depreciation –  (11 511)  (259)  –   

Carrying amount at end of year  13 105 395  2 389 191  2 056 305  1 218 864 

made up as follows:
– Cost or valuation  13 658 711  7 802 237  3 726 186  2 333 896 
–  Accumulated depreciation (553 316) (5 413 046) (1 669 881) (1 115 032)

Carrying amount at end of year  13 105 395  2 389 191  2 056 305  1 218 864 

NoTES To THE ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEMENTS
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7. PROPERTy	AnD	EQUIPMEnT	continued

Leasehold
improve-

ments
 office

 equipment 
motor

vehicles  total 
 R  R  R  R 

GROUP 2012
Carrying amount at beginning of year 
– Cost or valuation  1 938 278  358 845  112 312 29 942 053
–  Accumulated depreciation (291 515) (72 713) (112 312) (8 408 543)

Carrying amount at beginning of year  1 646 763  286 132  –  21 533 510 

Current year movements
– Additions  –    6 538  –    1 167 561 
–  Acquisition of subsidiary  –    19 871  –    137 788 
– Disposals  –    –    –   (7 688)

– Cost  –    –    –   (1 309 454)
–  Accumulated depreciation  –    –    –   1 301 766 

– Depreciation (193 250) (60 619)  –   (2 363 137)
–  Foreign exchange adjustments  –    –    –    7 156 

– Cost  –    –    6 994  25 920 
–  Accumulated depreciation  –   –  (6 994)  (18 764 )

Carrying amount at end of year  1 453 513  251 922 –  20 475 190 

made up as follows:
– Cost or valuation  1 938 278  385 254  119 306 29 963 868
–  Accumulated depreciation (484 765) (133 332) (119 306) (9 488 678)

Carrying amount at end of year  1 453 513  251 922 – 20 475 190

 Assets within the Computer hardware and telephone equipment categories have been pledged as security,  
in favour of Ibm Global Finance (refer note 16 for details).

 the owner–occupied property is owned by the ItS Group and is accounted for under the revaluation model. 
management determines the value of the property, with reference to the expertise of an independent valuer,  
(I Joubert of IJ Valuations (pty) Ltd), who assisted in evaluating the property on 30 June 2013. IJ Valuations 
(pty) Ltd is not connected to the Company or Group and has recent valuation experience in the location and 
category of the investment property being valued. the valuation was based on open market value for existing 
use.

the assumptions used are based on current market conditions.
JUne JuNe
2013 2012

% %

yield 10,0 10,5

the land is described as:

 erf 1488 monument park, Registration Division JR, province of Gauteng: measuring 5 090 square metres. 
purchased at a cost of R4 348 450. Additions and improvements since the date of acquisition amount to  
R6 559 799 (2012: R2 296 302).

 erf 1488 represents the consolidation of the previous erf 479, Remaining extent of erf 15, portion 1 of plot 15  
and erf 13 monument park, Registration Division JR, province of Gauteng.

had land and buildings been measured using the cost model instead of at fair value, the carrying amount 
would be R17 075 086 (2012: R13 105 395).

the property has been ceded to Investec private bank Limited as security for a financing facility granted to 
Adapt It (pty) Ltd.
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 Inhouse
 developed

 software  Trademarks 

 acquired
 computer

 software 
 Licence

 acquired  Total 
 R  R  R  R  R 

8. INtANGIbLe ASSetS
GROUP 2013
Carrying amount at beginning of year 
– Cost or valuation  3 511 238  27 610  27 953  –  3 566 801 
– Accumulated amortisation (2 225 755) (11 393) (21 709)  – (2 258 857)

Carrying amount at beginning of year  1 285 483  16 217  6 244  –  1 307 944 

Current year movements
– Additions  905 763  –    –    5 672 715  6 578 478 
– Acquisition of subsidiary  –    –    28 650  –    28 650 
– Disposals  –    –    (9)  –    (9)

– Cost  –    –    (9)  –    (9) 
–  Accumulated depreciation/

amortisation  –    –    –  –  –

– Amortisation  (1 295 242)  (1 380)  (18 558)  (827 883)  (2 143 063)

Carrying amount at end of year  896 004  14 837  16 327  4 844 832  5 772 000 

made up as follows:
– Cost or valuation  4 417 001  27 610  56 594  5 672 715  10 173 920 
– Accumulated amortisation  (3 520 997)  (12 773)  (40 267)  (827 883)  (4 401 920) 

Carrying amount at end of year  896 004  14 837  16 327  4 844 832  5 772 000 

GROUP 2012
Carrying amount at beginning of year 
– Cost or valuation  2 674 478  27 610  96 048  –    2 798 136 
– Accumulated amortisation  (1 251 354)  (10 013)  (84 271)  –    (1 345 638)

Carrying amount at beginning of year  1 423 124  17 597  11 777  –    1 452 498 

Current year movements
– Additions  836 760  –  4 398  –  841 158 
– Acquisition of subsidiary  –  –    1  –  1 
– Disposals  –    –  –    –    –

– Cost  –    –    (72 494)  –    (72 494) 
– Accumulated depreciation  –    –    72 494  –  72 494 

– Amortisation  (974 401)  (1 380)  (9 932) –  (985 713) 

Carrying amount at end of year  1 285 483  16 217  6 244  –  1 307 944 

made up as follows:
– Cost or valuation  3 511 238  27 610  27 953  –    3 566 801 
– Accumulated amortisation  (2 225 755)  (11 393)  (21 709)  –    (2 258 857)

Carrying amount at end of year  1 285 483  16 217  6 244  –  1 307 944 

 Inhouse developed software relates mainly to an inhouse accounting package with an estimated remaining 
useful life of between two and four years (2012: two and four years). 

 the licence acquired relates to licences bought from SAp and is being amortised over the term of the licence 
period, being five years. 

NoTES To THE ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEMENTS
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GROUP GRoup cOmPany CompANy
2013 2012 2013 2012

R R R R

9. GooDwILL
Carrying amount at beginning of year  25 657 554  10 407 854  –    –   
Acquisition of bI planning Services (pty) Ltd  –  15 249 700  –    –   
Acquisition of Swicon360 (pty) Ltd  12 352 476  –    –    –   

Carrying amount at end of year  38 010 030  25 657 554  –    –   

Comprising:
Cost  38 010 030  25 657 554  –    –   

Goodwill is allocated as follows:
– Adapt It (pty) Ltd  10 349 145  10 349 145  –    –   
– ApplyIt (pty) Ltd  58 709  58 709  –    –   
– bI planning Services (pty) Ltd  15 249 700  15 249 700  –    –   
– Swicon360 (pty) Ltd  12 352 476  –    –    –   

For more detail on investments, refer to note 10.

Total  38 010 030  25 657 554  –    –   

 the Group tests goodwill annually for impairment. As at 30 June 2013, the carrying amount of goodwill was 
considered not to require impairment.

 the recoverable amount of goodwill has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash 
flow projections from financial forecasts approved by senior management covering a five–year period. Cash 
flow projections take into account past experience and external sources of information. the valuation method 
used is consistent with the prior year. there have been no accumulated impairment losses recognised to date.

the key assumptions used in the testing of goodwill are:

– Discount rate of 11% (2012: 12%) (weighted average cost of capital); and

– projected cash flows for the five years based on a 5% (2012: 5%) growth rate.

cOmPany CompANy cOmPany CompANy
effective 
holding 

effective 
holding

Investment 
at cost

Investment 
at cost

2013 2012 2013 2012
 %  %  R R

10. INteReSt IN SubSIDIARIeS AND ShARe tRuSt
Incorporated in South africa
Adapt It (pty) Ltd  100  100  15 967 052  15 967 052 
ApplyIt (pty) Ltd  100  100  3 688  3 688 
ItS holdings (pty) Ltd  100  100  14 894 461  14 894 461 
bI planning Services (pty) Ltd  100  100  17 250 200  17 250 200 
Adapt It holdings Limited Share Incentive trust ** ** – –

 48 115 401  48 115 401 

** 100% consolidation
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cOmPany cOmPany
2013 2012

R R

10. INteReSt IN SubSIDIARIeS AND ShARe tRuSt continued
Adapt It (pty) Ltd
Shares at cost 15 967 052 15 967 052
Amounts owing to subsidiary (39 289 123) (37 741 598)

(23 322 071) (21 774 546)

this intercompany amount is between Adapt It (pty) Ltd and Adapt It  
holdings Limited.

No interest is charged and there are no fixed terms of repayment.

ApplyIt (pty) Ltd
Shares at cost  3 688  3 688 
Loan to subsidiary  1 357 848  1 357 848 

 1 361 536  1 361 536 

this intercompany loan is between ApplyIt (pty) Ltd and Adapt It holdings 
Limited.

No interest is charged and there are no fixed terms of repayment.

ItS holdings (pty) Ltd
Shares at cost  14 894 461  14 894 461 
Loan to subsidiary  4 237 036  9 057 036 

 19 131 497  23 951 497 

 this intercompany loan is between ItS holdings (pty) Ltd and Adapt It 
holdings Limited, and relates to the ItS shareholder loan taken over by  
Adapt It holdings Limited as part of the business combination.

bI planning Services (pty) Ltd
Shares at cost  17 250 200  17 250 200 
Loan to subsidiary  – –

 17 250 200  17 250 200 

Adapt It holdings Limited Share Incentive trust
Loan to trust  46 241  46 241 

 46 241  46 241 

the indebtedness of the trust comes about as a result of interest earned on 
issue of share options. 

the loan is unsecured and no interest is charged. the loan has no set terms  
of repayment.

total shares at cost  48 115 401  48 115 401 
Net amount owing to subsidiaries  (33 647 998) (27 280 473)

– Amounts owing to subsidiary (39 289 123) (37 741 598)
– Loans to subsidiaries/trust  5 641 125  10 461 125 

Total interest  14 467 403  20 834 928 

 the directors’ valuation of the above investments exceed the carrying amounts as reflected above, and hence 
no impairment is considered necessary.

Refer to note 25 for details of transactions between related parties.

Loans receivable not past due nor impaired amount to R5 641 125 (2012: R10 461 125).

NoTES To THE ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEMENTS
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GROUP GRoup cOmPany CompANy
2013 2012 2013 2012

R R R R

11. DeFeRReD tAXAtIoN
the major components of the deferred  
taxation balance are as follows:

deferred taxation asset
temporary differences to be offset against 
future income:
Leave pay, bonus and other provisions  5 454 593  3 525 072  478 703  48 578 
Deferred revenue  5 866 899  6 578 845  –  –
estimated tax losses  2 719 041  1 960 584  –  –
Imputed interest  12 020  187 247  –  –
other  498 277  357 441  –  –

 14 550 830  12 609 189  478 703  48 578 

deferred taxation liability
prepaid expenditure  (600 567) (369 755) (25 518) (7 284)
Revenue in advance  (586 309) (1 368 494)  – –
Improvements to owner-occupied property  (125 819) (47 122)  – –
property and equipment  (2 434 144) (1 955 656)  – –

 (3 746 839) (3 741 027) (25 518) (7 284)

Reconciliation of deferred taxation
balance at beginning of year  8 868 162  6 303 654  41 294  –   
movements during the period attributable to:
– Charge to profit and loss (1 436 857)  2 315 332 184 625  41 294 
– Change in prior year 990 397 (186 832)  227 266  –
– tax rate change*  – (34 331)  –  –
– Revaluation of property (622 976) 219 207  –  –
– Acquisition of subsidiary 3 005 265  251 132  –  –

balance at end of year  10 803 991  8 868 162 453 185  41 294 

Deferred taxation has not been raised on estimated tax losses of R581 379 (2012: R581 379).

*   the change in tax rate related to New Zealand tax rate change from 30% in 2011 to 28% for the year ended 
30 June 2012 and the increase in Capital Gains tax (CGt) inclusion rate in South Africa from 50% in 2011 to 
66,66% for the year ended 30 June 2012.
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GROUP GRoup cOmPany CompANy
2013 2012 2013 2012

R R R R

12. tRADe AND otheR ReCeIVAbLeS
trade receivables  65 043 686  62 516 106  –    473 901 
other receivables  1 168 567  1 110 366  –   –
prepaid expenses  4 276 602  2 201 693  101 270  26 014 

 70 488 855  65 828 165  101 270  499 915 
provision for impairment  (6 450 116)  (4 416 131)  –    –   

 64 038 739  61 412 034  101 270  499 915 

The movement in provision for impairment:
balance at beginning of year  4 416 131  1 917 794  –    –   
Charge for the year  3 212 109  2 653 026  –    –   
Amounts written-off  (1 197 054)  (184 560)  –    –   
Foreign exchange movement  18 930  (130 973)  –    –   
Acquisition of subsidiary  –  160 844  –    –   

balance at end of year  6 450 116  4 416 131  –  –   

trade receivables are non-interest-bearing and are generally on 30 to 90 day terms.

 All receivables have been assessed for impairment. only trade receivables require a provision for impairment 
due to related objective evidence.

other receivables relate mainly to contracts in progress.

NoTES To THE ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEMENTS
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GROUP GRoup cOmPany CompANy
2013 2012 2013 2012

R R R R

13. CASH	AnD	CASH	EQUIVALEnTS
bank balances 2 506 158 8 321 695 2 267 419 102 203
Cash on deposit 20 075 465 16 929 398  –    –   
Foreign currency 91 569 127 271  –    –   
petty cash 19 469 16 842  –    –   

total cash and cash equivalents at year-end 22 692 661 25 395 206 2 267 419 102 203

total bank overdraft at year-end –  744 780  –    –   

Net cash and cash equivalents at year-end 22 692 661 24 650 426 2 267 419 102 203

bank balances earn interest at floating 
rates based on daily bank deposit rates. 
Short–term deposits are made for varying 
periods of between one day and three 
months, depending on the immediate cash 
requirements of the Group and earn interest  
at the respective short–term deposit rates.

14. ShARe CApItAL
authorised
200 000 000 ordinary shares at 0,01 cent each  20 000  20 000  20 000  20 000 

Issued
111 001 011 (2012: 111 001 011) ordinary 
   shares of 0,01 cent each  11 100  11 100  11 100  11 100 
Less:
2 774 647 (2012: 2 560 647) treasury shares 
   of 0,01 cent each  277  256  –  –

 10 823  10 844  11 100  11 100 

 2013
number 

of shares 

2012
 Number

 of shares 

Reconciliation of the number of ordinary shares in issue and treasury shares on 
hand 

Ordinary shares in issue
balance at beginning of year  111 001 011  98 818 551 
Issue of shares for acquisition –  12 182 460 

balance at end of the year  111 001 011  111 001 011 

Treasury shares on hand
balance at beginning of year  2 560 647  465 085 
purchase of treasury shares  214 000  2 136 687 
Issue of treasury shares –  (41 125) 

balance at end of the year  2 774 647  2 560 647 

 the remaining unissued shares are under the control of the Directors subject to the provision of Section 41 and 
42 of the Companies Act, 2008 as amended, and the Rules and Regulations of the JSe Securities exchange 
South Africa. All shares are fully paid up.
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GROUP GRoup cOmPany CompANy
2013 2012 2013 2012

R R R R

15. ShARe pRemIum
balance at beginning of year  14 920 145  8 650 098  17 457 386  8 833 005 
on shares (repurchased)/allotted 
   during the year  (294 228)  6 270 047 –  8 624 381 

balance at end of year  14 625 917  14 920 145  17 457 386  17 457 386 

16. INteReSt-beARING boRRowINGS
Non-current borrowings  –    642 519  –  –

Ibm Global Finance  –    642 519  –    –   

Current portion of borrowings  642 519  1 171 156  –    –   

Ibm Global Finance  642 519  1 156 513  –    –   
Investec private bank Limited  –    14 643  –    –   

total  642 519  1 813 675  –    –   

  Interest rate  Interest rate 
2013

%
2012 

% maturity

name of entity 1 January 
Ibm Global Finance 14,00 14,00 2014

Investec private bank Limited – 10,00 –

Ibm Global Finance
 the loan from Ibm Global Finance was obtained to fund certain capital expenditure in 2010. the loan is secured 
by the financed equipment with a net carrying amount of R1 681 271 (2012: R2 125 990). Refer to note 7 for 
details of this equipment.

 the lease provides for 48 equal repayments, inclusive of interest, of R111 571, payable in advance on the first 
of each month. ownership on the leased assets passes to Adapt It (pty) Ltd at the end of the leased term. the 
interest rate is fixed at 14% per annum.

Investec Private bank Limited
 A loan from Investec private bank Limited was obtained in october 2012 to fund working capital requirements. 
this was subsequently paid in full.

 A new loan from Investec private bank Limited was obtained in July 2013 to fund future working capital 
requirements. the loan is a 30 month credit facility at an interest rate of 0,25% below Investec private bank 
Limited’s prime rate. the property has been ceded to Investec private bank Limited as security (note 7).

NoTES To THE ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEMENTS
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GROUP GRoup cOmPany CompANy
2013 2012 2013 2012

R R R R

17. tRADe AND otheR pAyAbLeS
trade payables  12 055 936  4 393 198  344 649  300 425 
Accruals  3 456 523  5 597 877  50 230  37 594 
VAt  751 488  1 270 177  54 872  335 386 
other payables  2 285 926  3 964 653 – –

 18 549 873  15 225 905  449 751  673 405 

trade payables are non-interest-bearing and 
are normally settled on 30 day terms.

Accruals, VAt and other payables are  
non-interest-bearing and are normally settled 
on 60 days.

18. pRoVISIoNS
Leave pay
Carrying value at beginning of year 4 514 268 3 709 811 173 493 –
provision created during the year 2 381 834 2 979 615 117 336 173 493
provision released during the year (2 316 742) (2 415 158) (71 174) –
Acquisition of subsidiary 587 774 240 000 – –

Carrying value at end of year 5 167 134 4 514 268 219 655 173 493

 the leave pay provision is calculated using 
the total cost of employment multiplied by 
the leave days outstanding at year-end. the 
expected release date of leave pay benefits  
is within the subsequent year of trading.

bonuses
Carrying value at beginning of year 8 216 018 5 177 814 1 269 765 –
provision created during the year 11 541 653 11 695 564 1 490 000 1 269 765
paid during the year (11 247 715) (8 889 786) (1 269 765) –
provision reversed during the year (197 011) (16 378) – –
Acquisition of subsidiary 720 000 248 804 – –

Carrying value at end of year 9 032 945 8 216 018 1 490 000 1 269 765

 the bonus provision is based on the results 
of the Group and the related performance 
evaluation of the employees.

total 14 200 079 12 730 286 1 709 655 1 443 258
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GROUP GRoup cOmPany CompANy
2013 2012 2013 2012

R R R R

19. NoteS to the StAtemeNtS oF CASh FLow
19.1 Cash generated from/(utilised in) 

operations
profit/(loss) before taxation 30 732 404 25 747 376 (908 419) 959 612
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 5 045 937 3 348 850 – –
Net loss/(profit) on disposal of 
   property and equipment 20 852 (16 655) – –
Finance income (2 118 418) (4 247 090) (14 672) (22)
Finance costs 785 526 706 836 – 43 666
Dividends received – – – (3 075 051)
Increase in provisions 162 019 3 353 857 266 397 1 443 258
working capital changes:
Decrease/(increase) in trade and 
   other receivables 6 928 295 (14 219 991) 398 645 (416 934)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and 
   other payables (8 164 180) 4 388 673 (223 654) 453 746
Increase in deferred income 3 269 628 10 175 490 – –

36 662 063 29 237 346 (481 703) (591 725)

19.2 taxation paid/(refunded)
Charge to the statement of 
   comprehensive income 6 641 751 7 604 224 (401 847) 282 873
Adjustment for deferred taxation (446 460) 2 094 169 411 891 41 294
Acquisition of subsidiary – 1 966 030 – –
movement in taxation balance 5 285 898 821 025 (347 215) 114 869

11 481 189 12 485 448 (337 171) 439 036

NoTES To THE ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEMENTS

20. buSINeSS CombINAtIoNS
20.1 Acquisition of subsidiary

 on 1 october 2012, the Group acquired the entire issued share capital of Swicon360 (pty) Ltd, a South 
African registered company.

 Swicon360 (pty) Ltd is an unlisted company and a SAp® service partner that specialises in providing 
business outsourcing (bpo) services for the SAp® eRp human Capital management (SAp® eRp hCm) 
solution to clients across diverse sectors, deployed in a cloud environment.

the acquisition was concluded for a purchase consideration of R11 700 000. the purchase 
consideration consists of R9 350 000  cash paid on 31 october 2012 and R1 050 000 payable on  
1 october 2013, disclosed under non-interest-bearing liabilities. the balance of R1 300 000 of the purchase 
consideration will be funded from the issue of 1 000 000 Adapt It shares valued at R1,30 per share to be 
issued on 1 october 2013. the R1 300 000 new shares have been disclosed under other capital reserves.

the fair value of the net liabilities acquired amounted to R652 476, resulting in goodwill of R12 352 476 
at acquisition. the consideration paid for the combination effectively included amounts in relation 
to the benefit of the expected synergies, revenue growth, new market penetration and future market 
development.

the acquisition provides Adapt It additional depth and expertise in SAp® technology and solutions 
required to extend value-added services to existing customers in mining and manufacturing.

the fair values of the identifiable net assets and liabilities of Swicon360 (pty) Ltd as at the date of 
acquisition were:
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 Fair value 
 recognised 

on 
 acquisition 

 R 

20. buSINeSS CombINAtIoNS continued
20.1 Acquisition of subsidiary continued

assets
property and equipment  727 614 
Intangible assets  28 650 
Deferred taxation  3 005 265 
trade and other receivables  9 555 000 
Cash and cash equivalents  2 185 282 

total assets  15 501 811 

Liabilities
Non-interest-bearing borrowings  1 110 000 
trade and other payables  13 736 513 
provisions  1 307 774

total liabilities  16 154 287 

total identifiable net liability  (652 476)
Goodwill arising on acquisition  12 352 476 

Fair value of consideration transferred  11 700 000 
Shares to be issued 1 october 2013  1 300 000 
Non-interest-bearing borrowings  1 050 000 

Settled in cash  9 350 000 

Cash outflow on acquisition:
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary  2 185 282 
Cash paid (9 350 000)

Net cash outflow on acquisition  (7 164 718)

Fair value of the assets acquired approximates their carrying value at the acquisition date.

From the date of acquisition, Swicon360 (pty) Ltd has contributed R3 444 428 to the profit after tax and  
R29 599 560 to the turnover of the Group.

Acquired receivables represent the gross contractual amounts which approximate fair value and which 
are further estimated to be fully recoverable.

Goodwill recognised is not deductible for tax purposes.

Acquisition-related costs of R515 970 have been expensed and are included in administrative, selling and 
other costs on the statement of comprehensive income. 

 R 

Current portion of non-interest-bearing borrowings, relating to the acquisition,  
is made up as follows

Viker Investments (pty) Ltd  1 050 000 
markus bucher  320 000 

Current portion of non-interest-bearing borrowings  1 370 000 

the above borrowings is interest-free. the cash due to Viker Investments (pty) Ltd is payable on  
1 october 2013.

 the amount due to markus bucher is repaid at R80 000 per month and the final payment is due on  
31 october 2013.
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20. buSINeSS CombINAtIoNS continued
20.2 Acquisition of subsidiary

 on 1 January 2012, the Group acquired the entire issued share capital of bI planning Services (pty) Ltd, a 
South African registered company.

 bI planning Services (pty) Ltd is an unlisted company specialising in developing and implementing tailored 
business intelligence solutions for the financial services, healthcare and other sectors. the acquisition 
was concluded for a purchase consideration of R17 250 200. the purchase consideration consists of  
R8 624 600 cash paid on 30 January 2012 and R8 625 600 from the issue of 12 182 460 Adapt It holdings 
Limited shares on 11 January 2012.

Shares were specifically issued at a volume weighted average traded price of 71 cents.

 the fair value of the net assets acquired amounted to R2 000 500, resulting in goodwill of R 15 249 700 
at acquisition. the consideration paid for the combination effectively included amounts in relation 
to the benefit of the expected synergies, revenue growth, new market penetration and future market 
development.

 the acquisition further enhances the Group’s product offerings and provides access to customers within 
the Financial Services sector.

 the fair value of the identifiable net assets and liabilities of bI planning Services (pty) Ltd as at the date of 
acquisition were:

 Fair value 
 recognised 

on 
 acquisition 

 R 

assets
Investment properties  2 020 000 
property and equipment  137 788 
Intangible assets  1 
Deferred taxation  251 132 
trade and other receivables  4 108 428 
Cash and cash equivalents  12 823 907 

total assets  19 341 256 

Liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings  1 867 475 
Loans from vendors (previous shareholders)  10 909 091 
trade and other payables  2 109 356 
provisions  488 804 
Current tax payable  1 966 030 

total liabilities  17 340 756 

total identifiable net assets  2 000 500 
Goodwill arising on acquisition  15 249 700 

Fair value of consideration transferred  17 250 200 
Settled in shares  8 625 600 

Settled in cash  8 624 600 

Cash inflow on acquisition:
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary  12 823 907 
Cash paid (8 624 600)

Net cash inflow on acquisition 4 199 307

Fair value of the assets acquired approximate carrying value at the acquisition date.

NoTES To THE ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEMENTS
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20. buSINeSS CombINAtIoNS continued
20.2 Acquisition of subsidiary continued

turnover of R48 418 277 (2012: R23 938 463) and profit after tax of R2 291 985 (2012: R2 502 467) of  
bI planning Services (pty) Ltd have been included in the Group’s results since the date of acquisition.

 Resulting from the acquisition, was the disposal of the bI planning Services (pty) Ltd investment properties, 
and the settlement of the related interest-bearing borrowings, with effect from 1 January 2012.

 All risks and benefits were for the Vendors account from 1 January 2012. the investment properties were 
disposed at fair value. the transfer was registered at the Deeds office in June 2012. upon registration of the 
investment properties at the deeds office, the related interest-bearing borrowings were settled.

Fair value 
recognised 

on 
acquisition 

R 

the net cash flow, on registration at the deeds office, of investment properties was as 
follows:
Investment properties  2 020 000
Settlement of interest-bearing borrowings (1 867 475)

Net cash inflow to the business  152 525 

 Acquired receivables represent the gross contractual amounts which approximates fair value of which is 
further estimated to be fully recoverable.

 the amount of goodwill recognised is not deductible for these purposes. Goodwill recognised is not 
deductible for tax purposes.

 Acquisition related costs of R595 744 were expensed and were included in administrative, selling and 
other costs on the statement of comprehensive income in the 2012 financial year. 

Performance warranty:
	The	Vendors	warrant	that	the	profit	before	interest	and	tax	(“PBIT”),	after	adjusting	for	certain	expenses,	
will be no less than:

–	R8	763	150	for	the	period	1	January	2012	to	30	June	2013	(“the	2013	performance	warranty”);	and

–	R6	426	310	for	the	period	1	July	2013	to	30	June	2014	(“the	2014	performance	warranty”).

 If bI planning Services (pty) Ltd fails to meet or exceed the 2013 and/or 2014 performance warranty then 
the purchase consideration shall be reduced in accordance with an agreed-upon formula but shall 
not exceed 50% of the purchase consideration. there will be no upward adjustment to the purchase 
consideration should the performance warranty criteria be exceeded.

the 2013 performance warranty was met for the period and no adjustment was needed.
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GROUP GRoup cOmPany CompANy
2013 2012 2013 2012

R R R R

21. CommItmeNtS
Property operating lease commitments
No later than one year 7 182 097  5 177 155  –    –   
Later than one year and no later than five years 7 180 605  8 525 928  –    –   

14 362 702  13 703 083  –    –   

 the Group leases offices in terms of operating 
leases. the Group does not have the option 
to acquire the assets at the termination of the 
leases and there are no restrictions imposed 
by the leases. the lease terms are between 
one year and five years, and the lease 
agreements are renewable at the end of the 
lease period at the prevailing market rates. 
the future minimum lease payments under 
non-cancellable operating leases are shown 
above.

capital commitments
Authorised and contracted 47 765  3 883 522  –    –   
Authorised but not contracted 5 235 682  2 385 600  –    –   

 5 283 447  6 269 122  –    –   

Capital commitments will be funded from 
cash resources.

22. CoNtINGeNt LIAbILItIeS
22.1 bank guarantee  604 535  541 699  541 699  541 699 

 the bank guarantee expires on 1 February 2015. the bank guarantee is in favour of a landlord and relates 
to the last month’s office rental. the bank guarantee will only be released upon the expiry of the office lease 
agreement, being 1 February 2015.

22.2  In the prior year, Ararat Corporate Advisory Services (pty) Ltd instituted a commission claim against ItS 
holdings (pty) Ltd (ItS) to the value of R1 400 000 resulting from the sale of the last 49% of shares in ItS to 
Adapt It holdings Ltd. the trial was scheduled for hearing on 12 April 2013 in the high Court of South Africa.

 before the court date the plaintiff withdrew the claim. 

23. boRRowING LImItS
 the directors may from time to time at their discretion raise or borrow monies for the purpose of the Group as they 
deem fit. there are no borrowing limits in the memorandum of incorporation of the Company or its subsidiaries.

NoTES To THE ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEMENTS
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24. peNSIoN FuND AND RISK beNeFIt INFoRmAtIoN
 Adapt It (pty) Ltd established the Adapt It pension Fund on 1 July 1996 and moved to the Alexander Forbes 
umbrella Fund in September 2011. the Fund is a defined contribution pension fund under the Alexander Forbes 
umbrella Fund which is governed by the pension Funds Act, 1956. It is compulsory for all permanent salaried 
employees to join the Fund. the average age of the members as at 30 June 2013 was 37 (2012: 36).

 pursuant to the amalgamation, certain ItS tertiary Software (pty) Ltd  employees will join the Adapt It (pty) Ltd 
pension fund effective from 1 July 2013. 

 the assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of the trustees. 
the management committee oversees the Fund and the latest audited financial statements of the Fund reflect 
a satisfactory state of affairs.

 Adapt It (pty) Ltd also offers a risk benefit cover which is compulsory for all permanent salaried employees. 
the conditions of the policy have catered for an exception by allowing the Financial Director, who  
is a contract employee, resident in a foreign jurisdiction, to be covered under the risk benefit. 

 ApplyIt (pty) Ltd contributes towards a provident fund which is subject to the pensions Fund Act, 1956. this Fund 
is a defined contribution fund and it is compulsory for all permanent salaried employees to join the Fund. the 
average age of the members as at 30 June 2013 was 40 (2012: 39).

 bI planning Services (pty) Ltd currently does not have a pension fund. existing employees can elect to join the 
Adapt It (pty) Ltd pension fund from 1 July 2013, but it is compulsory for all new appointments after 1 July 2013.

Swicon360 (pty) Ltd contributes towards a provident fund which is subject to the pensions Fund Act, 1956. the 
contributions are made in the Destiny umbrella provident Fund, which is a defined contribution fund and it is 
compulsory for all permanent salaried employees to join the Fund. the average age of the members as at  
30 June 2013 was 40 (2012: 39).
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25. ReLAteD pARty tRANSACtIoNS
 During the year, the Group, in the ordinary course of business, entered into various related party turnover, 
purchases and investment transactions.

All intercompany transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. 

 cOmPany   CompANy  
 effective
 holding 

 effective
 holding 

2013 2012
Related party relationship:  %  % 

Incorporated in South africa
Adapt It (pty) Ltd  100  100 
ApplyIt (pty) Ltd  100  100 
ItS holdings (pty) Ltd  100  100 
Adapt It holdings Limited Share Incentive trust ** **
bI planning Services (pty) Ltd  100  100 

** 100% consolidation

2013 2012
R R

Loans
Loans from the Company to (refer note 10):
ItS holdings (pty) Ltd  4 237 036  9 057 036 
ApplyIt (pty) Ltd 1 357 848  1 357 848 
Adapt It holdings Share Incentive trust  46 241  46 241 
amounts owing to subsidiary (refer note 10)
Adapt It (pty) Ltd (39 289 123)  (37 741 598) 

the loans are unsecured and no interest is charged. the loans have no set  
terms of repayment.

Trade and other receivables
ApplyIt (pty) Ltd –  473 901 
trade and other receivables are non-interest-bearing and are generally on 
30-day terms. 
 For the year ended 30 June 2013, the Group has not recorded any impairment 
of trade and other receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties 
(2012: Rnil). this assessment is undertaken each financial year by examining 
the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related 
party operates.

the following transactions were entered into between related parties within 
the Group:
management fees received by the company from:
Adapt It (pty) Ltd  4 430 525  2 787 623 
ItS holdings (pty) Ltd  5 531 206  3 604 408 
ApplyIt (pty) Ltd  423 506  523 109 
bI planning Services (pty) Ltd  2 029 436 – 
 management fees are charged to all operating subsidiaries in order to recover 
the Company’s management time and effort.

administrative, selling and other costs
 During the year various administration expenses were recovered between 
subsidiaries. the net effect, on consolidation, on administration, selling and 
other costs was nil.

administrative, selling and other costs recovered between:
Company and ItS holdings (pty) Ltd –  328 508 

dividends received by the company from:
Adapt It (pty) Ltd  –  3 075 051 

 Key management personnel compensation is represented by directors’ emoluments as referred to in note 4.

NoTES To THE ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEMENTS
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GROUP GRoup cOmPany CompANy
2013 2012 2013 2012

R R R R

26. FINANCIAL RISK mANAGemeNt
Categories of financial instruments
Financial assets
Loans and receivables  81 286 231  82 750 401  7 908 544  10 563 328 
Financial liabilities
other financial liabilities measured 
   at amortised cost  12 698 455  6 206 873  39 633 772  38 042 023 
Reconciliation to statements of 
financial position
Amounts owing from subsidiaries  –  –  5 641 125  10 461 125 
trade and other receivables net of provision 
   for impairment  58 593 570  58 099 975  – –
Cash and cash equivalents  22 692 661  24 650 426  2 267 419  102 203 

Loans and receivables  81 286 231  82 750 401  7 908 544  10 563 328 

trade and other payables  12 055 936  4 393 198  344 649  300 425 
Amounts owing to subsidiaries  –  –  39 289 123  37 741 598 
Interest-bearing borrowings  642 519  1 813 675  –  –

other financial liabilities measured at 
   amortised cost  12 698 455  6 206 873  39 633 772  38 042 023 

 In the normal course of its operations, the Group is exposed to credit, liquidity and market risk, which consists of 
the cash flow interest rate risk and foreign currency risk.

 At 30 June 2013 the carrying values of the financial assets and financial liabilities are considered by management 
to approximate their fair value, due to their short-term nature.

All financial assets are carried at amortised cost and hence no fair value disclosure is necessary, in terms of the 
fair value hierarchy requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures.

26.1 Credit risk 
 Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss 
to the Group.

 the Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for trade receivables) and from its 
financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions 
and other financial instruments.

 Receivables comprise loans to associated companies and accounts receivable. trade receivables 
comprise mainly a blue chip customer base and are spread among a number of different customers and 
geographic areas.

the Group does not hold collateral as security.

 the Group grants varied credit terms of between 30 to 90 days to its customers. the analysis of trade and 
other receivables (excluding prepayments) which are past due at reporting date is as follows:

GROUP GRoup cOmPany CompANy
2013 2012 2013 2012

R R R R

Not past due or impaired  30 144 856  30 167 662  –    473 901 
past due by 31 – 60 days but not impaired  10 669 841  10 467 234  –    –   
past due by 61 – 90 days but not impaired  8 100 032  6 114 548  –    –   
past due over 90 days but not impaired  10 847 409  12 460 897  –    –   

total trade and other not impaired  59 762 138  59 210 341  –    473 901 

the Group limits its counterparty exposures attributable to its cash investments by only dealing with 
well-established financial institutions of high quality credit standing. the carrying amount of the trade 
receivables impaired is R6 450 116 (2012: R4 416 131).
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26. FINANCIAL RISK mANAGemeNt continued
26.2 Liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Group would not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time 
or at a reasonable price.

 Liquidity risk is proactively managed and the Group’s cash resources exceed its working capital 
requirements. there have been no defaults or breaches on repayments during the year.

 the following table summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s undiscounted financial liabilities based 
on the contractual payments:

NoTES To THE ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEMENTS

On 
demand

within 
one year

One to 
five years

Greater than
 five years Total

GROUP R R R R R

2013
Interest-bearing borrowings  –    642 519  –    –    642 519 
Accounts payable  –    14 341 862  –    –    14 341 862 

total  –    14 984 381  –    –    14 984 381 

2012
Interest-bearing borrowings  –    1 171 156  642 519  –    1 813 675 
Accounts payable  –    8 357 851  –    –    8 357 851 

total  –    9 529 007  642 519  –    10 171 526 

On 
demand

within 
one year

One to 
five years

Greater than 
five years Total

cOmPany R R R R R

2013
Accounts payable  –  449 751  –    –    449 751 
Amounts owing 
   to subsidiaries  39 289 123  –    –    –    39 289 123 

total  39 289 123  449 751  –    –    39 738 874 

2012
Accounts payable  –    673 405  –    –    673 405 
Amounts owing 
   to subsidiaries  37 741 598  –  –    –    37 741 598 

total  37 741 598  673 405  –    –    38 415 003 
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26. FINANCIAL RISK mANAGemeNt continued
26.3 market risk

 market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market prices.

 market prices comprise two types of risk that impact the Group: foreign currency risk and interest rate risk. 
the Group does not make use of derivative financial instruments.

Foreign currency risk management
 Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

 the Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group’s 
operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a different currency from the Company’s 
functional currency).

 most transactions are Rand-based with a limited exposure to other currencies, mainly uS Dollars, euros 
Australian Dollars, british pounds and New Zealand Dollars, resulting in a foreign exchange profit for the 
year of R1 015 939 (2012: profit of R2 032 428).

the Group has the following uncovered cash on hand and receivables:

2013 2012
Foreign

 amount R
Foreign

 amount R

uS Dollars  472 422  4 601 970  1 009 797  8 187 911 
New Zealand Dollars  51  376  1 040  6 491 
Australian Dollars  106 087  1 012 448  204 447  1 724 290 
euros  28 535  345 728  (3 280)  (34 323)
british pounds  77 551  1 188 811  112 448  1 444 992 
Singapore Dollars  389  2 905  389  2 394 
Canadian Dollars  220  1 980  220  1 685 
botswana pula  1 458  1 602  4 180  4 193 
Rwanda Francs  5 000  73  97 800  12 714 
Indian Rupees  16 170  2 568  16 170  2 248 
uAe Dirhams  740  1 915  680  1 442 
Ghana CDs  289  1 349  289  1 155 
mozambique meticals  255  84  –  –
ugandian Shillings  48 000  180  –  –
tanzanian Shillings  52 750  310  –  –
other  300  231 1 078  1 400 

total  7 162 530  11 356 592 
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26. FINANCIAL RISK mANAGemeNt continued
26.3 market risk continued

 the Group’s exchange rate exposure relates mainly to the uS Dollar, british pound and Australian Dollar. 
the following details the Group’s sensitivity to a 14,0% (2012: 14,0%) increase or decrease in the Rand 
against the relevant foreign currencies. 14,0% is the sensitivity rate used based on the average movement 
in foreign exchange rates between reporting dates and represents management’s best assessment of 
the possible change in foreign exchange rates. the sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign 
currency-denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year-end for a 14,0% change 
in foreign currency rates. the amount below indicates the amount by which profit or loss and equity would 
increase or decrease if the Rand strengthens or weakens by 14,0% (2012: 14,0%). this is reflective of the 
currency risk exposure throughout the year.

2013 2012
R R

Sensitivity analysis
 If the foreign currency rates had been 14,0% (2012: 14,0%) higher/lower
    and all other variables held constant, the Group’s profit for the year 

(before tax) would increase/decrease by  1 002 754  1 589 923 

Interest rate risk management
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a 
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest 
rates. the Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates 
relates primarily to the Group’s long-term debt obligations with variable 
interest rates.

 Interest rate sensitivity
 the sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the 
exposure of cash and cash equivalents to interest rates. A 100 basis  
point increase or decrease has been used.

Sensitivity analysis
 If the interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower and all other  
variables held constant, the Group’s profit for the year (before tax) would 
increase/decrease by  226 927  253 952 
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27. CApItAL mANAGemeNt
 Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders of the parent, as presented in the statements of 
financial position.

 the primary objective of managing the Group’s capital is to ensure that there is sufficient capital available to 
support the funding requirements of the Group, including capital expenditure, in a way that optimises the cost of 
capital, maximises shareholders’ returns and ensures that the Group remains in a sound financial position. there 
were no changes to the Group’s overall capital management approach during the current year.

 the Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. the 
Group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio below 50%. the Group includes within net debt, interest-bearing loans 
and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

the Group is not subject to any external capital requirements.

GROUP GRoup
2013

%
2012

%

Gearing ratio 1 3

28. eVeNtS AFteR the RepoRtING DAte
 on 1 July 2013, bI planning Services (pty) Ltd, ItS Abacus (pty) Ltd, ItS Africa technologies (pty) Ltd, ItS holdings 
(pty) Ltd, ItS tertiary Software (pty) Ltd and Synet (pty) Ltd were amalgamated into Adapt It (pty) Ltd in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 113, 115 and 116 of the Companies Act, 2008, as amended.

the reasons for the amalgamation are, inter alia:

–  to rationalise the Adapt It Group;

–  to reduce the number of Adapt It Group entities;

–  to achieve efficiencies and savings in administrative and operational expenditure; and

–  to simplify the Adapt It Group structure.
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29. SeGmeNt ANALySIS
the Group is organised into the following segments:

•		 Education	–	ITS	Holdings	(Pty)	Ltd

•		 Manufacturing	(includes	Mining	and	Energy)	–	Adapt	IT	(Pty)	Ltd,	ApplyIT	(Pty)	Ltd	and	Swicon360	(Pty)	Ltd

•		 Financial	services	–	BI	Planning	Services	(Pty)	Ltd

•		 Other	–	includes	Group	and	shared	services	activities

 management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions 
about resource allocation and performance assessment. monthly management meetings are held to evaluate 
segment performance against budget and forecast. 

 the following tables present revenue and profit information regarding the Group’s operating segments for the 
year ended 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012 respectively:

 education
manu-

facturing
Financial 
Services Other

adjustments
 and 

eliminations Total
R R R R R R

2013
Revenue*  122 044 453  135 538 369  48 622 631  23 324  (193 731)  306 035 046 

third party  121 850 723  135 538 369  48 622 631  23 324 –  306 035 047 
Inter-segment  193 730 –  –  –  (193 731)  (1)

Segment profit/(loss)
   before taxation  15 967 843  15 852 117  3 199 272  (909 757)  (3 377 071)  30 732 404 

2012
Revenue*  103 963 546  97 012 112  23 938 463  22 (145 215)  224 768 928 

third party  103 963 546  96 866 897  23 938 463  22  –  224 768 928 
Inter-segment  –  145 215  –  – (145 215)  –   

Segment profit/(loss)
   before taxation  14 467 573  10 947 182  3 477 336 958 291 (4 103 006)  25 747 376 

* Revenue includes sales and services rendered to customers, interest income and dividends received.

** the revenue information above is based on the location of the customer.
 Revenue of approximately R50 624 466 (2012: R58 812 016) is derived from a single external group customer. 
these revenues are attributable to the manufacturing segment.

NoTES To THE ANNuAl FINANCIAl STATEMENTS
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29. SeGmeNt ANALySIS continued
the following table presents segment assets, liabilities, trade receivables and revenue by geographic area of the 
Group’s operating segments as at 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012:

 education
manu-

facturing
Financial 
Services Other

adjustments 
and 

eliminations Total
R R R R R R

2013
total assets  125 515 856  138 424 335  11 536 119  56 885 278 (153 639 037) 178 722 551 
total liabilities  51 603 915  87 634 162  4 741 165  41 520 289 (99 010 664) 86 488 867 
Revenue by 
geography  122 044 453  135 662 304  48 622 631  (100 611) (193 731)  306 035 046 
South Africa  95 154 461  92 247 420  48 622 631 (100 611)  (193 731)  235 730 170 
African countries*  19 835 429  37 658 272  –    –    –    57 493 701 
europe  3 453 730  –    –    –    –    3 453 730 
Australasia  3 600 833  3 520 217  –    –    –    7 121 050 
North America  –  2 236 395  –    –    –    2 236 395 
Non-current assets by
   geography  87 389 565  42 985 891  610 487  54 188 988 (98 490 863)  86 684 068 
South Africa  86 961 316  42 985 891  610 487  54 188 988 (98 490 863)  86 255 819 
African countries*  –    –    –    –    –    –
europe  35 771  –    –    –    –    35 771 
Australasia  392 478  –    –    –    –    392 478 
trade receivables by
   geography  22 428 934  35 291 928  7 471 961  –    (149 137)  65 043 686 
South Africa  14 047 692  24 419 105  7 471 961  –    (149 137)  45 789 621 
African countries*  4 179 053  7 413 820  –    –    –    11 592 873 
europe  391 106  –    –    –    –    391 106 
Australasia  3 811 083  1 024 710  –    –    –    4 835 793 
North America  –    2 434 293  –    –    –    2 434 293 

2012
total assets  115 156 398  96 191 538  10 190 450  59 857 135 (134 517 220)  146 878 301 
total liabilities  54 900 401  59 008 049  5 687 483  39 911 786 (82 790 481)  76 717 238 

Revenue by
   geography  103 963 546  97 012 112  23 938 463  22 (145 215)  224 768 928 
South Africa  56 364 622  47 389 997  23 938 463  22 (145 215)  127 547 889 
African countries*  39 020 378  41 493 101  –    –    –    80 513 479 
europe  3 499 220  –    –    –    –    3 499 220 
Australasia  5 079 326  6 076 808  –    –    –    11 156 134 
North America  –    2 052 206  –    –    –    2 052 206 
Non-current assets by
   geography  69 614 982  22 517 922  520 507  58 578 863 (91 182 397)  60 049 877 
South Africa  69 586 384  22 517 922  520 507  58 578 863 (91 182 397)  60 021 279 
African countries*  –    –    –    –    –    –   
europe  10 892  –    –    –    –    10 892 
Australasia  17 706  –    –    –    –    17 706 
trade receivables by
   geography  22 354 524  31 063 614  9 797 885  473 901 (1 173 818)  62 516 106 
South Africa  118 482  13 214 348  9 797 885  473 901 (1 173 818)  22 430 798 
African countries*  15 717 114  12 248 922  –    –    –    27 966 036 
europe  327 449  –    –    –    –    327 449 
Australasia  6 191 479  1 852 767  –    –    –    8 044 246 
North America  –    3 747 577  –    –    –    3 747 577 

*  African countries are: Ghana, Zambia, tanzania, mozambique, Namibia, malawi, Swaziland, Lesotho, 
botswana, uganda, Sierra Leone, Zimbabwe and Rwanda.

Revenue of approximately R50 624 466 (2012: R58 812 016) is derived from a single external group customer. 
these revenues are attributable to the manufacturing segment.
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2013 % 2012 %

Performance on the JSe Limited
total number of shares traded (‘000)  18 468  11 766 
total number of shares traded as a percentage 
   of total issued shares (liquidity)  (%) 16,6 10,6
total value of shares traded (R’000)  37 689  10 295 
prices:

Closing (cents) 235 122
high (cents) 290 122
Low (cents) 102 60

Spread (number of shareholders)
up to 10 000 shares  662 64  229 49
10 001 to 100 000 shares  295 28  164 35
100 001 to 200 000 shares  23 2  21 5
over 200 000 shares  57 6  53 11

 1 037 100  467 100

number % Shares %

Shareholder distribution
public 999 96  56 899 386  51 
Non-public 26 3  15 289 653  14 
Subsidiaries 1 –  2 774 647  3 
Directors  10 1  35 635 325  32 
Associates of directors  1 –  402 000 –

1 037 100 111 001 011 100

Principal shareholders
the following are the principal shareholders whose holdings in the Company total more than 5% of the total issued 
share capital as at 30 June 2013.

Shares %

Sibusiso Shabalala  16 531 057  15 
Jan hendrik hofmeyr  7 043 090  6 
Johannes hendrik Strydom  5 438 122  5 
Corneil Lubbe  5 418 107  5 

34 430 376 31

SHARES AND SHAREHolDERS

Financial year-end 30 June

Annual general meeting November

Reports and profit statements
Interim report February
Audited group results August
Annual report and financial statements issued September

dividend
Declaration August
payment September

Shareholders are reminded to notify the transfer secretaries of any change in address.

SHAREHolDERS’ DIARY
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NoTICE oF ANNuAl GENERAl MEETING

adaPT IT HOLdInGS LImITed
Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa
Registration number: 1998/017276/06
Share code: ADI
ISIN: ZAe000113163

NotICe oF the 14th ANNuAL GeNeRAL meetING oF ShARehoLDeRS

Notice is hereby given that the 14th annual general meeting of the shareholders of Adapt It holdings Limited 
(“the	Company”	or	“the	Group”)	will	be	held	on	Friday,	8	november	2013	at	09:00	at	the	Company’s	offices	at	
5 Rydall Vale office park, Rydall Vale Crescent, La Lucia Ridge, KwaZulu-Natal to transact the following business:

1. FINANCIAL StAtemeNtS
  to receive and consider the consolidated audited annual financial statements of the Company for the 

year ended 30 June 2013, incorporating the reports of the external auditors, the Audit and Risk Committee, 
the directors, and the Social and ethics Committee, which will be presented to shareholders as required 
in	terms	of	section	30(3)(d)	of	the	Companies	Act,	71	of	2008,	as	amended	(“the	Companies	Act”).

  Note: A copy of the annual financial statements appear on page 39 to 95 of the integrated annual report 
of which this notice forms part.

2. oRDINARy ReSoLutIoNS
  to consider and, if deemed fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following ordinary resolutions. 

the percentage of voting rights that will be required for the adoption of each ordinary resolution is 
the support of more than 50% of the voting rights exercised on the resolution. In the case of ordinary 
resolution numbers 10 and 11, the JSe Listings Requirements prescribe a 75% majority vote. 

 2.1 ORdInaRy ReSOLUTIOn nUmbeR 1 – eLecTIOn OF mR O FORTUIn aS a dIRecTOR
  to elect mr oliver Fortuin as a director of the Company.  

   Note: the curriculum vitae of mr o Fortuin is provided on page 11 of the integrated annual report.

 2.2 ORdInaRy ReSOLUTIOn nUmbeR 2 – Re-eLecTIOn OF mR c cHambeRS aS a dIRecTOR
   to re-elect mr Craig Chambers who retires by rotation in terms of the Company’s memorandum of 

Incorporation, and who, being eligible, offers himself for re-election. 

   Note: the curriculum vitae of mr C Chambers is provided on page 10 of the integrated annual 
report.

 2.3 ORdInaRy ReSOLUTIOn nUmbeR 3 – Re-eLecTIOn OF mS T dInGaan aS a dIRecTOR
   to re-elect ms thembisa Dingaan who retires by rotation in terms of the Company’s memorandum 

of Incorporation, and who, being eligible, offers herself for re-election. 

   Note: the curriculum vitae of ms t Dingaan is provided on page 10 of the integrated annual report.

 2.4 ORdInaRy ReSOLUTIOn nUmbeR 4 – aPPOInTmenT OF mS b nTULI TO THe aUdIT and RISk cOmmITTee
   pursuant to the requirements of section 94(2) of the Companies Act, 2008, to appoint ms bongiwe 

Ntuli, a non-executive, independent director of the Company, as a member of the Audit and Risk 
Committee until the next annual general meeting.

 2.5  ORdInaRy ReSOLUTIOn nUmbeR 5 – aPPOInTmenT OF mR O FORTUIn TO THe aUdIT and RISk cOmmITTee
   pursuant to the requirements of section 94(2) of the Companies Act, 2008, but subject to the passing 

of ordinary resolution number 1 above, to appoint mr oliver Fortuin, a non-executive, independent 
director of the Company, as a member of the Audit and Risk Committee until the next annual 
general meeting.

 2.6 ORdInaRy ReSOLUTIOn nUmbeR 6 – aPPOInTmenT OF mS T dInGaan TO THe aUdIT and RISk cOmmITTee
   pursuant to the requirements of section 94(2) of the Companies Act, 2008, but subject to the 

passing of ordinary resolution number 2 above, to appoint ms thembisa Dingaan, a non-executive, 
independent director of the Company, as a member of the Audit and Risk Committee until the next 
annual general meeting. 
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 2.7 ORdInaRy ReSOLUTIOn nUmbeR 7 – aPPOInTmenT OF THe IndePendenT ReGISTeRed aUdITOR
   pursuant to the requirements of section 90(1) read with section 61(8)(c) of the Companies Act, 2008  

to appoint the independent audit firm nominated by the Company’s Audit and Risk Committee as 
the external auditor for the financial year ending 30 June 2014, with the individual in that audit firm 
nominated by the Company’s Audit and Risk Committee designated as the auditor responsible for 
the audit, pursuant to section 92(1) of the Companies Act 2008.

   Note: the Company’s Audit and Risk Committee will nominate the audit firm to be appointed, and 
the individual in that firm to be designated as the auditor responsible for the audit, prior to or at the 
AGm, pursuant to sections 94(7)(a) and 94(9) of the Companies Act, 2008.

 2.8 ORdInaRy ReSOLUTIOn nUmbeR 8 – endORSemenT OF THe RemUneRaTIOn POLIcy
  Resolved that the shareholders endorse, on a non-binding advisory basis, the Remuneration policy.

   Note: King III recommends that the Company’s remuneration policy (which appears on pages 36 
to 38 of the integrated annual report) be tabled to shareholders for a non-binding advisory vote at 
each annual general meeting.  

 2.9 ORdInaRy ReSOLUTIOn nUmbeR 9 – cOnTROL OF aUTHORISed bUT UnISSUed ORdInaRy SHaReS
   Resolved that the authorised but unissued ordinary shares in the capital of the Company be 

and they are hereby placed under the control and authority of the directors of the Company 
(“directors”)	and	that	the	directors	be	and	they	are	hereby	authorised	and	empowered	to	allot	
and issue all or any of such ordinary shares, or to issue any options in respect of all or any of such 
ordinary shares, to such person/s on such terms and conditions and at such times as the directors 
may from time to time and in their discretion deem fit, subject to the provisions of sections 38 and 41 
of the Companies Act, 2008, the memorandum of Incorporation of the Company and the Listings 
Requirements of the JSe Limited (JSe Listings Requirements), as amended from time to time.

 2.10   ORdInaRy ReSOLUTIOn nUmbeR 10 – aPPROvaL TO ISSUe ORdInaRy SHaReS, and TO SeLL TReaSURy 
SHaReS, FOR caSH

   Resolved that the directors of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries from time to time be and 
they are hereby authorised, by way of a general authority, to:

  2.10.1  Allot and issue, or to issue any options in respect of, all or any of the authorised but unissued 
ordinary shares in the capital of the Company; and/or

  2.10.2  Sell or otherwise dispose of or transfer, or issue any options in respect of, ordinary shares in 
the capital of the Company purchased by subsidiaries of the Company,

   for cash, to such person/s on such terms and conditions and at such times as the directors may 
from time to time in their discretion deem fit, subject to the Companies Act, 2008, the memorandum 
of Incorporation of the Company and its subsidiaries and the JSe Listings Requirements from time 
to time.

  Notes: the JSe Listings Requirements currently provide, inter alia, that:

	 	 •	 	the	securities	which	are	the	subject	of	the	issue	for	cash	must	be	of	a	class	already	in	issue,	
or where this is not the case, must be limited to such securities or rights that are convertible 
into a class already in issue;

	 	 •	 	any	 such	 issue	may	only	be	made	 to	“public	 shareholders”	as	defined	 in	 the	 JSE	 Listings	
Requirements and not to related parties;

	 	 •	 	the	 number	 of	 ordinary	 shares	 issued	 for	 cash	 shall	 not	 in	 any	 one	 financial	 year	 in	 the	
aggregate exceed 15% (fifteen percent) of the number of issued ordinary shares. the number 
of ordinary shares which may be issued shall be based, inter alia, on the number of ordinary 
shares in issue, added to those that may be issued in future (arising from the conversion of 
options/convertibles) at the date of such application, less any ordinary shares issued, or to 
be issued in future arising from options/convertible ordinary shares issued during the current 
financial year; plus any ordinary shares to be issued pursuant to a rights issue which has 
been announced, is irrevocable and is fully underwritten, or an acquisition which has had 
final terms announced;

NoTICE oF ANNuAl GENERAl MEETING CoNTINuED
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	 	 •	 	this	general	authority	will	be	valid	until	 the	earlier	of	 the	Company’s	next	annual	general	
meeting or the expiry of a period of 15 (fifteen) months from the date that this authority is 
given;

	 	 •		 	an	announcement	giving	full	details,	including	the	impact	on	net	asset	value	per	share,	net	
tangible asset value per share, earnings per share and headline earnings per share and, if 
applicable, diluted earnings and headline earnings per share, will be published when the 
Company has issued ordinary shares representing, on a cumulative basis within 1 (one) 
financial year, 5% (five percent) or more of the number of ordinary shares in issue prior to the 
issue;

	 	 •	 	in	 determining	 the	 price	 at	which	 an	 issue	 of	 ordinary	 shares	may	 be	made	 in	 terms	 of	
this authority, the maximum discount permitted will be 10% (ten percent) of the weighted 
average traded price on the JSe Limited of the ordinary shares over the 30 (thirty) business 
days prior to the date that the price of the issue is agreed between the issuer and the party 
subscribing for the securities; and

	 	 •	 	whenever	the	Company	wishes	to	use	ordinary	shares,	held	as	treasury	shares	by	a	subsidiary	
of the Company, such use must comply with the JSe Listings Requirements as if such use was 
a fresh issue of ordinary shares.

 2.11  ORdInaRy ReSOLUTIOn nUmbeR 11 – adOPTIOn OF THe adaPT IT HOLdInGS LImITed execUTIve SHaRe 
IncenTIve PLan

   Resolved that the Adapt It holdings Limited Share Incentive trust be cancelled and that the 
Adapt It holdings Limited executive Share Incentive plan, which has been tabled at this annual 
general meeting and initialled by the Chairperson of the annual general meeting for purposes of 
identification, be and is hereby subsequently approved and adopted by the Adapt It shareholders.

   Refer to Annexure A, attached to this notice, for the Salient Features of the Adapt It holdings Limited 
executive Share Incentive plan.

3. SpeCIAL ReSoLutIoNS
  to consider and, if deemed fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following special resolutions. the 

percentage of voting rights that will be required for the adoption of each special resolution is the support 
of at least 75% of the voting rights exercised on the resolution.

 3.1 SPecIaL ReSOLUTIOn nUmbeR 1 – nOn-execUTIve dIRecTORS’ FeeS
   Resolved as a special resolution that, unless otherwise determined by the Company in general 

meeting, the following annual fees payable by the Company to its non-executive directors for their 
services as directors, with effect from 1 July 2013, are approved:

current proposed
R R

Chairman 203 000 243 000
Director 92 000 130 000

 
  explanation
   Section 66(9) of the Companies Act requires that a company may pay remuneration to its 

directors for their services as directors only in accordance with a special resolution approved 
by the shareholders within the previous two years. the reason for, and effect of, special resolution 
number 1 is to grant the Company the authority to pay fees to its non-executive directors for their 
services as directors. the non-executive directors’ fees have been increased to align with similar 
sized companies listed on the JSe.
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 3.2 SPecIaL ReSOLUTIOn nUmbeR 2 – GeneRaL aPPROvaL TO acqUIRe Own SHaReS
   Resolved, as a general approval by special resolution, that the company and/or any of its 

subsidiaries from time to time be and they are hereby authorised to acquire ordinary shares in the 
Company in terms of, and subject to, the Companies Act, 2008, the memorandum of Incorporation 
of the Company and its subsidiaries and the JSe Listings Requirements, as amended from time to 
time. Any acquisition of ordinary shares is also subject to the sanction of any other authority whose 
approval is required by law, regulation or the JSe Listings Requirements.

  Note: the JSe Listings Requirements currently provide, inter alia, that:

	 	 •	 	the	acquisition	of	the	ordinary	shares	must	be	effected	through	the	order	book	operated	by	
the JSe trading system and done without any prior understanding or arrangement between 
the Company and the counter party;

	 	 •	 	this	 general	 authority	 shall	 only	 be	 valid	 until	 the	 earlier	 of	 the	 Company’s	 next	 annual	
general meeting or the expiry of a period of 15 (fifteen) months from the date of passing of 
this special resolution;

	 	 •	 	in	determining	the	price	at	which	the	Company’s	ordinary	shares	are	acquired	in	terms	of	this	
general authority, the maximum premium at which such ordinary shares may be acquired 
will be 10% (ten percent) of the weighted average of the market value at which such ordinary 
shares are traded on the JSe, as determined over the 5 (five) business days immediately 
preceding the date on which the transaction is effected;

	 	 •	 	at	any	point	in	time,	the	Company	may	only	appoint	one	agent	to	effect	any	acquisition/s	
on its behalf;

	 	 •	 	the	acquisitions	of	ordinary	shares	in	the	aggregate	may	not	exceed	10%	(ten	percent)	of	the	
Company’s issued ordinary share capital;

	 	 •	 	the	Company	may	only	effect	 the	 repurchase	once	a	resolution	has	been	passed	by	 the	
Board	of	Directors	of	the	Company	(“the	Board”)	confirming	that	the	Board	has	authorised	
the	repurchase,	that	the	Company	has	passed	the	solvency	and	liquidity	test	(“test”)	and	
that since the test was done there have been no material changes to the financial position 
of the Group;

	 	 •	 	the	Company	or	its	subsidiaries	may	not	acquire	ordinary	shares	during	a	prohibited	period	
as defined in paragraph 3.67 of the JSe Listings Requirements; and

	 	 •	 	an	announcement	will	be	published	once	the	Company	has	cumulatively	repurchased	3%	
(three percent) of the number of the ordinary shares in issue at the time this general authority 
is	 granted	 (“initial	 number”),	 and	 for	 each	 3%	 (three	 percent)	 in	 aggregate	 of	 the	 initial	
number acquired thereafter.

  explanation
   Special resolution number 2 is to grant the Company a general authority for the Company and the 

Company’s subsidiaries to acquire the Company’s issued ordinary shares.  there is no requirement 
in the Companies Act, 2008 for shareholder approval unless the acquisition by the Company of any 
particular class of securities exceeds 5% of the issued shares of that class, either alone or together 
with other transactions in an integrated series of transactions, per sections 48(8), 115 and 116 of the 
Companies Act, 2008.

   It is the intention of the directors of the Company to use such authority should prevailing 
circumstances (including tax dispensations and market conditions) in their opinion warrant it, but 
subject at all times to the requirements of the Companies Act, the JSe Listings Requirements and 
the memorandum of Incorporation of the Company.

NoTICE oF ANNuAl GENERAl MEETING CoNTINuED
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  3.2.1 Other disclosures in terms of section 11.26 of the JSe Listings Requirements
    the JSe Listings Requirements require the following disclosures, which are contained in the 

annual report of which this notice forms part:

   Directors    page 10 and 11
   Directors’ interests in the Company page 45 
   Share capital of the Company page 79
   major shareholders of the Company page 96

  3.2.2 material change
    effective 1 July 2013, the Group successfully implemented the first phase of a Group 

reorganisation involving the amalgamation of six group companies into the Company’s 
main operating subsidiary, Adapt It (pty) Ltd, in terms of sections 113, 115 and 116 of the 
Companies Act, 71 of 2008. 

    the entities that have been amalgamated are bI planning Services (pty) Ltd, ItS holdings (pty) 
Ltd, ItS tertiary Software, ItS Abacus (pty) Ltd, ItS Africa technologies and Synet (pty) Ltd, all 
of which are in the process of being deregistered. three divisions have been created within 
Adapt It (pty) Ltd, being the pretoria Division, the Johannesburg Division and the Durban 
Division.

    there have been no other material changes in the affairs or financial position of the Company 
and its subsidiaries since the Company’s financial year-end and the date of this notice.

  3.2.3 directors’ responsibility statement
    the directors, whose names are given on pages 10 and 11 of the annual report of which this 

notice forms part, collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of 
the information pertaining to special resolution number 2 and certify that to the best of their 
knowledge and belief there are no facts in relation to special resolution number 2 that have 
been omitted which would make any statement in relation to special resolution number 2 
false or misleading, and that all reasonable enquiries to ascertain such facts have been 
made and that special resolution number 2 together with this notice contains all information 
required by law and the JSe Listings Requirements in relation to special resolution number 2.

  3.2.4 adequacy of working capital
    At the time that the contemplated repurchase is to take place, the directors of the Company 

will ensure that, after considering the effect of the maximum repurchase and for a period of 
twelve months thereafter:

	 	 	 •	 	the	Company	and	its	subsidiaries	will	be	able	to	pay	their	debts	as	they	become	due	
in the ordinary course of business;

	 	 	 •		 	the	consolidated	assets	of	the	Company	and	its	subsidiaries,	fairly	valued	in	accordance	
with International Financial Reporting Standards, will be in excess of the consolidated 
liabilities of the Company and its subsidiaries;

	 	 	 •	 	the	 issued	 share	 capital	 and	 reserves	 of	 the	 Company	 and	 its	 subsidiaries	 will	 be	
adequate for the purpose of the ordinary business of the Company and its subsidiaries; 
and

	 	 	 •	 	the	working	capital	available	to	the	Company	and	its	subsidiaries	will	be	sufficient	for	
the Group’s requirements.

    the Company may not enter the market to proceed with the repurchase until its Corporate 
Sponsor, merchantec (pty) Ltd, has discharged the Company of all of its responsibilities in 
terms of the JSe Listings Requirements insofar as they apply to working capital statements for 
the purposes of undertaking an acquisition of its issued ordinary shares.
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 3.3  SPecIaL ReSOLUTIOn nUmbeR 3 – LOanS OR OTHeR FInancIaL aSSISTance TO dIRecTORS and ReLaTed 
cOmPanIeS

   Resolved, as a special resolution, that in terms of section 45 of the Companies Act, the shareholders 
hereby approve of the Company providing, at any time and from time to time during the period 
of two years commencing on the date of adoption of this special resolution number 3, any direct 
or indirect financial assistance (which includes lending money, guaranteeing a loan or other 
obligation, and securing any debt or obligation) as contemplated in section 45 of the Companies 
Act, 2008, to a related or inter-related company, or to a director or prescribed officer of the Company 
or such related or inter-related company, or to any other class of person referred to in section 45(2) 
of the Companies Act 2008, provided that:

	 	 •	 The	Board	from	time	to	time,	determines:

   i)  the specific recipient, or general category of potential recipients of such financial 
assistance;

   ii) the form, nature and extent of such financial assistance;

   iii) the terms and conditions under which such financial assistance is provided; and

	 	 •	 	The	Board	may	not	authorise	the	Company	to	provide	any	financial	assistance	pursuant	to	
this special resolution number 3 unless the board meets all the requirements of section 45 of 
the Companies Act, 2008, which it is required to meet in order to authorise the Company to 
provide such financial assistance.

  explanation
   the reason for and effect of special resolution number 3 is to grant the board the authority to 

authorise the Company to provide financial assistance as contemplated in section 45 of the 
Companies Act, 2008, to the persons specified in section 45(2), i.e. a director or prescribed officer of 
the Company, or to a related or inter-related company or corporation, or to a member of a related 
or inter-related corporation, or to a person related to any such company, corporation, director, 
prescribed officer or member.  

   this resolution is intended to be mostly used to enable the Company to provide inter-company loans 
and guarantees within the Group, but will also permit the board to authorise financial assistance to 
directors and prescribed officers, and to related parties.

4. otheR buSINeSS
 to transact such other business as may be transacted at an annual general meeting of shareholders.

NoTICE oF ANNuAl GENERAl MEETING CoNTINuED
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INFoRmAtIoN SCheDuLe
RecORd daTe
the record date for the purpose of determining which shareholders are entitled to participate in, and vote 
at, the annual general meeting is Friday, 1 November 2013. Accordingly, the last date to trade in order to be 
registered in the register of shareholders of the Company and therefore be eligible to participate in and vote 
at the annual general meeting is Friday, 25 october 2013.

SHaReHOLdeRS SHOULd Take nOTe OF THe FOLLOwInG ImPORTanT daTeS:

Record date for the purposes of determining which shareholders are 
entitled to receive notice of the annual general meeting 9 october 2013

Last date to trade in order to be registered in the register of shareholders 
of the Company and therefore be eligible to participate in and vote at the 
annual general meeting 25 october 2013

Record date for purposes of determining which shareholders are entitled to 
participate in and vote at the annual general meeting 1 November 2013

Last day to lodge forms of proxy 6 November 2013 at 09:00

Date of the annual general meeting 8 November 2013 at 09:00

PROxIeS/RePReSenTaTIOn aT THe meeTInG
Shareholders holding certificated shares and shareholders that have dematerialised their shares and have 
elected own name registration in the sub-register maintained by a Central Securities Depository participant 
(“CSDP”),	may	attend,	speak	and	vote	at	the	annual	general	meeting	or	may	appoint	one	or	more	proxies	
(who need not be shareholders of the Company) to attend, speak and vote at the annual general meeting on 
behalf of the shareholder who appointed such proxy or proxies.

A proxy form is enclosed with this notice. Duly completed proxy forms must be returned to the transfer 
secretaries, Computershare Investor Services (pty) Ltd (po box 61051, marshalltown, 2107 or 70 marshall Street, 
Johannesburg, 2001) by no later than 09:00 on wednesday, 6 November 2013.

Shareholders who have dematerialised their shares through a CSDp or a broker and who have not elected own 
name registration in the sub-register maintained by the CSDp/broker and who wish to attend the annual general 
meeting, should instruct their CSDp/broker to issue them with the necessary authority to attend. Shareholders 
who are unable or do not intend to attend the meeting, but wish to be represented at the meeting, may provide 
their CSDp/broker with their voting instructions in terms of the custody agreement entered into between such 
shareholders and their CSDp/broker.

IdenTIFIcaTIOn
Shareholders and proxies are requested to ensure registration of attendance on arrival. Kindly note pursuant 
to the requirements of section 62(3) of the Companies Act, notice is hereby given that in terms of section 
63(1), shareholders and proxies who attend the annual general meeting will be required to provide satisfactory 
identification. Forms of identification include valid identity documents, passports and driver’s licences.

acTIOn TO Take
If you are in any doubt as to what action you should take in respect of the following resolutions, please consult 
your CSDp, broker, banker, attorney, accountant or other professional adviser immediately.

by order of the board

Statucor (Pty) Ltd
Company Secretary

16 August 2013
Durban
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ANNEXuRE A
SALIeNt FeAtuReS oF the ADApt It hoLDINGS LImIteD eXeCutIVe ShARe INCeNtIVe pLAN

1. INteRpRetAtIoN AND DeFINItIoNS
  “the board” means the Remuneration Committee of the board of Directors of the Company for the time 

being;

  “cPI” means the weighted average of the Consumer price Index in respect of all areas and for all items as 
published by Central Statistical Services (Statistical Release po141.7) from time to time for the immediate 
past twelve month reporting period;

  “date of Grant” means the date on which the board makes an offer in accordance with the provisions of 
Rule 2; 

  “eligible employee” means any person (including a director) who at any Date of Grant is employed, 
whether permanently or on a fixed term contract;

	 “employed/employment” means employed by the Company or a Subsidiary;

 “the Formula” – means:

  P = n x (S1 – S2)

  where:

   P is the consideration payable for the Incentive units sold by the participant to the Company in 
terms of Rule 5; and

   n is the number of Incentive units sold by the participant to the Company in terms of Rules 3.4 and 
5; and

   S1 is the Ruling price, determined in accordance with the provisions of 4, applicable as at the Sale 
Date in respect of the Incentive units sold in accordance with Rules 3.4 and 5; and

   S2 is the Ruling price, determined in accordance with the provisions of 4, applicable as at the Date 
of Grant in respect of the Incentive units sold in accordance with Rules 3.4 and 5;

  “Issue Price” means the issue price of the Shares which are to be issued to participants in terms of Rule 
5.3, determined with reference to the VwAp as at the Sale Date;

  an “Incentive Unit” means a notional share in the Company, the value of which determines the value of 
an offer;

  “Offer” means an offer made to an eligible employee on a Date of Grant to acquire Incentive units in 
accordance with these Rules;

 “Offer certificate” means a certificate by which an offer is evidenced as referred to in Rule 2.3;

  “Participant” means any eligible employee (including, where the context permits, the legal representatives 
of such person) who holds an offer Certificate and/or Incentive units pursuant to an offer;

  “Plan” means this plan, being the Adapt It holdings Limited executive Share Incentive plan, as amended 
from time to time;

  “Ruling Price” means the price of an Incentive unit from time to time, to be determined with reference to 
the VwAp of the Shares at the Date of Grant or the Sale Date, as the case may be, in accordance with 
the provisions of Rule 4, on the basis that the applicable Ruling price at the Date of Grant and at the Sale 
Date shall be the value of an Incentive unit at such time;

  “Sale date” means in relation to a sale by a participant to the Company of Incentive units in terms of Rules 
3.4 and 5, the date of delivery by such participant to the Company of the Acceptance Notice referred to 
in Rule 3;

 “Shares” means ordinary shares in the Company;

  “vwaP” means the 30 (thirty) day volume weighted average price at which the Shares are traded on the 
JSe for the 30 (thirty) trading day period immediately preceding the Date of Grant or the Sale Date, as 
the case may be.
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2. mAKING oF oFFeRS 
 2.2  the offers may be made by the board subject to such conditions (additional to the conditions set 

out in these Rules and not inconsistent with the provisions of the plan) as the board may in each 
case deem fit, including a condition to the effect that an offer shall not be capable of acceptance 
in terms of Rule 3.1 unless the Company has achieved an annual increase in headline earnings of 
not less than a percentage equal to CpI plus 8% (eight percent).  Any such additional conditions, 
which shall be performance based and/or retention based, may be waived or varied, in the sole 
and absolute discretion of the board, if an event occurs which causes the board to consider that 
such additional conditions should reasonably be waived or varied.

 2.3  An offer shall be evidenced by the issue of an offer Certificate. An offer Certificate shall state that 
the offer is made in terms of these Rules, shall specify the number of Incentive units forming the 
subject matter of the offer in question, the Date of Grant, the Ruling price as at the Date of Grant 
and any additional conditions relating to the offer determined by the board in terms of Rule 2.2, 
and shall be otherwise in such form (not inconsistent with the provisions of the plan) as the board 
may from time to time determine. If any offer Certificate shall be defaced, destroyed or lost, it may 
be replaced on such evidence being provided and on such terms as the board may reasonably 
require.

 2.4  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained or implied, the board may, in its sole 
and absolute discretion:-

  2.4.1  makes offers to participants at a discount of not more than 10% (ten percent) to the prevailing 
Ruling price, in special circumstances;

  2.4.2  reduce the number of Incentive units forming the subject matter of the portion of any offer 
not yet accepted by the participant, in the event that the participant to whom such offer has 
been made is demoted or his/her position in the Company is downgraded for any reason 
whatsoever;

  and in such circumstances, the relevant offer Certificate shall be endorsed accordingly.

 2.5  No amount shall be payable by an eligible employee in consideration for the making of an offer 
nor by a participant for the acceptance of all or any portion of such offer.

 2.6 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained or implied in these Rules: 

  2.6.1  the plan shall not constitute any contract of employment between the Company and any 
participant and it shall not confer on any participant any legal or equitable rights (other than 
those constituted by the offers as described herein) whatsoever against the Company directly 
or indirectly or give rise to any cause of action at law or in equity against the Company;

  2.6.2  the benefits to the participants under the plan shall form part of their remuneration for tax 
purposes, but shall not form part of remuneration for pension purposes;

  2.6.3  an offer to a participant is a matter entirely separate from any pension right or entitlement 
he/she may have and from his/her terms and conditions of employment and participation 
in the plan shall in no respect whatever affect his/her pension rights or entitlements or 
terms and conditions of employment and in particular (but without limiting the generality 
of the aforegoing) any participant who ceases to be employed shall not be entitled to any 
compensation for any loss of any right or benefit or prospective right or benefit under the plan 
which he/she might otherwise have enjoyed.

 2.7  An offer shall be personal to the participant and shall not be assignable and any purported 
assignment, transfer, charge, disposal or dealing with the rights or interest of the participant under 
the plan shall render the offer and the participant’s rights thereunder as being of no further force or 
effect. Incentive units do not carry any rights to dividends that may be declared by the Company. 

 2.8  An offer does not confer any rights on a participant to acquire any Shares, other than in terms of 
Rule 5.3. 
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3. ACCeptANCe oF AN oFFeR  
 3.1  Subject to Rule 2.4.2, Rule 3.2 and Rule 3.3, and subject further to any conditions attached to an 

offer pursuant to Rule 2.2, a participant shall be entitled to accept an offer by written notice to the 
Company as follows (the Acceptance Notice): 

  3.1.1  50% (fifty percent) of the Incentive units forming the subject matter of an offer shall be 
capable of acceptance by the participant at any time from the 1st (first) anniversary of the 
Date of Grant until the 3rd (third) anniversary of the Date of Grant;

  3.1.2  the remaining 50% (fifty percent) of the Incentive units forming the subject matter of an 
offer shall be capable of acceptance by the participant at any time from the 2nd (second) 
anniversary of the Date of Grant until the 3rd (third) anniversary of the Date of Grant;

   provided that the rights of acceptance of an offer in terms of the aforegoing provisions shall be 
cumulative (i.e. to the extent that right of acceptance is not exercised prior to the expiry of the 
relevant period, such right of acceptance may be exercised thereafter) and provided further that 
any portion of an offer not accepted in writing by the participant prior to the 3rd (third) anniversary 
of the Date of Grant shall lapse and shall no longer be capable of acceptance by the participant. 

 3.3  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained or implied, a participant shall be 
deemed to have waived his/her right to accept the portion of the offer which has not already 
been accepted by such participant in accordance with the aforegoing provisions, should the 
participant cease to be employed for any reason whatsoever other than the reasons set out in Rule 
3.2.1.

 3.4  upon acceptance by the participant of any portion of an offer, the Incentive units in respect of 
which the offer has been accepted shall vest in the participant and immediately upon vesting, the 
participant shall be deemed to have been sold the Incentive units so vested to the Company in 
accordance with the provisions of Rule 5.  

4. RuLING pRICe
 4.1  the Ruling price will be determined in a consistent manner by the Sponsor of the Company with 

reference to the VwAp of the Shares at the relevant date, being the Date of Grant or the Sale Date, 
as the case may be.

5. SALe AND puRChASe oF INCeNtIVe uNItS
  Subject at all times to the provisions of Rule 3.2, Rule 3.3 and Rule 3.4, the Company hereby agrees and 

undertakes to the participants that it shall purchase any portion of the Incentive units which shall have 
vested in such participants pursuant to the acceptance of any portion of an offer in terms of Rule 3 by 
the delivery of an Acceptance Notice referred to in Rule 3, stating the number of Incentive units in respect 
of which he/she is accepting the offer, upon the terms set out hereunder.

 5.1   An Acceptance Notice shall only be valid if the offer of the Incentive units referred to therein shall 
have been accepted by the participant in question as at the date of delivery thereof.

 5.2  the purchase consideration payable by the Company to the participant in question in respect of 
the Incentive units sold to the Company shall be an amount determined in accordance with the 
Formula.

 5.3  the purchase consideration payable by the Company to the participant in question, shall, subject 
at all times to the provisions of Rule 5.4, be discharged by the Company on the 7th (seventh) 
business day after the Sale Date:

  5.3.1  by way of the issue and allotment to the participant concerned of such number of Shares 
which, at the Issue price, shall be equal to the amount of the purchase consideration, of the 
sale of his/her Incentive units; 

    alternatively and at the sole and absolute discretion of the Company, subject to being in the 
best interests of the Company at the time of acceptance of an offer:

  5.3.2  in cash or partly in cash and partly by way of the issue and allotment of such number of 
Shares which, at the Issue price, shall be equal to the portion of the purchase consideration 
to be discharged by the issue and allotment of Shares.

ANNEXuRE A CoNTINuED

SALIeNt FeAtuReS oF the ADApt It hoLDINGS LImIteD eXeCutIVe ShARe INCeNtIVe pLAN



ADAPT IT INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 

107    

5. SALe AND puRChASe oF INCeNtIVe uNItS continued
 5.4  Notwithstanding the provisions of Rule 5.3, the number of Shares which may be issued and allotted 

by the Company in order to discharge the whole or portions, as the case may be, of the purchase 
consideration of the Incentive units purchased by the Company in terms of the plan, shall not:

  5.4.1  in the aggregate, in respect of all of the Incentive units to be purchased by the Company in 
terms of the plan, exceed 21 600 000 (twenty one million six hundred thousand) Shares; and

  5.4.2  in respect of any one participant, in pursuance of the acquisition of Incentive units from him/
her, exceed 2 160 000 (two million one hundred and sixty thousand) Shares;

   provided that the aforementioned numbers of Shares shall be increased or reduced pro rata in 
pursuance of any subdivision, consolidation, capitalisation issue or scrip dividend by the Company 
in respect of its Shares.

   the Company’s auditors or any other independent advisors acceptable to the JSe must confirm to 
the JSe in writing that any adjustments to the maximum aggregate number of shares referred to in 
5.4.1 and/or the maximum number of shares in respect of which any single participant shall have 
rights in terms of the plan referred to in 5.4.2 are in accordance with the provisions of the plan, which 
written notice must be provided to the JSe at the time that any such adjustment is finalised.

   In addition, any adjustments to the maximum aggregate number of shares referred to in 5.4.1 and/
or the maximum number of shares in respect of which any single participant shall have rights in 
terms of the plan referred to in 5.4.2 must be reported on in the annual financial statements of the 
Company for the financial year during which such adjustment is made.

6. tAKeoVeR oF CompANy AND ChANGeD CIRCumStANCeS
 6.1  Should control of the Company pass to another person or company as a result of a take-over, 

reconstruction, amalgamation or merger which makes provision for the participants to receive 
equity instruments allotted and issued by such other persons or in such other company in 
substitution of their plan shares on terms in the opinion of the auditors (such opinion being given 
by them as experts and not as arbitrators or quasi arbitrators) not less favourable than those on 
which those participants are entitled to their plan shares, they shall be obliged to accept such 
equity instruments in such other company on such terms.

7. ADmINIStRAtIoN AND AmeNDmeNt
 7.1  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained and subject to the JSe Listings 

Requirements, the board may restructure, amend, vary, modify or alter any of these Rules, or cancel 
the plan in its entirety, subject to being sanctioned by the Company in general meeting in terms 
of a resolution approved by a 75% majority of the votes cast in favour of such resolution, should 
circumstances so require, provided that the rights of participants shall be compensated for in a 
fair and equitable manner. In the event of a dispute in regard to such compensation, such dispute 
shall be determined by the auditors of the Company, regard being had to the provisions of Rule 7.5.
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NoTES
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FoRM oF pRoXY

ADApt It hoLDINGS LImIteD
Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa
Registration number: 1998/017276/06
Share code: ADI
ISIN: ZAe000113163

For completion only by shareholders holding certificated ordinary shares, and shareholders that have dematerialised 
their ordinary shares and have elected own name registration.

I/we  (name/s in block letters)

of  (address)

telephone:   Cell:

being a shareholder of the above-named company and entitled to: (number of votes)

do hereby appoint  1 share = 1 vote

1.    of or failing him/her

2.    of or failing him/her

3. the Chairman of the meeting

as my/our proxy to attend, speak and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the annual general meeting of the 
Company to be held at the registered offices of the Company, Adapt It offices, 5 Rydall Vale office park, Rydall Vale 
Crescent, La Lucia Ridge, KwaZulu-Natal on Friday, 8 November 2013 at 09:00 and at any adjournment or postponement 
thereof as follows:

number of ordinary shares

Ordinary resolutions agenda item For against abstain

ordinary resolution 1 election of director – oliver Fortuin

ordinary resolution 2 Re-election of director – Craig Chambers

ordinary resolution 3 Re-election of director – thembisa Dingaan

ordinary resolution 4 Appointment of bongiwe Ntuli to the  
Audit and Risk Committee

ordinary resolution 5 Appointment of oliver Fortuin to the Audit and  
Risk Committee

ordinary resolution 6 Appointment of thembisa Dingaan to the  
Audit and Risk Committee 

ordinary resolution 7 Appointment of the nominee of the Audit and Risk 
Committee as independent registered auditor

ordinary resolution 8 endorsement of remuneration policy

ordinary resolution 9 Control of authorised but unissued ordinary shares

ordinary resolution 10 Approval to issue ordinary shares, and to sell treasury 
shares, for cash

ordinary resolution 11 Adoption of the Adapt It holdings Limited executive 
Share Incentive plan

Special resolutions agenda item For against abstain

Special resolution 1 Approval of non-executive directors’ fees

Special resolution 2 General approval to acquire own shares

Special resolution 3 Loans or other financial assistance to directors  
and related companies

Signed at    on this  day of  2013

Signature

Assisted by me  (where applicable)

Full name/s of signatory/ies if signing in a representative capacity
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1.  the form of proxy must only be completed by shareholders 
who hold shares in certificated form or who are recorded 
on	the	sub-register	in	electronic	form	in	“own	name”.

2.  All other beneficial owners who have dematerialised 
their shares through a CSDp or broker and wish to 
attend the annual general meeting must provide the 
CSDp or broker with their voting instructions in terms of 
the relevant custody agreement entered into between 
them and the CSDp or broker. Alternatively the CSDp or 
broker should provide the beneficial owners with a letter 
of representation that would enable the shareholder to 
vote. Kindly note that should the CSDp or broker not have 
provided the company with the details of the beneficial 
shareholding at the specific request by the Company 
such shares may be disallowed to vote subject to the 
decision by the Chairperson of the meeting.

3.  A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the annual 
general meeting is entitled to appoint one or more 
proxies to attend, participate in and vote at the meeting 
in the place of the shareholder. A proxy need not be a 
shareholder.  

4.  the shareholder may insert the names of its proxies in 
the spaces provided on the proxy form, with or without 
deleting	“the	Chairperson	of	the	meeting”.	

5.  In the case of alternate proxies, the person whose name 
stands first on this form of proxy and who is present at the 
annual general meeting will be entitled to act as proxy 
to the exclusion of those proxy/ies whose names follow. 
Should this space be left blank, the proxy will be exercised 
by the Chairperson of the meeting. 

6.  A shareholder is entitled to one vote on a show of hands 
and, on a poll, one vote in respect of each ordinary share 
held. A shareholder’s instructions to the proxy must be 
indicated by the insertion of the relevant number of votes 
exercisable by that shareholder in the appropriate space 
provided.	If	an	“X”	has	been	inserted	in	one	of	the	blocks	
to a particular resolution, it will indicate the voting of all 
the shares held by the shareholder concerned. 

7.  If no voting instruction is indicated then the proxy is 
authorised to vote or to abstain from voting at the annual 
general meeting as he/she deems fit in respect of all of 
the shareholder’s voting rights.

8.  A shareholder or the proxy is not obliged to use all the 
votes exercisable by the shareholder or by the proxy, 
but the total of the votes cast and in respect of which 
abstention is recorded may not exceed the total of the 
votes exercisable by the shareholder or the proxy.

9.  the Chairperson of the annual general meeting may 
reject any form of proxy which does not comply with these 
instructions.

10.  A shareholder’s authorisation to the proxy, including the 
Chairperson of the annual general meeting, to vote on 
such shareholder’s behalf, shall be deemed to include 
the authority to vote on procedural matters at the annual 
general meeting.

11.  the completion and lodging of this form of proxy will not 
preclude the relevant shareholder from attending the 
annual general meeting and speaking and voting in 
person thereat to the exclusion of any proxy appointed in 
terms hereof.

12.  Documentary evidence establishing the authority of 
a person signing the form of proxy in a representative 
capacity must be attached to this form of proxy, unless 
previously recorded by the Company’s transfer secretaries 
or waived by the Chairperson of the annual general 
meeting.

13.  A minor or any other person under legal incapacity must 
be assisted by his/her parent or guardian, as applicable, 
unless the relevant documents establishing his/her 
capacity are produced or have been registered by the 
transfer secretaries of the Company.

14. where there are joint holders of ordinary shares:

	 •	 any	one	holder	may	sign	the	form	of	proxy;

	 •	 	the	 vote/s	 of	 the	 senior	 ordinary	 shareholder/s	 (for	
that purpose seniority will be determined by the order 
in which the names of ordinary shareholders appear 
in the Company’s register of ordinary shareholders) 
who tenders a vote (whether in person or by proxy) 
will be accepted to the exclusion of the vote/s of the 
other joint shareholder/s.

15.  Forms of proxy should be lodged with or mailed to 
Computershare Investor Services (pty) Ltd:

 Hand deliveries to:
 Computershare Investor Services (pty) Ltd
 70 marshall Street
 Johannesburg
 2001

 Postal deliveries to:
 Computershare Investor Services (pty) Ltd
 po box 61051
 marshalltown
 2107

  to be received by no later than 09:00 on wednesday,  
6 November 2013 (or 48 hours before any adjournment of 
the annual general meeting, which date, if necessary, will 
be notified on SeNS).

16.  A deletion of any printed matter and the completion of 
any blank space need not be signed or initialled. Any 
alteration or correction must be signed and not merely 
initialled.

General 
herewith more information regarding quorum requirements 
and voting rights of shareholders. 

1. quorum requirements
 In terms of the Company’s memorandum of Incorporation:

	 	“The	 quorum	 for	 a	 shareholders’	 meeting	 to	 begin	 or	
for a matter to be considered, shall be at least 3 (three) 
shareholders entitled to attend and vote and present in 
person. In addition:

•  A shareholders’ meeting may not begin until sufficient 
persons are present at the meeting to exercise, in 
aggregate, at least 25% (twenty five percent) of the voting 
rights that are entitled to be exercised in respect of at 
least one matter to be decided at the meeting; and 

•  A matter to be decided at a shareholders’ meeting may 
not begin to be considered unless sufficient persons are 
present at the meeting to exercise, in aggregate, at least 
25% (twenty five percent) of all of the voting rights that are 
entitled to be exercised in respect of that matter at the 
time	the	matter	is	called	on	the	agenda.”	

2. votes of shareholders
   In terms of the memorandum of Incorporation, every 

shareholder present at the meeting who is entitled to 
vote shall be entitled to 1 (one) vote on a show of hands, 
irrespective of the number of voting rights that person 
would otherwise be entitled to exercise. Should the vote 
be conducted by poll, each shareholder present at the 
meeting in person or by proxy shall be entitled to vote 
in accordance with the voting rights associated with the 
securities held by that shareholder.
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